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US Securities and Exchange Commission

Washington, DG e&
105 -
Division of Corporation Finance

Office of International Corporate Finance ¥
100 F Street, NE S U P PL
Washington, DC 20549

Re: Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd. (the “Company”), File No. 82-34885
Information to be provided pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the “Exchange Act”)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In accordance with the Company’s exemption under Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Exchange Act, enclosed please
find the following information that the Company, since November 29, 2007, the date of the Company’s last
filing with the Commission under Rule 12g3-2(b), (i) has made or is required to make public pursuant to the
laws of Bermuda; (ii) has filed or is required to file with the UKLA or LSE (and is made public thereby); or (iii)
has distributed or is required to distribute to its security holders:

l. Press releases filed through the Regulatory News Service of the London Stock Exchange since
November 29, 2007.

2. Circular dated 26 March 2008 relating to the 2008 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, including
Notice of AGM and Proxy Form.

3. Annual Financial Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2007, as mailed to all shareholders.

4, Updated list of information required to be made public on an on-going basis.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you should have anymcegggbthe enclosed documents.
Sincerely, APR 0 4

e P ;wn/ I{ﬁomsom
George P. Judd CIAL
Senior Vice President, Group General Counsel and Secretary ;/

Enclosures
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Company Alea Group Holdings{Bermuda) Ltd
TIDM ALEA

Headline Blocklisting Interim Review
Released 07:00 17-Dec-07

Number 62244

Page 1 of 2

& &

BLOCK LISTING SIX MONTHLY RETURN

INFORMATION PROVIDED ON THIS FORM MUST BE TYPED OR PRINTED

ELECTRONICALLY.

To: The FS$SA

Date: 17 December 2007

Name of applicant:

ALEA GROUP HOLDINGS (BERMUDA)
LTD.

Name of scheme:

1. 2002 Stock Purchase & Option Plan

2. Shares to be issued in consideration for
services pursuant to a consulting
arrangement with Richard T. Delaney

3. Shares that may be issued pursuant to
options granted to Fisher Capital
Corporation LLC, a consultant to the
Company

4. Shares that fall to be issued under the
Alea Group Executive Option and Stock
Plan pursuant to grants of Restricted
Stock Units.

Period of return: From:

16 June 2007 To: 17 December 2007

Balance under scheme from previous return:

6,573,568
20,223
464,340
97,090

The amount by which the block scheme has been
increased, if the scheme has been increased since
the date of the last return:

Number of securities issued/allotted under
scheme during period:

Balance under scheme not yet issued/allotted at
end of period

6,573,568
20,223
464,340
19,629
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6,573,568 admitted 22 June 2004
40,446 admitted 22 June 2004

464,340 admitted 5 August 2004
72,818 admitted 7 September 2006 and
24,272 admitted 21 December 2005

Total number of securities in issue at the end of 173,788,126 shares on 17 December 2007
the period

Number and class of securities originally listed
and the date of admission

B

Name of contact: George P. Judd
55 Capital Boulevard
Rocky Hill, Connecticut, USA 06067

Telephone number of contact: 001-860-258-7550

Address of contact:

SIGNED BY George P. Judd, Senior Vice President & Group Secretary
for and on behalf of
Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.

If you knowingly or recklessly give false or misleading information you may be liable to
prosecution.

END

[Cluse I
London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons and
countries specified therein should not be relied upen other than by such persons and/or ocutside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Regulatory Announcement
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Company Alea Group Holdings{Bermuda) Ltd

TIDM ALEA

Headline Reinsurance Commutation

Released 07:00 11-Jan-08

Number 54250

RNS Number:5425L
Alea Group Holdings(Bermuda) Ltd
11 January 2008

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd

Alea Announces Reinsurance Commutation

HAMILTON, Bermuda - Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd., today announces that it
reached agreement to fully and finally commute all exposure under an excess of
loss reinsurance treaty. Alea Group expects to record an after-tax loss of
approximately $8.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2007, pursuant to the
commutation terms.

e

For further information, please contact:

Media:
Sheel Sawhney
+1 (860) 258 6524

Analysts and Investors:
Kirk Lusk
+1 (B60) 258-6566

Financial Dynamics
Nick Henderson or Robert Bailhache
+44 (20) 7269 7114

Certain statements made in this document that are not based on current or
historical facts are forward-looking in nature including, without limitation,
statements containing words "believes," "anticipates," "plans," "projects,"
"intends," "expects," "estimates," "predicts," and words of similar import. All
statements other than statements of historical facts including, without
limitation, those regarding the Group's financial position, business strategy,
plans and objectives of management for future operations (including developmen:
plans and objectives) are forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important
factors that could cause the actual results, performance or achievement:s of ths
Group to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In
particular, forecasting of reserves for future losses is based on historical

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=16...  3/5/2008
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-

experience and future assumptions. As a result, they are inherently subjective
and may fluctuate based on actual future experience and changes to current or
future trends in the legal, social or economic environment. Such forward-lookirg
statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding the Group's present and
future business strategies and the environment in which the Group will operate
in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only as at the date of
this document or other information concerned. Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltdl
expressly disclaims any obligations or undertaking {other than reporting
obligations imposed on us in relation to our listing on the London Stock
Exchange) to disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-looking
statements contained herein to reflect any changes in the Group's expectations
with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on
which any such statement is based. References in this paragraph tc the Group are
to Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd and its subsidiaries from time to time.

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

!Close |
London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons and
countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©@2008 London Stock Exchange plc. Al rights reserved
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: File No. 82-34885

Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section EE &
Company Alea Group Holdings{Bermuda) Ltd

TIDM ALEA

Headline Helding(s) in Company

Releasad 15:44 30-Jan-08

Number 8961M

RNS Number:8%61M
ARlea Group Holdings({Bermuda) Ltd
30 January 2008

TR-1{i): NCTIFICATICN OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
voting rights are attached (ii):
Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Limited

2. Reason for the notification {please place an X inside the appropriate bracket/s):

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights: ( x )

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the
acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached: ()

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights: ()
Other (please specify) : ()

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification obligation (iii):
Odey Asset Management LLP

4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.} (iv):

-----------------

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold is crossed or
reached if different) {(v):
16/07/2007

6. Date on which issuer notified:
30/01/2008

7. Threshold({s) that is/are crossed or reached:
7.00%

8. Notified details:

.................

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type of shares if Situation previous to the Triggering trans

possible using the ISIN CODE

Number of shares Number of votin

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=16... ~ 3/5/2008
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Ordinary Share 11,108,939 11,108, 93¢
BMG015751024

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction (vii)

Class/type of shares if Number of shares Number of voting rights (ix}
possible using the ISIN CODE

Direct Direct (x) Indirect (xi)
Ordinary Share 12,165,905 12,165, 905

BMG015751024

B: Financial Instruments
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction (xii)

Type of Expiration Date (xiii) Exercise/Conversion Number of voti
financial Period/Date {(xiv} that may be ac
instrument the instrument

exercisec/ con

Total (A+B)
Number of voting rights $ of voting rights
12,165, 905 7.00%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable (xv):

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder:

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold:

.................

12. bate on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights:

13. Additional informatiocn:

.................

14. Contact name:
Tim Pearey

15. Contact telephone number:
020 7208 1456

Annex to Notification Of Major Interests In Shares {xvi)

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=16...  3/5/2008
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A: Identity of the person or legal entity subject to the notification obligaticn
Full name (including legal form for legal entities):

Contact address {registered office for legal entities):

Phone number:

Other useful information (at least legal representative for legal persons):

-----------------

B: Identity of the notifier, if applicable (xvii}

Full name:

Other useful information (e.g. functional relationship with the person or legal enti
subject to the notification obligation):

C: Additional information

S N T

Notes to the Forms

(i) This form is to be sent to the issuer or underlying issuer and to ke filed
with the competent authority.

(ii} Either the full name of the legal entity or ancther method for identifying
the issuer or underlying issuer, provided it is reliable and accurate.

(iii) This should be the full name of (a} the shareholder; {b) the person
acquiring, disposing of or exercising voting rights in the cases provicded for in
DTR5.2.1 (b) to (h); (c) all the parties to the agreement referred to in
DTR5.2.1 {a), or {d) the direct or indirect holder of financial instruments
entitled to acquire shares already issued to which voting rights are atzached,
as appropriate.

In relation to the transactions referred to in points DTR5.2.1 (b) to (h), the
following list is provided as indication of the persons who should be mentioned:

- in the circumstances foreseen in DTR5.2.1 (b)), the person that acquires the
voting rights and is entitled to exercise them under the agreement and the
natural person or legal entity who is transferring temporarily for consideration
the voting rights;

- in the circumstances foreseen in DTR 5.2.1 (c), the person holding the
collateral, provided the person or entity controls the voting rights and
declares its intention of exercising them, and person lodging the collateral
under these conditions;

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=16... 3/5/2008
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- in the circumstances foreseen in DTR5.2.1(d), the person who has a life
interest in shares if that person is entitled to exercise the voting rights
attached to the shares and the person who is disposing of the voting rights when
the life interest is created;

- in the circumstances foreseen in DTR5.2.1 (e}, the parent undertaking and,
provided it has a notification duty at an individual level under DTR 5.1, under
DTR5.2.1 (a) to (d} or under a combination of any of those situations, the
contrelled undertaking;

- in the circumstances foreseen in DTR5.2.1 {(f), the deposit taker of the
shares, if he can exercise the voting rights attached to the shares deposited
with him at his discretion, and the depositor of the shares allowing the deposit
taker to exercise the voting rights at his discretion;

- in the circumstances foreseen in DTR5.2.1 (g}, the person that controls the
voting rights;

- in the circumstances foreseen in DTR5.2.1 (h), the proxy holder, if he can
exercise the voting rights at his discretion, and the shareholder who has giver
his proxy to the proxy holder allowing the latter to exercise the wvoting rights
at his discretion.

(iv) Applicable in the cases provided for in DTR 5.2.1 (b) to (h). This should
be the full name of the shareholder who is the counterparty to the natural
person or legal entity referred to in DTR5.2Z.

(v) The date of the transaction should normally be, in the case of an on
exchange transaction, the date on which the matching of orders occurs; in the
case of an off exchange transaction, date of the entering into an agreement.

The date on which thresheld is crossed should normally be the date on which the
acquisition, disposal or possibility to exercise voting righits takes effect (see
DTR 5.1.1R (3)). For passive crossings, the date when the corporate event took
effect.

(vi) Please refer to the situation disclosed in the previous notification, In
case the situation previous to the triggering transaction was below 3%, please
state 'below 3%'.

(vii) If the holding has fallen below the minimum threshold , the notifying
party should not be ocbliged to disclose the extent of the holding, only that tlhe
new holding is less than 3%.

For the case provided for in DTRS5.2.1(a), there should be no disclosure of
individual holdings per party to the agreement unless a party individeally
crosses or reaches an Article 9 threshold. This applies upon entering into,
introducing changes to or terminating an agreement.

{viii) Direct and indirect

{ix) In case of combined holdings of shares with voting rights attached 'direct
helding' and voting rights 'indirect holdings', please split the voting rights
number and percentage into the direct and indirect columns-if there is no

combined holdings, please leave the relevant box blank.

{x) Voting rights to shares in respect of which the notifying party is a direct.
shareholder (DTR 5.1)

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=16...  3/5/2008
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(x1)} Voting rights held by the notifying party as an indirect sharehclder (DTR
5.2.1)

(xii) If the holding has fallen below the minimum threshold, the notifying party
should not be obliged to disclose the extent of the holding, only that the new
holding is below 3%.

(xiii) date of maturity / expiration of the finical instrument i.e. the date
when the right to acgquire shares ends.

(xiv) If the financial instrument has such a period-please specify the period-
for example once every three months starting from the (date)

(xv) The notification should include the name{s) cf the controlled undertakings
through which the voting rights are held. The notification should also include
the amount of voting rights and the percentage held by each controlled
undertaking, inscfar as individually the controlled undertaking holds 5% or
more, and insofar as the notification by the parent undertaking is intended to
cover the notification obligations of the contrelled undertaking.

{(xvi ) This annex is only to be filed with the competent authority.

(xvii) Whenever ancther person makes the notification on behalf of the
shareholder or the natural person/legal entity referred to in DTR5.2 and DTRS.3

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

[Close)
London Stock Exchange ple is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item {including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons; and
countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or ocutside the specified
countrigs. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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File No. 82-34885

Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section A &
Company Alea Group Holdings{Bermuda) Ltd

TIDM ALEA

Headline Preliminary Results

Released 07:01 06-Mar-08

Number 4882P

Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd
Audited results for the 12 months ended 31 December 2007

Alea announces full year 2007 results and provides an update on run-off

Financial Performance

Insurance contracts liabilities decreased by 20.2% from $1,941.5 million at 31 December 2006 to $1,549.9
million at 31 December 2007.

e Investment income of $73.1 million (2006': $94.8 million) reflecting a decrease in invested assets as cash is
used for claims payments and commutations.

s  Other operating expenses for 2007 were $59.7 million (2006: $66.6 million) which includes $11.9 million of
ane-time transaction related expenses, which on a per share? basis® was $0.07.
s Result of operating activities of $(56.4) million (2006: $17.1 million).

e Adverse reserve development, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount in the
year ended 31 December 2007 of $29.9 million (2006: adverse reserve development of $37.6 millior, net of
reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount).

e Agreements to commute two excess of loss reinsurance treaties resulted in a loss of $33.8 million, which on
a per share basis was $0.19.

o Loss after tax in 2007 of $78.2 million (2006: loss after tax of $0.8 million) which on a per share basis was
$0.45 (2006: loss per share of $0.00).

o Net asset value of $2.46 per share compared with 31 December 2006 of $2.79 per share inclucding the
impact of unrealised losses on investments.

» Subsequent to 31 December 2007 the Group repaid all of its outstanding bank loans.

Operational Highlights
s Staff headcount reduced to 105 as at 31 December 2007 down from 137 as at 31 December 2006.

Directorate Ch nd Corpor: ion

Several events in 2007 resulted in a significant change in both the ownership and the Board of Directors of Alea
Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd. Following the acquisition by FIN Acquisition Limited of approximately 674 of the
Company’s* shares in issue, on 6 July 2007, the Group announced the resignation of each of John Reeve,
Timothy Faries, James Fisher, Todd Fisher, Perry Golkin, R. Glenn Hilliard, and Scott Nuttall as directors of the
Company with effect from 5 July 2007. The Group further announced the appointment of Robert Keuffman,
Randal Nardone and Greg Share as non-executive directors of the Company with simultaneous effzct. Mr
Kauffman was also appointed Chairman of the Board.

On 10 July 2007, the Group announced the conversion of the currency in which the Company’s shares trade on
the London Stock Exchange from pounds sterling to US dollars. On 18 July 2007, the Group announced it had
posted a circular to its shareholders relating to the conversion of the Company's listing on the Official List of the
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UK Listing Authority from a primary listing to a secondary listing, with an effective date of 16 August 2007.

On 23 July 2007, FIN Acquisition Limited announced it had closed to further acceptances on 20 July 2007, its
recommended cash offer to acquire the shares of Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd, which increased its
ownership to 72.4%.

Dividend

The Company has not proposed a dividend for the 2007 financial year (2006; $Nil).

Notes

1. Except where specifically indicated all statements refer to the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 or 31 Decembar 2006.

2. Weighted average number of ordinary shares of 173.8 million (2008: 173.7 million).

3. Basic and diluted loss per share are the same value.

4. “Company” refers to Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd only. “Group” refers to Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd and all its
subsidiaries.

Financial information presented herein has been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS").

For further information, please contact:

Mark Cloutier
+1 441 296 9150

Financial Dynamics
Robert Bailhache
Nick Henderson

+44 20 7268 7114

Past performance cannot be relied upon as a guide to future performance.

Certain statements made in this document that are not based on current or historical facts are forward-looking in nature including without
limitation, statements containing words “believes," “anticipates,” “plans,” "projects,” "intends," "expects,” "estimates," "predicts," and words of
similar import. All statements other than statements of historical facts including, without limitation, those regarding the Group’s financial
position, business strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations (including development plans and objectives) are
forward-locking statements. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that
could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-fooking statements. In particular, forecasting of reserves for future losses is based on
historical experience and future assumptions. As a result they are inherently subjective and may fluctuate based on actual future exserience
and changes to current or future trends in the legal, social or economic environment. Such forward-looking statements arz based on numerous
assumptions regarding the Group's present and future business strategies and the environment in which the Group will operate in the future.
These forward-looking statements speak only as at the date of this document or other information concerned. Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda)
Ltd expressly disclaims any obligations or undertaking {other than reporting obligations imposed on us in relation to our listing on the London
Stock Exchange) to disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-locking statements contained herein to reflect any changes in the
Group's expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.
References in this paragraph to the Group are to Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd and its subsidiaries from time to time.

MANAGEMENT REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S REPORT
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2007 was another year of significant change for Alea Group. While we continued to focus on the orderly run-off of
the Group's halance sheet we alsc completed a number of major transactions including the purchase of a majority
interest in the Group by FIN Acquisition Limited, a Company formed at the direction of Fortress Investment Group.

As we have stated previously, our goal is to crystallise, preserve and, if possible, grow our capital base and,
through our run-off activities, free-up excess capital which can be returned to shareholders or reinvested in the
business. While our reported results for 2007 were impacted by several one-time events that require further
explanation, we can report significant further progress in our efforts to deleverage the Group's balance sheet and
secure and release capital for the benefit of our shareholders.

During the course of the year, we completed a number of commutation transactions that met our economic
objectives, and we believe, reduced volatility in our provisions for claims outstanding. In our direct insurance
portfolio we closed in excess of 3,000 claims representing a considerable reduction of open claims outstanding,
further reducing uncertainty in our claims provisions. Our total gress claims provision at 31 December 22007 is
$1,549.9 million compared to $1,938.0 million at 31 December 20086, a reduction of $388.1 million, representing a
considerable further deleveraging of our capital.

Our income statement for 2007 was impacted by a number of one-time items. The acquisition by FIN Acquisition
Limited of 72.4% of our issued share capital resulted in one-time transaction expenses of $11.9 million. During the
year we commuted an outwards reinsurance agreement resulting in a $25.0 million charge to earnings. Also, on
11 January 2008 we announced that we had reached agreement to commute another outwards reinsurance
treaty effective 31 December 2007, resulting in an $8.8 million charge to our income statement, but no impact in
the period to our balance sheet. These transactions, resulting in a total charge of $45.7 million, are expested to
enhance the value of the Greup in the long term and with respect to the commutations will result in a simplification
of our financial statements and accounting for reinsurance recoverables.

In addition to the one-time items, we also experienced net adverse development of $29.9 million in our claims
provisions, occurring principally in our North American reinsurance portfolio. While less than last year (2006:
$37.6 million), the net adverse development is particularly disappointing given our efforts to identify and where
possible reduce volatility in our claims provisions. With respect to our claims provisions, we have also made an
adjustment to the discount rate applied to those provisions which are carried at a discount to reflect the expected
performance of the assets supporting those provisions. This adjustment resuits in an additional charge of $6.2
million to the income statement.

The exceptional one-time items, adverse development and the discount rate adjustment cornbined to impact
operating income by $81.8 million ($0.47 per share).

While reporting a loss of any kind is disappointing, we continue to make progress in our efforts to align oparating
costs with the reducing asset base, address volatility in the balance sheet and reduce the amount of capital
required to support the business.

Evidence of that progress is found in the fact that during 2007 and shortly thereafter we repaid the full $200.0
million of bank debt carried by the Group. Repayment was achieved through funds made available through
distributions from regulated subsidiaries. This action further strengthens the Group’s balance sheet and provides
more flexibility in terms of capital management initiatives.

As we move into 2008, we believe we have better positioned the Group by simplifying our balance sheet,
strengthening our reserves and significantly reducing our debt obligations. We will remain keenly focused on
reducing expenses, further reducing insurance contract liabilities and preserving our capital and assels. We
continue to explore various options for the future of the Group, including our new addition, Alea Syndicate
Management Ltd., which we formed in 2007 as a vehicle to pursue Lloyd's Reinsurance to Close (RITC)
opportunities.

Both Kirk Lusk and | would also like to extend our gratitude to the staff at Alea for continuing to contribute to the
run-off of the Company and under very demanding circumstances. Their hard work and dedication has made a
significant contribution to the progress of the run-off and the outlook for the Group.

Mark Cloutier
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Market News
Chief Executive Officer
5 March 2008
FINANCIAL REVIEW
Consolidated income statement
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$’million $’million
Gross premiums written 12.7 (74.9)
Revenue
Premium revenue 17.7 303.3
Premium received from/(ceded to) reinsurers 4.7 (87.4)
Net insurance premium revenue 22.4 2159
Fee income 1.9 3.2
Investment income 731 94.83
Net realised losses on financial assets {1.3) (2.5)
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary - 4.3
Net realised losses on sale of renewal rights (1.7) (5.0)
Total revenue 944 310.7
Expenses
Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses 44.8 173.4
Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses paid to/{recovered from) 34.4 (16.7)
reinsurers )
Net insurance claims 79.2 156.7
Acquisition costs 10.3 69.2
Other operating expenses 59.7 66.65
Restructuring costs 1.6 1.1
Total expenses 150.8 293.65
Results of operating activities (56.4) 17.1
Finance costs (21.7) {24.4)
Loss before income fax (78.1) (7.3)
Income tax (expense)/credit (0.1) 6.5

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=17...

3/6/2008




Market News Page 5 of 79

Loss for the year (78.2) (0.8)

Performance indicators and comparison to prior years

The Group ceased underwriting new and renewal business and was placed into run-off in the fourth quarter of
2005. The Group’'s business has therefore changed significantly and as a result the standard indicators used to
assess the performance of participants in the insurance industry are not considered appropriate for the Group.
Performance indicators that are relevant to the Group's run-off strategy are provided where these provide
meaningful and useful comparisons.

Reserves and claims

At 31 December 2007 the total insurance contracts balance comprising gross claims outstanding less discount on
claims outstanding, claims handling provisions and provision for unearned premiums was $1,549.9 million, a
decrease of 20.2% from 31 December 2006 ($1,941.5 million). The claims outstanding, net of reinsurance at 31
December 2007 was $1,003.1 million (31 December 2006: $1,075.6 million). Excluding the impact of the
commuted Group excess of loss reinsurance treaty the change in claims outstanding, net of reinsurance was
29.6% (31 December 2006; 29.6%).

The balances are analysed below:

As at As at
31 December
31 December 2007 2006
$'million $’million
Gross claims outstanding
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not .
reported 1,605.6 2,026.1
Discount (67.5) (105.9)
1,538.1 1,920.2
Claims handling provisions 11.8 17.8
Total gross claims outstanding 1,549.9 1,938.0
Provision for unearned premiums on insurance contracts - 35
Total insurance contracts 1,549.9 1,941.5
Aggregate excess reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not .
reported 41.2 299.6
Discount - (7.7}
Net aggregate excess reinsurance 41.2 291.9
Other reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not .
reported 508.6 573.2
Discount {3.0) (2.7)
Net other reinsurance 505.6 570.5
Total reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not 549.8 8728

reported
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Discount (3.0) (10.4)
Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding 546.8 862.4
Provision for unearned premiums on reinsurance ) 10
contracts -
Total reinsurance contracts 546.8 863.4
Undiscounted claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1, 067.6 1,171.1
Discount (64.5) (95.5)
Claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1,003.1 1,075.5

The following table presents the Group's booked gross claims outstanding before claims handling provisions and
before discount as at 31 December 2007 by class of business.

Gpngral Motor Workers’ Professional Property MAT' Total
$'million liability comp.
1999 and prior 90.9  43.9 385 0.5 75.8 3.1 252.7
2000 25.9 10.6 6.7 13.9 21.2 10.7 89.0
2001 25.1 8.3 2.8 9.8 11.0 16.7 73.7
2002 28.3 7.1 5.6 19.4 4.1 5.8 70.3
2003 30.3 235 1.3 2386 53 34 874
2004 33.0 329 43 247 34 66 10449
2005 14.6 49.2 12.0 24.3 34.6 2.9 137.6
Reinsurance
reserves 248.1 175.5 71.2 116.2 155.4 49.2 815.5
Insurance reserves 221.7 63.7 100.2 26.4 9.0 - 421.0)
Total non-life
reserves 469.8 239.2 171.4 142.6 164.4 49.2 1,236.6
Life structured 2771
settlements
Life reinsurance 91.9
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,605.5

' Marine, Aviation and Transport

The following table analyses Alea's gross claims outstanding between incurred but not reported (“IBNR") and
case reserves as at 31 December 2007. The insurance and reinsurance splits are in line with the Group’s typical
business tail and the relative maturity of the respective books.

Percentage Total
Case reserves 48%
IBNR 52%.
Total 100%

Adverse reserve development

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 the Group experienced adverse development in the
reserves, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount of $29.9 million (31 December
2006; adverse reserve development, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount of
$37.6 million).
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Loss reserve discount

As permitted by IFRS 4, categoeries of claims provisions where the expected average interval between the Jate of
settlement and the halance sheet date is in excess of four years may be discounted at a rate which does not
exceed that expected to be eamed by assets covering the provisions. As at 31 December 2007 30% (31
December 2006: 28%) of the Group's gross reserves were discounted at a rate of 4.0% (31 December 2006:
4.5%).

As at 31 December 2007 the Group's total net discount was $64.5 million (31 December 2006: $95.5 million). This
is expected to reduce towards zero over the duration of the normal course of payout of the reserves. The
unwinding of the discount will be charged to insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses in the income
statement as the remaining expected duration for each category of claims provisions drops below the UK GAAP
qualified level of four years as permitted by IFRS 4.

Income statement

Gross premiums written and net insurance premium revenue

Gross premiums written in 2007 were $12.7 million (2006; negative $74.9 million which reflected the cancellation
of policies written in prior periods). Net insurance premium revenue reduced by 89.6% to $22.4 million in 2007
(2006: $215.9 million). This is primarily due to the Group's decision to cease writing new and renewal business
resulting in a reduction in premium.

Fee income

In 2007 fee income was $1.9 million compared with $3.2 million recorded in 2006. Fee income represents income
arising on structured reinsurance and insurance contracts without significant transfer of insurance risk. These
contracts are accounted for on a deposit accounting basis.

investment income and realised gains and losses

Investment income in 2007 was $73.1 million, 22.9% ($21.7 million) lower than the $94.8 million recorded in 2006.
The fall recorded reflects a 4.3% vyield on invested assets for 2007 on average invested assets of $1,687.9 million
compared with a 4.3% yield on invested assets for 2006 on average invested assets of $2,228.3 million.

Net realised losses on financial assets were $1.3 miilion in 2007 compared with $2.5 million realised losses in
2006.

Net realised losses on sale of renewal rights

The Group completed three renewal rights transactions in the fourth quarter of 2005. These were accounted for
as net realised gains on sale of renewal rights of $81.1 million. Subsequently, the following movements have
been recognised in the income statement reflecting a change to the estimate of fair value based on the latest
financial data available. These amounts reflect the discounted estimated future cash flows arising from sgecified
percentages of applicable commissionable premiums written over the applicable period in accordance with the
terms of the sale contracts.

The table below summarises the change in the fair value of each transaction:
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Transaction Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2003

$’million $’million

London/Canopius - (0.8)
AAR/AmMTrust (1.9) (5.2)
Europe/SCOR 0.2 1.0
Total (1.7) (5.0

To date the Group considers that the amounts recoverable of $54.4 million derived after the adjustments booked
in 2007 and 2006 are reasonable. It has received $22.6 million in cash. The outstanding balance consists of
$29.6 million due from AmTrust and $2.2 million due from Canopius.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses

In 2007 the Group incurred net insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses of $79.2 million (2006: $156.7
million).

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs are directly associated with the acquisition of insurance and reinsurance contracts including
brokerage, commissions, underwriting expenses and other acquisition costs. They are deferred and amortised
over the period of contract, consistent with the earning of premium.

Given that the Group is no longer accepting new insurance risks and is releasing its unearned premium reserves
as the risk associated with those premium receipts is extinguished, acquisition costs are expected to become
insignificant.

In 2007 total acquisition costs were $10.3 million (2006: $69.2 miliion) which includes a charge of $2.6 million in
respect of a profit sharing arrangement.

The Group has assessed its deferred acquisition cost asset (“DAC”) at 31 December 2007 of $2.3 million
(31 December 2006: $3.5 million) as fully recoverable and as a result has not recorded any DAC write-off in
2007.

Other operating expenses

The Group plans to minimise operating expenses as much as possible while still retaining the personnel and
capabilities to manage an efficient run-off of the existing book and pursue other corporate activities. To the: extent
that investment income net of discount released does not offset other operating expenses in relation to run-off
activities, the Group will establish a run-off provision.

in 2007 other operating expenses were $59.7 million. Net of one-time transaction related expenses of $11.9
million, other operating expenses were $47.8 million. This compares with other operating expenses in 2006 of
$66.6 million.

Restructuring costs

Restructuring costs in 2007 were $1.6 million (2006: $1.1 million). These costs include severance payrrents of
$1.6 million (2006: $3.6 million) made to employees who were not part of the original restructuring plan as
disclosed at 31 December 2005.
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Restructuring costs in 2006 also included a credit of $2.5 million which resulted from Alea North America's
sublease of its empty offices in Wilton and a resulting reversal of part of the previously recognised provision for
onerous contracts.

Staff headcount at 31 December 2007 stood at 105 (31 December 2006: 137).

Results of operating activities

In 2007, results of operating activities were a loss of $56.4 million compared with a profit of $17.1 million in 2006.
The Group incurred significant one-time charges of $45.7 million associated with the change in majority
ownership of the Company and the agreement to commute two large excess of loss reinsurance treaties. Absent
these one-time charges, the results of operating activities for 2007 would have been a loss of $10.7 million,
Finance costs

Finance costs include investment expenses, foreign exchange movements and debt interest. In 2007 total finance
costs were $21.7 million, compared with $24.4 million recorded in the corresponding period in 2006. The majority

of this decrease resulted from a reduction in bank debt from $200.0 million to $30.0 million in 2007. The
outstanding balance was paid in full on 14 January 2008.

Loss before income tax

Loss before income tax was $78.1 million in 2007 compared with a loss of $7.3 million in 2006,

Income tax expense

The income tax expense in 2007 was $0.1 million, compared with a credit of $6.5 million in 2006.

The impact of the income tax expense/{credit) on the income statement is summarised as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$’million $’millicn

Current tax expensel{credit):
UK corporation tax - 0.3
Foreign tax 1.0 (4.9}
Total current expensel/(credit) 1.0 (4.5)
Deferred tax credit: (0.9} (1.9)
Total income tax expense/(credit) 0.1 {6.5)

The Group's Swiss, US and UK entities have significant trading losses carried forward in respect of which no
deferred tax assets have been recognised due to the uncertainty over future profitability.

In 2007 the Group's current tax expense of $1.0 million (2008. credit of $4.6 million) is mainly derived from
branches where there are no trading losses carried forward available.
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Loss on ordinary activities after income tax

Loss on ordinary activities after income tax in 2007 was $78.2 million (2006: loss of $0.8 million).

Loss per share

Basic and fully diluted loss per share for 2007 was $0.45 per share (2006: loss per share of $0.00).

Dividend

The Company will not be paying a dividend for the 2007 financial year {2006: $Nil).

Balance sheet

Total assets

Total assets as at 31 December 2007 decreased by 25.1% to $2,356.3 million from $3,145.7 millior; at 31
December 2006.

Net assets

Net assets (shareholders’ funds attributable to equity interests) at 31 December 2007 were $428.0 million {31
December 2006: $484.1 miilion). Net assets per share were $2.46 (31 December 2006: $2.79}.

Net assets have been favourably impacted by a $13.3 million decrease in cumulative unrealised losses in the
investment portfolio described below. However, net assets have been adversely affected by the $33.8 million loss
associated with the agreement to commute two large excess of loss reinsurance treaties, $11.9 million in one-
time transaction related expenses and by $29.9 million in adverse development.

Reinsurance recoverables

Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding was $546.8 million at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006:
$862.4 million). The reduction is primarily attributable to the agreement to commute one large excess of loss
reinsurance treaty completed in 2007.

Invested assets

The Group’s investment strategy emphasises a high quality diversified portfolio of liquid investment grace fixed
income securities as a method of preserving capital. The investment portfolio does not currently consist of equity
or real estate investments, but the Group may, in the future, invest in other asset classes.

At 31 December 2007 the value of available for séle investments was $1,365.2 million, compared with $1,664.5
million at 31 December 2006.

Of total invested assets $1,317.2 million (31 December 2006: $1,732.7 million) is managed by third-party fund
managers with the asset mix shown below. The remaining invested assets of $202.3 million inciude
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predominantly mutual funds invested in fixed income securities and deposits at banking institutions.

Asset class 31 December 2007 31 December 2006
US government 20% 21%
US mortgage 15% 16%
EU and Switzerland government and corporate 15% 14%
US corporate 10% 11%
Asset backed securities 2% 4%
US municipalities 1% 1%
Canadian government and provinces 2% 2%
Cash and cash equivalents 35% 31%
Total 100% 100%

At 31 December 2007 the Group’s investment portfolio had an average duration of 1.5 years (31 December 2006:
1.7 years). The Group has maintained a shortened average duration for the portfolio to provide iquidity
anticipated to be required to support the Group's run-off strategy The Group may choose to increase the average
duration of the pertfolio in the future.

In 2007 the Group achieved a total gross return on the investment portfolio of 5.2% (2006: 3.6%). The investment
return comprised 4.3% investment income (2006: 4.3%), 0.1% realised loss (2006: loss of 0.1%) and 1.0%
unrealised gain (2006: loss of 0.6%) on average invested assets of $1,317.2 million (2006: $2,228.3 million}.

At 31 December 2007, apart from $3.3 million rated BBB, all of the Group's fixed income portfolio was rated A or
better and 85.3% was rated AA or better (31 December 2006: 93.7%) by either Standard & Poor's or Noody's.
The portfolio had a weighted average rating of AAA based on ratings assigned by Standard & Poor's or Noody's.
Other than with respect to US, Canadian and European Union government and agency securities, the Group's
investment guidelines limit its aggregate exposure to any single issuer to 5% of its portfolio. Under the Group’s
current investment guidelines, all securities must be rated A or better at the time of purchase and the weighted
average rating requirement of the Group's portfolio is AAA. There were no investment write-offs in either 2006 or
2007.

There are pledges over certain investments for the issuance of letters of credit in the normal course of business.
As at 31 December 2007 the pledges covered assets of $282.2 million (31 December 2006: $343.6 million). In
addition $134.2 million (31 December 2006: $131.7 million) is held as statutory deposits for local regulators and a
further $534.9 million (31 December 2006: $619.4 million) is held in trust for the benefit of policy holders ircluding
$176.1 million {31 December 2006; $197.5 million) that Alea (Bermuda) Ltd has placed in trust on behalf of Alea
North America Insurance Company.

As at 31 December 2007 the Group held Société d'Investissement & Capital Variable (“SICAV") of $58.& million
(31 December 2006: $55.5 million) pledged for the benefit of French and Belgian cedants. These SICAVs are
mutual funds invested in European fixed income securities with weighted average credit quality of AAA and
duration of approximately six years.

We have reviewed our investment portfolio with regard to any impact from subprime issues and concluded that no
impairment of the invested assets is required.

Capital management

Financing facilities

The Group raised $100 million of hybrid capital in December 2004 and a further $20 million in early January 2005.
This capital is in the form of 30-year hybrid trust preferred securities priced at LIBOR plus 285 basis points.
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At 1 January 2007 the Group had $150 million outstanding under its term loan facility and $50 million outstanding
under its revolver facility. Interest was charged at LIBOR plus 120 basis points on these bank facilities. The bank
facility would have been due in September 2007.

On 19 April 2007, the Group repaid $25.0 million of the term loan and all of $50.0 million revolver using its cash
reserves, leaving an outstanding amount of $125.0 million.

On 6 July 2007, the Group negotiated a new term loan credit facility with Banc of America Securities Limited as
facility agent. Under this facility, the Group drew down the maximum aggregate commitment of $90.0 million,
which, along with $35.0 million of its own cash reserves, was used to repay the pre-existing bank facility of $125.0
million.

The Group made an optional prepayment of $60.0 million on 18 July 2007. The remaining $30.0 million was
repaid on 14 January 2008.

Liquidity and cashflow

Cash flows from operating activities primarily consist of premiums collected, investment income and collected
reinsurance recoverable balances, less paid claims, retrocession payments, operating expenses and tax
payments. Net cash outflow from operating activities after income tax paid for 2007 was $233.3 million (2006:
$585.0 million net cash outflow). The operating cash outflow reflects claims, commutation paymerts and
expenses.

The net decrease in cash was $8.9 million (increase for 2006 of $42.4 million). This is after net cash received
from investing activities of $411.6 million (2006: net cash received of $649.3 million) and net cash used in
financing activities of $187.3 million (2006: net cash used of $21.9 million). As a result, after taking account of
exchange movements of $6.0 million (2006: $2.4 million), the Group’s cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
2007 were $154.3 million (31 December 2006: $157.2million).

Intra-Group arrangements

The Group manages a number of different intra-Group arrangements designed to ensure that each local balance
sheet retains risk commensurate with its capital base. The principal means of achieving this is by arranging
capacity through internal quota share reinsurances (‘quota shares') primarily with Alea Bermuda. For 2002 to
2006 underwriting years, the Group has put in place a 70% quota share to Alea Bermuda of Alea North America’s
insurance and reinsurance business. For 2001 to 2005 underwriting years there was a 35% quota share
arrangement from Alea London to Alea Europe in place which was commuted in the third quarter of 2006. There
is a 50% quota share of certain 2000 and prior underwriting year business from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda.
Given the change in circumstances, the Group is evaluating options to simplify its capital structure and halance
sheet and is therefore considering commutations of the remaining quota shares. Such transactions would be
subject to regulatory approval in each jurisdiction affected.

Key risks to which the Group is exposed

As a result of its activities the Group is subject to different types of risk. These include insurance risk (which
incorporates underwriting and reserving risk}, investment risk, credit risk and financial risk {incorporating interest
rate risk, asset price risk, currency risk and liquidity risk). Further details of each of these types of risk and the
procedures that the Group has in place to mitigate them can be found in note 4 of the Annua! Financial Report.

Credit ratings

In the first half of 2006, Alea Group requested the withdrawal of all Group and member company ratings following
ratings downgrades by both Standard and Poor's and A.M. Best.
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Important events that have occurred since the end of the financial year

Alea London Limited commuted a large excess of loss reinsurance contract on 11 January 2008, effeclive 31
December 2007. Further detail can be found in note 40 of the Annual Financial Report.

The Group prepaid its outstanding bank loans on 14 January 2008. Further detail can be found in note 2¢ of the
Annual Financial Report.

Branches

The Company's subsidiaries, Alea London Limited and Alea Europe Ltd. have licensed branches in Australia and
Canada, respectively. A full listing of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out in note 41 of the Annual Firancial
Report.

Financial calendar 2008

The Group expects to release its interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2008 on 27 August 2008 *

*provisional date

Kirk Lusk
Group Chief Financial Officer
5 March 2008

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Directors that served during the year are as follows:

Robert | Kauffman (Current Chairman)’
Mark B Cloutier (Group Chief Executive Officer)?
Kirk H Lusk (Group Chief Financial Officer)?
Randal A Nardone*

Gregory M Share®

John Reeve (Former Chairman) 8

Timothy C Faries”

James R Fisher®

Todd A Fisher?

Perry Golkin1?

R Glenn Hilliard"!

Scott C Nuttall?

Notes

1. Appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of the Board effective 5 July 2007.
2.  Appointed as an Executive Director effective 1 September 2006. Last re-elected 26 June 2007,
3. Appointed as an Executive Director effective 1 September 2008. Last re-elected 26 June 2007,
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4. Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 5 July 2007.

5. Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 5 July 2007.

6. Appointed as independent Non-Executive Chairman of the Board effective 19 November 2003. Last re-elected 26 Jure 2007.
Resigned effective 5§ July 2007.

7. Appointed as an independent Non-Executive Director effective 7 December 2001, Last re-glected 26 June 2007. Resigned

effective 5 July 2007.

B. Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 19 November 2003. Resigned effective 5 July 2007.

9. Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 19 November 2003. Resigned effective 5 July 2007.

10. Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 19 November 2003. Resigned effective 5 July 2007

11. Appointed as senior independent Non-Executive Director effective 19 Novemnber 2003. Last re-elected 29 June 2006. Fesigned
effective 5 July 2007.

12. Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 19 November 2003. Resigned effective 5 July 2007,

Re-election of Directors

The Company is proposing the reappointment of Kirk H Lusk as Director, who is retiring by rotation in accordance
with the Company’'s Bye-laws. Mr Lusk is an Executive Director and Group Chief Financial Officer and Group
Chief Qperating Officer.

The Company is also proposing the reappointment of Robert Kauffman, Randal Nardone and Gregory Share as
Directors, each of whom is retiring at the first Annual General Meeting following their appointments in acccrdance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. Mr Kauffman is the Non- Executive Chairman of the Board. Messrs Nardone and
Share are Non-Executive Directors. Each of their Director's appointment letters is renewable on 19 June 2011 for
an additional three year term, subject to the provisions of the Company's Bye-laws.

Purchase of own shares

Under contractual arrangements between the Company and certain Group employees, the Company has the right
to repurchase shares in the Company held by such an employee at the end of their employment. No share
purchases pursuant to these arrangements were made in 2007.

The Company is not required to obtain shareholder approval to authorise purchases of its own shares under

Bermudan law.

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution to
reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Beard.
George P Judd

Group Secretary
5 March 2008

STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors (whose names and functions are set out on page 15) are responsible for preparing the Annual
Financial Report including the financial statements. The Bermudan Companies Act 1981 permits the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the ‘Group’), to prepare financial statements which comprise the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated
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statement of recognised income and expense and the related notes 1 to 41 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’).

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year the
Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of
the effect of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria
for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.’ In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation
will be achieved by compliance with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards. Directors are
required to:

» properly select and apply accounting policies, including whether to prepare financial statements on a
going concern basis;

. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, rzliable,
comparable and understandable information; and

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company, for safeguarding the assets and for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregutarities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group's website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom and Bermuda governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions,

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole; and

¢ the Management Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the busine:ss and
position of the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties they face.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ALEA GROUP HOLDINGS
(BERMUDA)LTD

We have audited the group financial statements (the “financial statements™) of Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda)
Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of recognised income and
expense and the related notes 1 to 41. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
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company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Financial Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with
the relevant financial reporting framework and whether the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. We report to you whether in our cpinion the information
given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements, We also report to you if the company
has not kept proper accounting records and if we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Financial Report and consider whether it is consistent with
the audited financial statements. The other information comprises only the Management Report, the Board of
Directors’ bicgraphies, the Directors’ Report and the Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities. We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies vith the
financial statements. Qur responsibilities do not extend fo any further information outside the Annual Firancial
Report.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

» the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its loss for the year then ended;

» the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and

s the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

5 March 2008

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=17...  3/5/2008




Market News

Consolidated income statement

ALEA GROUP ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2007
Year ended 31 December 2007

Page 17 of 79

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Notes $'000 $'000
Gross premiums written 7 12,683 (74,919)
Revenue
Premium revenue 17,666 303,338
Premium received from/{ceded to} reinsurers 4,693 (87,422)
Net insurance premium revenue 7 22,359 215,918
Fee income 7 1,949 5,143
Investment income 8 73,089 9¢.,821
Net realised losses on financial assets 9 (1,310) (2.500)
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary 10 - <.336
Net realised losses on sale of renewal rights {1,723) {5 020)
Total revenue 94,364 310,696
Expenses
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses 44,740 173,408
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses
paid to/(recovered from} reinsurers 34,416 (16.716)
Net insurance claims 7,1 79,156 156,692
Acquisition costs 7 10,279 69,292
Other operating expenses 12,13 59,742 66,555
Restructuring costs 6 1,571 1,087
Total expenses 150,748 293,626
Results of operating activities 7 {56,384) 17,070
Finance costs 14,15 {21,696) (24,407}
Loss before income tax 7 {78.,080) {7,337)
Income tax (expense)/credit 16 (100) 3,502
Loss for the year (78,180) (835)

Earnings per share for losses attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company during the period:

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=17...  3/6/2008




Market News Page 18 of 79

Earni I . tiviti

Basic ($) 17 {0.45) (C.00)
Diluted ($) 17 (0.45) (C.00)

Consolidated balance sheet

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2007 2005
Notes $°000 $000
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 18 4,487 6,393
Intangible assets 19 8,479 8,473
Deferred acquisition costs 20 2,323 3,505
Financial assets
Equity securities
- available for sale 21 165 193
Debt securities
- available for sale 21 1,365,040 1,664,341
Loans and receivables inciuding insurance receivables 22 273,707 440,961
Deferred tax assets 23 1,034 1,154
Reinsurance contracts 25 546,801 863,475
Cash and cash equivalents 24 154,253 157,220
Total assets 2,356,289 3,145,732
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 25 1,549,891 1,941,514
Borrowings 26 147,785 317.2€7
Provisions 27 2,837 5,241
Other liabilities and charges 28 33,235 40954
Trade and other payables 29 191,741 355,6(6
Current income 1ax liabilities 2,761 1,009
Total liabilities 1,928,250 2,661,5¢1
Net assets 428,039 484,141
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders
Share capital 31,30 1,738 1,754
Other reserves 30 709,455 687,377
Retained loss 30 (283,154) {204,974)
Total equity 428,039 484,141
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Approved by the Board of Directors on 5 March 2008 and signed on its behalf by:

Kirk Lusk
Group Chief Financial Officer

Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended Year endod
31 December 2007 31 December 2008
Notes $°000 $'000
Cash used in operations 34 {240,764) (586,999)
Income tax recovered 7,505 1,949
Net cash used In operating actlvities (233,259} (585,050)
Cash flows generated from/{used In) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (647) {735)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 63 424
Cash payments to acquire equity and debt securities (5,575,634) (3.820,920)
Cash receipts from sales of equity and debt securities 5,920,523 4,356,828
Net amounts outstanding for securities 11,935 (6,448)
Cash receipts from sale of subsidiary - 34,726
Cash receipts from interest and dividends 55,380 85,429
Net cash generated from investing activities 411,620 649,304
Cash flows used in financing activities
Repayments of borrowings {170,000} -
Interest paid on borrowings 21,888
P g (17,289) (21,868)
Net cash used in financing activities (187,289) {21,868)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (8,928) 42 365
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 157,220 116,962
Cash of a subsidiary sold - (4.477)
Exchange gains on cash and bank overdrafts 5,961 2,369
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 154,253 157,25

Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
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Year ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2004

$'000 $'000

Gain/(loss) on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 10,999 (11,939)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign 8,620 5481
operations

Tax on items taken directly into equity {1,030} -

Net loss recognised directly in equity 18,589 (6,458)
Transfers

Transfers o profit and loss on sale of available-for-sale investments 3,343 913

Tax on items transferred from equity - -

Total transfers net of tax 3,342 913

Loss for the year {78,180) (83%)

Total recognised income and expense for the year {56,248) (6,380)

The total recognised income and expense are atributable to the Company's equity holders.

Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were engaged in
the business of underwriting insurance and reinsurance risks. The Group operates through four principal
operating segments representing London market business, North American business including alternalive risk
transfer and reinsurance, Continental European reinsurance and financial services. In 2005 the Group ceased to
write new business and placed all operations into run-off. Althcugh the Group has disposed of the renewal rights
for Alea Alternative Risk, Alea London and Alea Eurcpe and placed all operations into run-off, the Group will
continue to service claims relating to business written during 2005 and prior for the foreseeable future. As such, it
is considered appropriate to recognise all amounts as relating to continuing operations.

The Company is registered in Bermuda and is listed on the London Stock Exchange. As such it is required to
prepare its financial information in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, which permits the
Company and the Group to prepare financial statements which comprise the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated balance sheet, the consclidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of recognised
income and expense and the related notes 1 to 41 in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards
("IFRS"). Accordingly, the financial information has been prepared in accordance with Bermuda Law.

2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements, as required by the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom's Financial Services Authority
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(“FSA"), have been prepared on the basis of IFRS recognition and measurement principles which are applicable
at the 2007 year end.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars, rounded to the nearest thcusand.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
instruments which have been classified as available for sale.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to exercise its judgement in
making estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are besed on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgement about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily available from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the periods in which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect only those periods or in the
periods of the revision and future periods if applicable.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in following years are discussed
below.

As IFRS are limited in specifying full insurance-specific guidelines to the requirements of IFRS 4 ‘Insurance
Contracts' pending completion of the second phase of the IASB's project on insurance contracts, accounting
policies for insurance contracts have been selected with primary consideration to existing UK GAAFP as permitted
by IFRS 4. The annual basis of accounting has been applied to all classes of business.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies in force
for the year ended 31 December 2007. A summary of the principal accounting policies is provided in note 3.

3 Accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consclidated financial statements.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently by all Group entities.

Basis of consolidation

These financial statements consolidate all the enterprises in which Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd owns or
controls, directly or indirectly, the majority of the voling shares. There are no other enterprises over which the
Group has the ability to exercise control,

Intra-group transactions, balances, and gains and losses are eliminated except to the extent that the transaction
pravides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The results of subsidiaries liquidated or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement up to the effective date of liquidation or disposal, as appropriate.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing preducts or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing services within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other eizonomic
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environments.

Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency'). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars, which is the Group’s
presentation currency.

b} Group companies

The functiona! currencies for Group entities are usually the currencies of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange rates at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at transactional or average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statermnent as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

¢) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the tfransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included
in the revaluation reserve in equity.

To safeguard against fluctuations in exchange rates, Group entities seek to match assets and liablities in
currency. However, currency gains/losses which do arise from transactions in a currency other than a functional
currency are reported in the income statement within other income or other expenses, as applicable.

The foreign currency rates used for significant foreign currencies are as follows:

31 December 2007 31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006

Average Closing Average Closing
British pound 0.5001 0.5038 0.5437 0.5087
Euro 0.7295 0.6854 0.7964 0.7591
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Swiss franc 1.1972 1.1326 1.2544 1.2200

Insurance contracts
The Group enters into contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined as risk,
other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of a contract to the issuer. Financial risk is defined as the risk
of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commaodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case
of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Those contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for by recognising an asset or liability
based on the consideration paid or received less any explicitly identified premiums or fees to be retained by the
ceding company. Future cash flows are estimated to calculate the effective yield, and revenues and expenses are
recorded as other income or expense.

Premium revenhue

For all insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue proportionally over the period of coverage,
having regard, where appropriate, to the incidence of risk and this is known as earned premium. The pcrtion of
premium receivable on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is repcrted as
the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are exclusive of taxes
and duties levied thereon.

Premiums comprise total premiums earned under contracts incepting during the financial year, together with
adjustments arising in the financial year to premiums earned in respect of business written in previous fnancial
years. Premiums also include estimates of pipeline premiums earned on business written but not yet notified to
the Group.

In respect of both risks accepted and risks ceded by the Group, premiums and claims relating to reinsurance
arrangements which do not involve significant transfer of insurance risk are not recognised in the income
statement but are accounted for as deposits due from, or liabilities due to, reinsurers or cedants.

Reinsurance

The Group cedes premium and risks in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for losses
arising from risks accepted. Insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers on contracts that are deemed to transfer
significant insurance risk are recognised as an expense in a manner that is consistent with the recognition of
insurance premium revenue arising from the underlying risks being protected. Reinsurance contracts tha: do not
meet the definition of an insurance contract are accounted for as financial assets. The portion of premium ceded
to reinsurers on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is reported as the
unearned premium asset.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses recovered from reinsurers are accounted for in the same
accounting period as the claims for the related inward insurance and reinsurance business being covered and are
estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsurance policy.

Provision is made for potentially non-collectable reinsurance recoveries and the exposure of the Group 1o credit
risk is assessed through the aggregation of reinsurance assets due from counter parties belonging to the same
insurance groups.

Renewal rights transactions

Renewal rights transactions represent books of insurance and reinsurance business sold to third partizs. The
Directors use fair value accounting for renewal rights transactions. Valuations and revaluations of such
transactions are recognised in the income statement as net realised gains or losses on sale of renewal rights.
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In determining the fair value for the business sold, the Directors value the discounted estimated future cash flows
arising from specified percentages of applicable commissionable premiums written over the applicable perfiod in
accordance with the terms of the sale contracts. In determining the fair market value of renewal rights scid, the
Directors consider the prior production and growth of the businesses sold, external projections and the most
recent assessment of the businesses sold. The Directors also make certain assumptions about levels of program
transfer and renewal probabilities of future premiums.

As the ultimate consideration receivable is dependent upon the future levels of business generated on renzwal in
relation to the rights sold over differing time periods as specified in the sale contracts, it is necessary for the
Directors to review and re-evaluate the fair value of the consideration receivable based on the likely volumes of
renewal business that will be written. Consequently, adjustments to the consideration receivable recognised in the
income statement will be made at each balance sheet date where required.

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC")

Costs which vary and are directly associated with the acquisition of insurance and reinsurance contracts in:luding
brokerage, commissions, underwriting expenses and other acquisition costs are deferred and amortised over the
period of contract, consistent with the earning of premium. These are shown as a capitalised asset in the talance
sheet. ’

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses comprise the estimated cost of all claims occurring prior to the
balance sheet date, whether reported or not, and include loss adjustment expenses related to internal and
external direct and indirect claims handling costs, and adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.
Claims handling costs include related internal and externat direct and indirect claims handling costs and coasist of
third party loss adjustor fees, legal expenses and claims staff costs.

Liabilities for unpaid claims are determined on an individual case basis and are based on the estimated L ltimate
cost of all claims notified but not settled by the balance sheet date, together with the provision for related claims
handling costs and net of salvage and subrogation recoveries. The provision also includes the estimated cost of
claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date based on statistical methods.

The Group discounts certain categories of claims provisions, such as certain casualty and autc liability claims,
where the expected average interval between the date of claim settlement and the balance sheet dafe is in
excess of four years in accordance with the statutory regulations of the European Union. The discount rate used
is 4.0% (2006: 4.5%).

Liability adequacy test (“LAT")
At each balance sheet date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance
contract liabilities net of related DAC and premiums receivable.

Provision is made where current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and
administration expenses arising after the end of the financial year from contracts concluded before that date is
expected to exceed the provision for unearned premiums net of DAC and premiums receivable. Investment
income from the assets backing the liabilities is taken into account in calculating the provision. The assessment of
whether a provision is necessary is made on the basis of information available as at the balance sheet date, after
offsetting surpluses and deficits arising on products which are managed together. Any deficiency is immediately
charged to the income statement initially by writing off DAC and by subsequently establishing a provision for
losses arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision). Any DAC written off as a resull of this
test cannot subsequently be reinstated.

Investment income

Investment income includes dividends and interest. Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend basis that i5 when
the right to receive payment is established. Interest and rental income are recognised on an accruals basis.
Interest income in respect of the Group's available for sale investments is recognised using the effective nteresi
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method.

Fee income

Fee income represents income arising on finite risk reinsurance and insurance contracts without significant
transfer of insurance risk and expense related to deposits received from reinsurers. Such income is reccgnised
over the term of the contract.

Employee Benefits
a) Share-based payments

The cost of awards to employees that take the form of shares or rights to shares is charged to the income
statement as personnel costs on a straight line basis over the period to which the employee's
performance relates and a corresponding amount is reflected in share-based payment reserve in
shareholders’ equity. The charge is calculated as being the fair value of the shares at the date of grant,
reduced by any consideration payable by the employee, and a reasonable expectation of the extent to
which performance criteria will be met.

b} Pension costs

The Group only operates defined contribution pension arrangements. Contributions are charged to the
income statement as employee benefit expense as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
each scheme. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reductior in the
future payments is available.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases {net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise items of equipment only. Equipment is stated at cost less accurnulated
depreciation and impairment losses when appropriate. Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives vary between three and
five years for fixtures and equipment.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted i
appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the cost of licences acquired to conduct business in the United States. The Directors
consider these licences to have indefinite useful lives. Licences are granted for an indefinite period znd are
essential to carry on business. The licences are tested for impairment at each balance sheet date.

Investments — Financial Instruments
The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition the Group determines the category of financial
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instrument and values it accordingly. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments are
acquired.

a) Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets, typically equities or bonds. On initial
recognition, the fair value is the cost including transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition. On
subsequent remeasurement the fair value excludes transaction costs on disposal and represents the
listed bid price. Fair value movements are recognised in equity.

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market other than those that the Group intends to sell in the short term or that it
has designated as at fair value through income or available-for-sale. Receivables arising from insurance
contracts are also classified in this category and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment
review of loans and receivables.

Trade receivables do not carry any interest rate and are measured at the fair value which is their nominal
value less appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. On the initial recognition of loans
the carrying value is determined as the proceeds of the loans less the costs of the transaction which are
amortised over the length of the loan period in accordance with the effective interest method.

The Group has not designated any investments to be held to maturity or to be valued at fair value through profit
and loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Purchases and sales of securities and currencies are recognised on trade date - the date on which the: Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Before evaluating whether, and to what extent, de-recognition of a financial asset or liability is appropriate, the
Group determines whether de-recognition should be applied to only part of the financial asset / liability or group of
financial assets / liabilities. The Group only derecognises a financial asset or liability when the contractual rights
and obligations to the cash flows expire or the financial asset / liabilities are transferred and the Group has also
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Gains and losses on derecognition are recognised through the income statement. Changes in fair value of
available for sale investments, except for foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses which are
recognised in the income statement, are directly recorded in equity until such time that the financial asset is
derecognised.

In the Company’s accounts, investments in Group subsidiaries are stated at net asset value (equity method) with
any movement taken to the Company’'s revaluation reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highily liquid
investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Impairment of assets
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
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estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. In assessing the value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refliects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable in the year and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability methed, on all temporary differences, which are based on
the difference between the financial statement carrying values and the tax bases of assets and liabilities using
enacted income tax rates and laws. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as
probable that they will be utilised against sufficient future taxable income. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extznt that
it is no tonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be ulilised.

The deferred tax that results from unrealised gains and losses on securities classified as available for sale is
recognised in shareholders’ equity along with those unrealised gains and losses.

Current tax payable by any Group company on distribution to the holding company of the undistributed profits of
any subsidiaries is recognised as deferred tax unless the timing of the distribution of those profits is controlled by
the holding company and the temporary difference is not expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

In accordance with |IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes', deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising from the
revaluation of fixed assets even where there is no commitment to sell the asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest methocl.

Provisions
a) Restructuring costs and legal claims

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of cbligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class
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of obligations may be small.
b) Levies

The Group is subject to various insurance-related assessments or guarantee fund levies. Related
provisions are provided for where there is a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of
tax. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments as consideration for the acquisition of
a business are included in the cost of acquisition.

Accounting developments

The International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) issued IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’ on 30 November 2006
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14 ‘Segment Reporting’
and requires the disclosure of financial information about the Group based upon the information used internally to
evaluate the performance of the operating segments and the allocation of resources to those segments. The
directors consider this will not result in significant changes to the current disclosure under IAS 14 ‘Segment
Reporting’. The Group has not early adopted IFRS 8.

The Group has adopted IFRS 7, 'Financial Instruments; Disclosures’ and a complementary amendment tc 1AS 1,
‘Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures’. This results in additional disclosures of the (Group's
risk management policies and the extent to which the Group is exposed to risk.

4 Analysis of risk
Risk management framework
As a global run-off insurance and reinsurance operaticn, the Group is exposed to various types of risk.

The Board of Directors retains overall responsibility for the risk management framework that has been established
to mitigate the Group's exposure to risk and assesses the effectiveness of the controls estahlished to identify,
monitor and mitigate the risks faced by the Group.

The risks that the Group faces include, but are not limited to;

Insurance risk — risk associated with the uncertainty over the likelihcod of an insured event occurrng, the
guantum of the claim, or the time when claims payments will fall due.

Investment and credit risk - risk associated with the Group’s reinsurance arrangements, investment gortfolio,
and other counter party credit risk.

Financial risk — risk associated with possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, foreign exchange rate or cther variable. Also included within financial risk is liquidity risk, the risk
that obligations cannot be met as they become due as a consequence of being unable to readily realise assets to
meet these obligations.

Insurance risk
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Underwriting risk

When it was underwriting insurance business, the Group managed the transfer of insurance risk from its cedants
in a number of ways. Underwriting guidelines governed the products it was willing to sell and the geographical
location in which the risk was located. Before risk was accepted, its impact upon the overall risk profile of the
insurance portfolio was assessed. Underwriting controls included the establishment of limits on underwriting
authority and the monitoring of exposure by industry, geographical region and class of business.

The Group used a variety of reserving and modelling methods to determine the levels of insurance risk ac:epted.
The modelling techniques employed helped the Group to monitor, estimate and control its exposure to natural and
man-made catastrophes. Diversification was sought through the range of products sold and geographical
locations in which business was written.

The Group Underwriting Committee monitored emerging issues that affected its exposure to insurance risk such
as new areas of liability and the impact of major losses.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

The Group takes steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However,
given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be cifferent
from the original liability established.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers any information available
from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods.
Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distorting effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimation of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR") is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty
than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where information about the claim
event is available. An assessment of the liability for future claims is affected not only by the risks inherert in the
perils insured but also by changes that may occur in the legal and judicial environment before claims are settled,
all of which affect the quantum of the claim. Additionally, the practical limits to information flows from insured
parties hampers the estimation of the claim amounts.

For casualty risks, for example, claims may not be apparent to the insured until many years have passed after the
event that gave rise to the claims. The Group’s casualty business was typically written on an occurrence basis,
meaning that the Group is liable for all insured events that occurred during the term of contract, even if the: loss is
discovered after the end of the contract term. Liability claims are therefore natified and settled over a long) period
of time. As a result, for casualty business, a large element of the claims provision relates to IBNR and will {ypically
display greater variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty
of estimating these liabilities.

For property business, the greatest uncertainty arises from catastrophe events, where a single event affects a
large number of contracts. In such cases the Group estimates the IBNR using an exposure methadology,
assessing each programme written by the Group to determine the expected claims in respect of that event.

For property business other than catastrophe, and for casualty business, the IBNR is typically based on a
combination of loss-ratic-based estimates and claims-experience-based estimates, with greater weight given to
actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important assumption in the
estimation technique and is based on a number of factors including previous years' experience, premium rate
changes, market experience and historical claims inflation.

The projections given by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The
most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and
the extent of the development of each underwriting year.

The amount of casualty claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal
precedent on matters of contract and tort. Casualty contracts are also subject to the emergence of new “ypes of
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latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the balance sheet date.

The following table presents the Group's booked gross claims outstanding before claims handling provisions and
before discount as at 31 December 2007 by class of business.

G_engl_'al Motor Workers’ Professional Property MAT' Total

liability comp.
$'million .
1999 and prior 90.9 439 38.5 0.5 75.8 3.1 252.7
2000 25.9 10.6 6.7 13.9 21.2 10.7 89.0
2001 25.1 8.3 2.8 9.8 11.0 16.7 73.7
2002 28.3 7.1 56 19.4 41 58 70.3
2003 30.3 235 1.3 236 53 34 874
2004 33.0 329 4.3 247 3.4 6.6 104.9
2005 14.6 49.2 12.0 24.3 346 29 137.63
Reinsurance .
reserves 248.1 175.5 71.2 116.2 155.4 49.2 815.5
Insurance
reserves 221.7 63.7 100.2 26.4 9.0 - 421.0
Total non-life 2
reserves 469.8 239.2 1714 142.6 164.4 49.2 1,236.5
Life structured settlements 2771
Life reinsurance 91.9
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,605.!§

' Marine, Aviation and Transport

The following table analyses Alea's gross claims outstanding between incurred but not reported (‘IBNR') and case
reserves at 31 December 2007. The insurance and reinsurance splits are in line with the Group's typical business
tail and the relative maturity of the respective books,

Percentage Total
Case reserves 48%
IBNR 52%
Total 100%

Prior year reserve development

The Group's expected loss development is determined by the Group's internal actuaries based on historical
claims analysis and projected trends. Actual reported losses may vary from expected loss develcpment.
Generally, as an underwriting year matures, the level of newly reported claims decreases.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 the Group experienced adverse development in the
reserves, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount of $29.9 million (31 December
2006: adverse reserve development, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount of
$37.6 million).

Net reserve development is determined by netting adverse and positive reserve development. 129.2% of the
negative 2007 reserve development relates to the Group's reinsurance portfolio (2006: 82%). Reinsurance
operations by their nature add further complications to the reserving process, particularly to casualty business,
where there is an inherent lag in the timing and reporting of a loss event from an insured or ceding company to
the reinsurer. This reporting lag creates an even longer period of time between the policy inception and ‘when a
claim is finally settled. As a result, more judgement is required to establish reserves for ultimate losses in
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reinsurance operations.

The following table presents the development of the Group's claims outstanding and ctaims handling eipense
reserves net of reinsurance and before discount for the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 for eact of the
underwriting years indicated. An increase is an adverse run-off deviation and a decrease is a positive run-off
deviation to the provision for claims outstanding, net of reinsurance held at the previous balance sheet date

Increasel/(decrease) in claims outstanding Year ended 31 December 2007
net of reinsurance

$'million Pre-discount  Post discount
Underwriting years 1989 and prior 0.6 7.3
Underwriting year 2000 25 6.0
Underwriting year 2001 6.3 10.3
Underwriting year 2002 10.1 12.3
Underwriting year 2003 12.5 7.1
Underwriting year 2004 (13.7) (13.7)
Underwriting year 2005 4.8 4.3
Total 23.1 34.1

Historical ultimate loss ratios (‘ULR’)

The ULR is an actuarial estimate of total claims to the point of final settlement as a percentage of gross ultimate
premiums. It excludes expenses. The table below shows the ULR as of 31 December 2007 for proportional and
non-proportional US casualty reinsurance, gross of reinsurance and prior to discounting. The Group’s US casualty
reinsurance ULR shown in the table below is the aggregate ULR for Alea North America, Alea London and Alea
Bermuda. The table also shows the aggregate ULR for Alea Europe.

US casualty US casualty Europe

proportional non-proportional
Underwriting year % % %
1995 - 56.0 65.8
1996 101.0 - 746
1997 - - 91.4
1998 19.4 76.4 107.5
1999 156.5 121.2 137.3
2000 125.0 172.9 96.3
2001 86.4 122.9 78.4
2002 73.5 100.2 71.5
2003 65.8 62.0 49.6
2004 62.1 53.2 50.2
2005 70.9 76.7 71.8

Note 25 to the financial statements presents the development of the estimate of ultimate claim cost for policies
underwritten in a given year. This gives an indication of the accuracy of the Group's estimation technique for
ultimate claims payments.

If the gross claims reserve carried in the balance sheet moved by 1% the impact on the income statement and
equity would be a change of $16.1 million (31 December 2006: $19.6 million) on an undiscounted and pre-tax
basis.

Investment and credit risk

Investment risk
The Group’s investment strategy is based on a high quality diversified portfolio of liquid investment grade fixed
income securities as a method of preserving equity capital and prompt claim payment capability.
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The Group uses external investment managers to invest its assets. The Group’'s Investment Committee
establishes investment policies and creates guidelines for external investment managers. These guilelines
specify criteria on the overall credit quality and liquidity characteristics of the portfolio and include limitations on
the size of certain holdings as well as restrictions on purchasing certain types of securities.

The Group's invested assets are subject to interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate risk is concentrated in the
US and Europe and is sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary polices and domestic and
internationa! economic and political conditions. Based on invested assets at external managers of $1,317.2 million
as at 31 December 2007, a 100 basis point increase/decrease in interest rates across the yield curve would result
in an approximate $19.3 million unrealised loss/profit respectively (2006 on invested assets at external managers
of $1,732.7 million a 100 basis point increase/decrease in interest rates across the yield curve would resclt in an
approximate $29.6 million unrealised loss/profit respectively). The entire impact of $19.3 million would be reflected
in equity since all investments are available for sale.

The assets managed by third-party fund managers show the asset mix below. The remaining invested assets of
$202.3 million (2006: $89 million) include predominantly mutual funds invested in fixed income securities.

Asset class 31 December 2007 31 December 2005
in % in %

US government 20 21
US mortgage 15 186
EU and Switzerland government and corporate 15 14
US corporate 10 1"
US municipalities 1 1
Asset backed securities 2 4
Canadian government and provinces 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents . 35 <l
100 100

Financial and insurance liabilities risk
The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk on its insurance reserves and floating rate borrowings.

Where appropriate, reserves are discounted in accordance with existing UK GAAP as permitted by IFRS 4.
Discount rates are based on the expected future cash flow derived from assets established for the payment of
reserves. The Group discounts loss reserves for certain business with a mean term to ultimate claims seitlement
in excess of four years, The majority of such discount applies to casualty business. The unwind of the diszount is
sensitive to the claims payment pattern.

The Group discount rate used is based on the relevant average investment return of the last five years. A
reduction of 0.1% would reduce the net discount in the balance sheet by approximately $1.6 million (2006: $2.1
million} and would negatively impact income statement and equity by the same amount.

The Group has $120 million of trust preferred securities in issue. These securities provide for a preferred dividend
at a rate of three month LIBOR plus 285 basis points.

The Group had $30.0 million cutstanding under its loan facility which was due for repayment on 18 July 2009.
This loan carried an interest margin of 200 basis points over LIBOR and was repaid on 14 January 2008.

Credit risk

When the Group was underwriting, it purchased reinsurance t0 manage its catastrophe exposure and mitigate
insurance risk. However, the ceding of insurance risk exposes the Group to credit risk from its reinsurers and
retrocessionaires.
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The Group selected its reinsurers and retrocessionaires based on price and credit quality and contirues to
monitor them closely over time. It also sought to diversify its business among reinsurers and retrocessionaires and
required collateral where deemed prudent to do so. Thus, the use of maximum limits for credit exposure to any
one counter party was an effective method for mitigating credit risk.

The Group required that at the time of purchase all reinsurers and retrocessionaires had a minimum credit rating
of A-, unless high quality collateral is provided.

Additionally, the Group is subject to credit risk in respect of third party companies in which the Group holis debt
securities issued by those companies. As a consequence of the established investment policies and in order to
mitigate investment risk, apart from $3.3 million rated BBB, all of the Group's fixed income portfolio was ratad A or
better and 85.3% (31 December 2006: 93.7%) was rated AA or better. The portfolio had a weighted zverage
rating of AAA based on ratings assigned by Standard & Poor's or Moody’s. Other than with respect to US,
Canadian and Eurcpean Union government and agency securities, the Group's investment guidelines limit its
aggregate exposure to any single issuer to 5% of its portfolio. All securities must be rated A or better at the time of
purchase and the weighted average rating requirement of the Group's portfolio is AAA. There were no investment
write-offs in either 2007 or 2006. The following table illustrates the split of total debt securities by rating of
investee.

Credit Rating of investee Debt security investment Debt security investment
as at 31 December 2007 as at 31 December 2006
in % in %
AAA f US Government or
equivalent 748 821
AA 10.5 1.6
A 144 6.3
BBB or lower 0.3 -
Total 100.0 100.0

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s largest aggregate exposure to any single issuer other than with respect to the
United States, Canadian and European government and agency securities was $23.4 million (31 December 2006:
$27.2 million} in respect of General Electric Corporation and various subsidiary companies.

Depending upon the duration of the liabilities supported by a particular portfolio, the Group’s portfolio investment
duration targets may range from one to three years. The duration of an investment is based on the maturity of the
security and also reflects the payment of interest and the possibility of early principal payment of such security.
The Group seeks to utilise investment benchmarks that reflect this duration target. The Investment Committee
periodically revises the Group's investment benchmarks based on business and economic factors inclucling the
average duration of the Group’s patential liabilities.

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s investment portfolioc had an effective duration of 1.5 years (31 December
2006: 1.7 years). The Group has shortened duration targets on its investment portfolios to ensure that sufficient
liquidity will be available to execute the commutation strategy and to reflect the greater uncertainty now inherent in
the duration of its liabilities with this commutation strategy.

Analysis by credit rating of all financial assets (impaired, past due, neither past due nor impaired):

As at 31 December 2007

AAA AA A BBB Collater- Equities Not Non Tot:

and alised rated financial

below asset
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'00(
Property, plant and equipment . . - - - - - 4,487 448
Intangible assots - - - - - - - 8,479 8,47
Deferred acquisition costs - - . . . - . 2,323 2,3:

Financlal assets - avallable for sale

securitles 1,021,401 143,186 197,107 3,346 - 165 - - 1,365,2(
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Loans and recelvables Including insurance 36,134 45477 72,805 5176 12,396 - 101,710 s 2737
recaivables ' ' ' ' d ! !
Deferred tax assets - - - - - B B 1,034 1,02
Reinsurance contracts 22,886 315,401 83,908 1,980 62,164 - 60,464 546,8(
Cash and cash equivalents 51,711 78,781 23,611 88 - - 62 154,28
Total assets 1,132,132 582,845 77,429 10,590 74,560 165 162,236 16,332 2,256,2¢

As at 31 December 2006
AAA AR A BBB Collater- Equities Not Non Tot
and alised rated financial
below asset
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'00(
Property, plant and eguipment - - - - - 6,368 6,30
Intangible assets - - - - - 8,479 8,47
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - - 3,506 3,50
Financial assets - available for sale
sacuritios 1,384,728 188,540 110,707 - - 198 365 - 16B4 53
Loans and receivables including insurance
recalvables 40,310 24,504 135,981 11,909 6,903 - 221072 282 440,96
Deferred tax assets - . - - - 1,154 1,15
Reinsurance contracts 40,202 306,648 121,273 2,506 356,814 - 38,032 - 883,47
Cash and cash equivalents 42,160 111,130 1,973 498 - - 1,459 - 157,22
Total assets 1,487,400 630,822 368,934 14,913 263,717 198 258,929 19,819  3,145,73

Analysis by credit rating of assets that were neither past due nor impaired at the balance sheet date:

As at 31 December 2007

AAA AA A BBB Collater- Equities Not Non Tot:
and alised rated financial
below asset
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'00(
Property, plant and equipment - - - - 4,487 4,48
Intangible assets - - - - - 8,479 8,47
Deferred acqulisition costs - . - - - 2,323 2,3
Financla! assets - available for sale 1,021,401 143,188 197,107 3,346 - 168 - 1,365,
Loans and receivables including Insurance
raceivables 31,606 44,914 69,730 4,562 12,397 - 71,474 9 224 6f
Deferred tax assets - B - - - - 1,034 1,02
Relnsurance contracts 22,886 315,403 83,907 1,468 62,165 - 53,254 539,0t
Cash and cash equivalents 51,711 78,781 23,611 88 - - 62 154,2¢
Total assets 1,127,604 582,284 374,355 9,464 74,562 165 124,790 16,332 2,309,5¢
As at 31 December 2006
AAA AA A BBB Collater- Equities Not Non Tot:
and alised rated financial
below asset
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'00(
Property, plant and equipment . . - - - 6,398 6,39
Intangible assets - - - - - 8,479 8,47
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - 3,508 3,50
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securities 1,364,728 188,540 110,708 198 387 1,664,53
Loans and receivables including Insurance :

receivables 40,242 23,782 120,242 10,654 6,803 196,633 282 398,74
Deferred tax assets 1,154 1,15
Reinsurance contracts 40,202 306,648 121,273 2,506 356,814 25,168 852,61
Cash and cash equivalents 42,180 111,130 1,873 407 1,462 157,22
Total assets 1,487,332 830,100 354,184 13,657 383,717 188 223,634 19,819 3,092,65

Analysis of impaired and past due assets
In performing its assessment of which assets should be impaired, the Group considers reinsurer ratings, the
existence of notified disputes and historical collection experience.

The following table presents financial assets that were impaired, or past due but not impaired at the end of the

year.

As at 31 December 2007

0-3 44 79 10-12 More Impatred Total  Meither Total
months months months months  than 12 past due assets
pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue months nor
past due Impaired
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 4,487 4,487
Intangible assets - - - - - - 8,479 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - - 2,323 2,323
Financial assets - available for sale
securities - - - - 4,365,205 1,365,205
Loans ane racelvables Including Insurance 2000 2,016 . 836 22,226 11,937 30,015 234692 273,707
Deferrad tax assets - - - - - 1,034 1,034
Reinsurance contracts . - 7,718 7,718 539,083 546,801
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 154,253 154,253
Total assets 2,000 2,016 - 8316 22,226 19,655 46,733 2,309,556 2,356,289
As at 31 December 2006
0-3 4-6 79 10-12 More Impaired Total  Neither Total
months months months months  than 12 past due astiets
past due pastdue pastdue pastdue months nor
past due impalred
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $(00
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 6,398 6 398
Intangible assets - - - - - - B.479 8479
Deforred acquisition costs - - - - - - 3,506 3506
Financial assets - available for sale
securities - - - - - - 1,664,539 1,664,539
L‘:::;::;’l ::ce'“b'“ including insurance 4,167 389 79 15,480 7.890 14,182 42,217 398,744 440,961
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 1,154 1,154
Reinsurance contracts - - 1,400 9,484 10,864 B52611 B63 475
Cash and cash equivalents B B - - 157,220 157,220
Total assets 4,197 3ss 79 15,480 9,280 23646 53,081 3,002,651 3,145,732

As at 31 December 2007 $35.3 million of assets were subject to a valuation allowance in respect of impairment
(2006: $39.8 million). As at 31 December 2007, after deducting the impairment provision of $15.6 million {2006
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$16.2 million) the impaired assets had a carrying value of $19.7 million (2006: $23.6 million).
Collateral pledged to and by the Group

The following table shows balance sheet carrying value of collateral pledged by the Group as a result of its
underwriting activities:

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $°000

Carrying value of financial assets pledged to insured 1,009,808 1,150,211

parties as collateral for liabilities

The financial assets have been pledged as collateral under the following terms and conditions:

Alea London Limited has written regulated US business and has as a result been required to provide a
collateralised Trust Fund in respect of outstanding claims relating to this business. Collateral is provided in the
form of cash and approved investments in accordance with the terms of the trust deed. The total amount of
collateral provided at 31 December 2007 was $63.1 million (2006: $67.1 million). In addition Alea London Limited
maintains letter of credit ("LOC") facilities in respect of its previous underwriting activities and is oblijed to
collateralise any LOCs issued under these facilities. The total amount of collateral provided at 31 December 2007
under these treaties was $136.7 million (2006 $169.4 million). Atea London Limited has SICAV investments of
$7.7 million (2006: $6.9 million) pledged as security for reinsurance obligations. Alea London Limited also has
other restricted deposits of $0.4 million (2006: $2.5 million).

Alea Europe Ltd maintains LOC facilities in respect of its previous underwriting and is obliged to collateralise any
LOCs issued under these facilities. The total amount of collateral provided at 31 December 2007 was 1$136.1
million (2006: $131.7 million). The amount held in trust for the benefit of holders of North American policies is
$68.6 million (2008: $63.9 million). Additionally, Alea Europe Ltd holds a permanent amendment to irrevocable
standby LOC of $3.8 million (2006: $7.9 million) in favour of its cedents. Alea Europe Ltd has SICAV invesiments
of $50.8 million (2008: $48.7 million) pledged as security for reinsurance obligations.

Alea (Bermuda) Ltd has pledged collateral in the form of various LOCs totalling $9.5 million {2006. $42.4 million)
which are held as cash and invested assets in designated collateral accounts. Other coliateral pledged totalling
$106.9 million (2006; $142.2 million) is in respect of quota share policies written by Alea (Bermuda) Ltd for
Lumberman's and Alea North America Specialty Insurance Company. The collateral is pledged in form of trust
accounts. Additionally Collateral of $176.2 million (2006: $197.5 million) is pledged in form of a trust account for
the benefit of Alea North America Insurance company.

Alea North American Insurance Company has pledged assets consisting of LOCs, trust funds and cash totalling
$116.3 million (2006: $140.8 million). LOCs are automatically extended without amendment for a period of one
year following the expiration date. Alea North American Insurance Company also has securities on deposit at
various state regulators totalling $133.7 million {2006: $129.2 million).

The fair value of collateral pledged to the Group as a result of its underwriting activities:

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000

Fair value of collateral held by the Group that can be
sold or repledged regardless of whether the owner of 94,690 217,463
the collateral defaults
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Fair value of any such collateral scld or repledged - -

Carrying amount of any assets obtained by taking
possession of collateral held as security 48,748 66,8053

Alea Europe Ltd received an LOC from SCOR SA Paris in respect of the renewal rights transaction. The LOC was
cancelled in 2007. At 31 December 2006 the LOC amounted to $ 20.0 million.

Alea North American Insurance Company holds collateral as security for claims due from third-parties of $94.7
million (2006: $197.5 million) which consists of funds held in trust and LOCs.

Alea (Bermuda) Ltd, holds collateral in respect of certain reinsurance recoverables in the form of $15.5 million of
LOCs (2006: $17.0 million), $2.5 million of cash collateral (2006: $2.3 million} and $30.3 million of funds writhheld
(2006; $47.5 million), and generally has the right to hold this collateral remains until commutation or a mutual
agreement to decrease the collateral.

Impairment provision analysis

The following impairment provisions have been made against reinsurance contracts with the credit ratings
indicated:

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $'000

AAA - {1649)
AA - (866)
A - -
BBB and below - -
Not rated (1,050) (15)
(1,050) (1,050

The following impairment provisions have been made against debtors arising out of insurance operations ‘with the
credit ratings indicated:

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $°000

AAA - -
AA - -
A - .
BBB and below - -
Not rated {1,459) {1,893)
{1,459) {1,893)

The fallowing impairment provisions have been made against debtors arising out of reinsurance operations with
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the credit ratings indicated:

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 20055
$'000 $'000
AAA {2) -
AA (186) (41)
A (249) (744)
BBB and below (509) {(177)
Not rated (12,105) (12,310)
(13,051) (13,272)
The following table analyses the movements in the impairment provisions:
Impairment
Provisions
$'000
At 1 January (18,432)
Amounts written off (357)
Recoveries on assets previously written off 37
Net exchange differences 2,537
At 31 December 2006 {16,215)
Amounts written off (659)
Recoveries cn assets previously written off 1673
Net exchange differences (319)
At 31 December 2007 {15,560)

Financial risk

The Group is subject to several types of financial risk. The most significant of these is the risk that at any given
date, the proceeds from realising the financial assets of the Group may be insufficient to meet the financial
obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The Group is also exposed to risk as a result of changes i foreign
currency and interest rates. Another significant risk relates to the liquidity of the Group.

Asset and liability mismatch risk

In order to ensure that adequate liquid resources are available to fund insurance liability cash outflows when they
fall due, the Group's practice is to invest in assets matching the currency and duration of the expected related
liabilities.

Currency risk
The Group reports its results in US Dollars and accordingly, to the extent that shareholders’ funds are invested in
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assets denominated in currencies other than US Dollars, exchange gains or losses may arise on translation.

The Group controls its currency risk by investing in assets that match the currency in which it expects related
liabilities to be paid and by investing the majority of assets backing shareholder funds in US Dollars. The
Directors consider the revaluation gains and losses arising from the revaluation of non-functional currencies that
impact the income statement and equity to be insignificant.

The Group estimates that its net exposure to currencies is as follows:

As at 31 December 2007
Functional Currencies in $ ‘000

UsoD AUD GBP CHF Euro Subtotal

330,730 21,204 440 (22,177) 50,560 380,757
Non-Functional Currencies

GBP Euro SEK DKK JPY CAD Other Subtotal Total
27,466 22,850 (6,8086) (4,753) {4,569) 25,430 {12,336) 47 282 428,039

Functional Currencies in %

usD AUD GBP CHF Euro Subtotal

77.3 5.0 0.1 (5.2) 11.8 89.0
Non-Functional Currencies in %

GBP Euro SEK DKK JPY CAD Other Subtotal Total
6.4 5.3 (1.6) (1.1) (1.1) 5.9 -2.8 11.0 100.9

As at 31 December 2006
Functional Currencies in $ ‘000

usD AUD GBP CHF Euro Subtotal

410,689 7,965 3,267 (21,983) 47,545 447 493
Non-Functional Currencies

GBP Euro SEK DKK JPY CAD Other Subtotal Total

25,196 16,792 (15,548) (265) (4,626) 20,356 (5,257) 36,648 484,141

Functional Currencies in %

usD AUD GBP CHF Euro Subtotal

84.8 1.6 0.7 {4.5) 9.8 924
Non-Functional Currencies in %

GBP Euro SEK DKK JPY CAD Other Subtotal Total
5.2 3.5 (3.2} (0.1) (1.0) 4.2 (1.0) 7.6 100.0

A positive percentage arises when assets exceed liabilities denominated in that currency while a negative
percentage arises when liabilities exceed assets.

The translation gains and losses of functional currencies are recognised as a separate component of equity where
as the gains and losses arising from the translation of non-functiona! currencies are recorded in the income
statement.

Included within this currency analysis are net non-monetary assets which equate to 2.8% of the Group's net
assets.
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Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that obligations cannot be met as they become due as a consequence of not being
able to readily realise assets to meet these obligations.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s holding company had in place a $30.0 million bank term loan which was
due for repayment on 18 July 2009. This loan carried an interest margin of 200 basis points over LIBOR and was
repaid on 14 January 2008. Under the terms of the Group's bank credit agreement there were two financial
covenants which required that the Group maintained a minimum adjusted consolidated tangible net wortt and a
minimum debt-to-total-capitalisation ratio. If the Group were to breach either one of these covenants, the lenders
would have had the right to demand early repayment of the loan in advance of the scheduled repayment date of
18 July 2009.

In December 2004 and January 2005, the Group issued a total of $120.0 milion of hybrid trust preferred
securities. These securities were issued through trusts established by Alea Holdings US Company a subsidiary of
the Group holding company. The margin on these securities was unaffected by the credit rating downgraces and
remains at LIBOR plus 285 basis points. The securities have a fixed maturity of 30 years, are callable after five
years, and allow for a deferral of quarterly coupons for up to five years.

The following table analyses the contractual maturity dates of the undiscounted liabilities carried on the Group's
balance sheet.

As at 31 December 2007 Undiscounted
On One to Threeto  Over five Total Discount on Tatal
demand three five years years  undiscounted Insurance discounied
and within years liabilities contract liabilit es
one year liabllities
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 374,225 417,139 183,463 642,605 1,617,432 {67,541} 1,549,691
Borrowings - 30,000 - 117,785 147,785 - 147,785
Provisions 1,955 543 339 - 2,837 - 2,637
Other liabilities and charges 29,119 4,116 - - 33,235 - 33,235
Trade and other payables €5,707 42,766 35,489 41,779 191,741 - 191,741
Current income tax liabllities 2,761 - - - 2,761 - 2,761
Total liabilities 473,767 494,564 219,291 808,169 1,985,791 {67,541) 1,928,.!50
As at 31 December 2006 Undiscounted
On One to Three to Over five Total Discount on Total
demand three five years  undiscounted Insurance discounted
and years years liabilities contract liabilities
within liabilities
one year
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'0c0
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 355,535 454,445 232,688 1,004,701 2,047,369 {(105,855) 1,941,514
Borrowings 200,000 - - 117,257 317,267 - MT2HT
Provisions 3,433 1,497 543 &8 5,241 - 5,241
Other liabilities and charges 38,545 2,409 - - 40,854 - 40,884
Trade and other payables 54,379 89,119 43,069 168,139 355,606 - 355,806
Current Income tax liabilities 1,009 - - - 1,008 . 1,009
Total liabilities 852,901 547170 277,200 1,280,175 2,757,446 {105,855} 2,661,541
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Capital risk management

The total amount of capital managed by the Group is $537.4 miflion (2006: $593.4 million). The Group considers
its managed capital to consist of net tangible assets of $419.6 million (2006: $475.7 million) and the trust
preferred securities of $117.8 million (2006: $117.7 million).

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Group’s capital structure on a regular basis with the aim of
selecting a debt-to-equity ratio that maximises return to shareholders. As at 31 December 2007 the debt-to-equity
ratio was 26% (2006: 40%).

The main aim of the Group’s capital management strategy is to free-up excess capital which can be reinvested in
the business or returned to shareholders consistent with holding sufficient capital in each insurance operating
entity to meet regulatory requirements. The Group has been in run-off since the fourth quarter 2005 and has
conducted its operations in accordance with this strategy.

There have been no changes in the Group’s capital management policies since the previous period.

As at 31 December 2007 the Group was required to hold sufficient capital to meet the conditions of the bank loan
covenant in respect of the $30.0 million term loan. Subsequent to 31 December 2007 the Group repaid tris term
loan and is no longer subject to this capital requirement.

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements in respect of all entities that previously wrote
insurance and reinsurance business. These requirements, which have been complied with during the year, are
enforced within the individual locations and are detailed below.

Alea London Limited is regulated by the UK Financial Services Authority (*FSA"). It is required by the FSA to
submit an annual statement of solvency and to hold capital resources in excess of its capital resources
requirement.

Alea North America Insurance Company is regulated by the New York Insurance Department (*NYID"). 1t is
required by the NYID to submit an annual risk based capital statement and to hold total adjusted capital in excess
of the Company Action Level which is 200% of its Authorized Contro! Level Risk-Based Capital.

Alea (Bermuda) Limited is regulated by the Bermuda Monetary Authority (“BMA"). It is required by the BMA to
submit an annual statutory financial return and to hold statutory capital and surplus in excess of its minimum
solvency margin.

Alea Europe is regulated by the Swiss Federal Office of Private Insurance (*FOPI"). A Swiss reinsurer must
maintain available own funds at the level of the required solvency margin, which is calculated by referencz to the
business volume (Solvency 1). Additionally, the reinsurer must maintain its target capital which is defined as the
sum of the expected shortfall of change in risk-bearing capital within one year at the 99% confidence level plus
the market value margin, as required by the Swiss Solvency Test (Solvency 2).

The Group has embedded its capital management processes into its normal planning, reporting and decision
making activities.

5 Net realised losses on sale of renewal rights

Alea London Alea North Alea Europe Total
Limited America Limited
Insurance
Company
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Year ended 31 December 2007 - (1,880) 157 (1,723)
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Year ended 31 December 2006 (800) (5,164) 944 (5,020}

The Group completed three renewal rights transactions in the fourth quarter of 2005. These were accounted for
as net realised gains on sale of renewal rights of $61.1 million, which was recognised in the year ended 31
December 2005, and represented the Directors’ valuation at fair value of the business sold. in determining the fair
market value of renewal rights sales, the Board considered the prior production and growth of the businesses
sold, external projections and a recent assessment of the businesses sold. The fair market value of the renewal
rights is regularly evaluated hy the Board based cn available data.

In the year ended 31 December 2007 a charge of $1.7 million was recognised in respect of the renewal rights
transactions (year ended 31 December 2006 charge of $5.0 million). These amounts reflect the necessary
changes to the fair value which is based on the latest financial data available. These amounts reflect the
discounted estimated future cash flows arising from specified percentages of applicable commissionable
premiums written over the applicable period in accordance with sale contracts.

The gains were calculated as the fair value of consideration receivable ($54.4 million). The Group has received
payments to 31 December 2007 of $22.6 million (31 December 2006: $20.9 million). The remaining balance of
$31.8 million (31 December 2006 $35.2 million} is included within loans and receivables including insurance
receivables and consists of $29.6 million owed by AmTrust and $2.2 million owed by Canopius. The non-current
portion of the receivable at 31 December 2007 is $29.6 million (31 December 2006: $33.7 million).

These amounts represent the Directors’ best estimates of the risk adjusted future receipts discounted at 4.5%.
These receipts are dependent upon the future levels of business generated on renewal in relation to the: rights
sold over differing time periods as specified in the sale contracts. A 10% deviation of the projected rerewals
would resultin a change in receivable of $3.92 million.

The directors consider that the receivable is collectable based upon an assessment of credit rating of AmTrust
and Canopius.

6 Restructuring costs

In 2005, the Group announced its intention to run-off all remaining property and casualty business. Those fixed
assets not subject to renewal rights agreements and not required for the run-off operations have been written
down to their residual value. Redundancy costs have been incurred in Connecticut. A restructuring provision has
been established for employees in London, Basel and Zug. This provision included estimated expenses for future
redundancy payments for employees who cannot be redeployed in the new structure. The provision also
contained estimated expenses with regards to onerous contracts. Onerous contracts are operating leases in
respect of any premises that are expected to be vacated as part of the restructuring. The provision was
established based on a run-off plan approved by the Board of Directors. Other costs are included in the claims
handling provisions.

Year ended 31 December 2007
AleaUK AleaUS pjo, Europe Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision .
established based on run-off plan 1,245 326 ) 1,571
Total restructuring costs 1,245 326 - 1,57
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Year ended 31 December 2006
Alea UK AleaUS pjp, Europe Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision

. 1 4,135 2,285 - 6,430
established based on run-off plan
Reversal of estimated restructuring provision due to ) ) (2.843) (2,843)
redundancies in other entities *
Reversal of estimated restructuring provision related to - (2,500) - {2,500)
onerous contracts 2
Total restructuring costs 4,135 {205) (2,843) 1,087

! In order to execute the run-off plan, the Group reassessed where centres of competency should be located
geographically. This resulted in revisions being made to the locations of where staff were retained and
consequently additional severance payments were incurred by Alea London and Alea North America whist Alea
Europe was able to reverse an element of the restructuring provision previously established.

2 Restructuring costs also include a credit of $2.5 million which results from Alea North America’s sublease of its
empty offices in Wilton and a resulting reversal of part of the previously recognised provision for cnerous
contracts.

7 Segmental information

Primary segment information - operating results by operating segment

The Group managed and conducted its business through four principal operating segments represe:nting
London market business, North American business including alternative risk transfer and reinsurance,
Continental European reinsurance and financial services - the central investment operation.

The operating result of each of these operating segments before the impact of intra-group quota share
arrangements is shown below.

Year ended 31 December Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
2007 London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross Premiums Wiitten 2,690 (5,801) 15,794 - - 12,683
Revenue
Net insurance premium )
revenue 9,003 (4,189) 17,545 - 22,359
Fee income - 138 1,811 - - 1,949
Investment income - - - 73,089 - 73,089
Net realised losses on ) )
financial assets - (1,310) - (1,310)
Net realised gains on sale of i i
subsidiary - - - -
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Net realised losses on sale of

renewal rights ) {1,880) 157 - - (1,723)
Total revenue 9,003 (5,931) 19,513 71,779 - 94,364
Expenses
Net insurance claims (15,264) (41,741) (22,151) - - (79,158)
Acquisition costs (4,910) {2,070) (3,299) - - {10,279)
Other operating expenses (14,624) {25,188) (13,544) - (6,388) (59,742)
Restructuring costs (1,245) (326) - - - {1.571)
Total expenses (36,043) (69,323) (38,994) - (6,388) (150,748)
Results of operating activities (27,040) (75,254) (19,481) 71,779 (6,388) {56,384)
Finance costs - - - (21,696) - (21,696)
{Loss)lprofit before income (27,040)  (75.254)  (18,481) 50,083 (6,388)  (78,080)
Income tax expense - - - - (100) {100)
{Loss)/profit for the period (27,040) (75.254) (19,481) 50,083 (6,488) {(78,180)

Year ended 31 December Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total

2006 London North Europe  Financial  allocated

America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Gross Premiums Written 21,247 (102,368) 6,202 - - {74,919)

Revenue

Net insurance premium

revenue 129,312 61,973 24631 - - 215,916

Fee income 502 2,641 - - - 3,143

Investment income - - - 94,821 - 94,821

Net realised losses on

financial assets - - - {2,500) - (2,500)

Net realised gains on sale of

subsidiary - 4,336 - - - 4336

Net realised (losses)/gains on

sale of renewal rights (800) (5,164) 044 - - (5,020

Total revenue 129,014 63,786 25,575 92,321 - 310,696

Expenses

Net insurance claims {85,795) (58,285) (12,612) - - {156,692)

Acquisition cosis (38,292) (23,466) (7,534) - - {69,292)

Other operating expenses (18,288} (29,148) {15,032) - (4,087) {66,555)

Restructuring (costs)/releases (4,135) 205 2,843 - - {1,087)

Total expenses {146,510) (110,694) (32,335) - (4,087) (293,626)

Results of operating

activities {17,496) (46,908) (6,760) 92,321 {4,087) 17,070

Finance costs - - - (24,407) - {24,407)
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(Loss)/profit before income

tax (17,496) (46,908) (6,760) 67,914 (4,087) (7,337)
Income tax credit - - - - 6,502 6,502
{Loss)/profit for the period {17,496) {(46,908) (8,760} 67,914 2,415 (835)

Other segment charges included in the income statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2007 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non -
London North Europe Financial allocated Total
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Depreciation (note 18) 1,268 976 290 - i 2,534

Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision

established based on run-off plan {note 6) 1,245 326 ) ' ) 1.571
Total restructuring costs 1,245 326 - - - 1,571
Year ended 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non -

London North Europe Financial allocated Total

America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000)

Depreciation (note 18) 1,912 1,792 438 - ) 4,142
Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision ; ) )
established based on run-off plan (note 6) 4135 2,295 6,430
Reversal of estimated restructuring provisicn due to
redundancies in other entities (note 6} ) B (2,843) ) - (2843)
Estimated restructuring costs (note 6) - {2,500} - - - (2,500)
Total restructuring costs 4135 (205) {2,843) - - 1,08'.;

The Group had various intra-group quota share arrangements between the following legal companies Alea
London Limited, Alea {Bermuda) Ltd, Alea North America Insurance Company, Alea North America Specialty
Insurance Company (collectively Alea US) and Alea Europe Ltd. The impact of intra-group quota share
arrangements on operating result with regard to these legal entities are shown and explained below.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 intra-group quota share arrangements comprise a 50% quota share of
certain 2000 and prior underwriting year business from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda and a 70% quota share of
Alea North America Insurance Company to Alea Bermuda.

For the year ended 31 December 2006 intra group quota share arrangements comprise a 50% quota share of
certain 2000 and prior underwriting year business from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda and a 70% quota share ol
Alea US to Alea Bermuda. A 35% quota share of Alea London business to Alea Europe was commuted as at 30
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September 20086,

The effects of all of these arrangements are detailed below:

Year ended 31 December 2007 Alea Alea Alea Alea Total
Lendon Bermuda us Europe
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net insurance premium revenue 9,003 760 (4,949) 17,545 22,359
Intercompany reinsurance - 16,265 (16,827) 562 -
Net insurance premium revenue
after intercompany reinsurance 9,003 17,025 (21,776) 18,107 22,3549
Underwriting result 1
Before intercompany reinsurance (27,040) {30,520} (49,242) (19,638) (126,440)
After intercompany reinsurance (28,738) {56,949} (30,275) (10,478) (126,440)
Year ended 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Total
London Bermuda us Europe
$'000 $£'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net insurance premium revenue 129,312 4,099 57,874 24,631 215,916
Intercompany reinsurance (31,313) 39,345 {39,534) 31,502 -
Net insurance premium revenue
after intercompany reinsurance 97,999 43 444 18,340 56,133 215916
Underwriting result !
Before intercompany reinsurance (16,697) {21,548) (28,618) {7,704) (74,567)
After intercompany reinsurance (11,886) {23,968) (37,185) {1,528) (74,567)

! Results of operating activities excluding investment income, net realised gains on financial assets, net r2alised

gains on sale of subsidiary and intangible assets and net realised gains on sale of renewal rights.

Primary segment information — balance sheet by operating segment

The Group managed and conducted its business through four principal operating segments representing London
market business, North American business including alternative risk transfer and reinsurance, Continental
European reinsurance and financial services - the central investment operation. The balance sheet of each of
these operating segments before the impact of intra-group quota share arrangements is shown below:;

As at 31 December 2007 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment 610 3,581 296 - - 4,487
Intangible assets - 8,479 - - - 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs 47 - 2,276 - - 2,323

Financial assets
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Equity securities

- available for sale - - - 165 - 165

Debt securities

- available for sale - - - 1,365,040 - 1,365,040
Loans and receivables
including insurance 41,223 112,847 17,812 101,825 - 273,707
receivables
Deferred tax assets - - - - 1,034 1,034
Reinsurance contracts 158,294 104,420 284,087 - - 546,801
Cash and cash
equivalents - - - 154,253 - 154,253
Total assets 200,174 229,327 304,471 1,621,283 1,034 2,356,289
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 462,322 445 512 642,057 - - 1,549,891
Borrowings - - - 147,785 - 147,785
Provisions - 1,154 1,683 - - 2.837
Other liabilities and
charges 8,092 21,515 3,628 - - 33,235
Trade and other payables 68,738 72,464 50,539 - - 191,741
Current income tax
liabilities ) ) ) ) 2,761 2.761
Total liabilities 539,152 540,645 697,907 147,785 2,761 1,928,250
Net assets 428,039
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity
holders
Share capital 1,738
Other reserves 709,455
Retained loss (283,154)
Total equity 428,029
As at 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total

London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment 1,798 4221 379 - - 6,398
Intangible assets - 8,479 - - - 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs 420 (37) 3,123 - - 3.5086
Financial assets

Equity securities

- available for sale - - - 198 - 198

Debt securities

- available for sale - - - 1,664,341 - 1,664,341
Loans and receivables
including insurance 85,497 103,258 113,965 138,241 - 440,961

receivables
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Deferred tax assets - - - - 1,154 1,154
Reinsurance contracts 315,180 256,178 292,117 - - 863,475
Cash and cash . ; ; 157,220 - 157,220
equivalents
Total assets 402,895 372,099 409,584 1,960,000 1,154 3,145,732
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 623,259 634,340 683,915 - - 1,941,514
Borrowings - - - 317,267 - 317,267
Provisions 2,139 1,425 1,677 - - 5241
Other liabilities and
charges 5,795 3677 3,482 - - 40,954
Trade and other payables 118,984 80,631 145,991 - - 355,606
Current income tax i . . - 1,009 1,009
liabilities
Total liabilities 750,177 758,073 835,065 317,267 1,009 2,661,591
Net assets 484141
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity
holders
Share capital 1,738
Other reserves 687,377
Retained loss (204,974)
Total equity 484,141

The capital expenditures (see also note 18) are as follows:

Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Year ended 31 December 2007 54 337 256 - - 647
Year ended 31 December 2006 473 263 - - - 736

Secondary segment information - geographical analysis
The following provides an analysis of gross premiums written by location of insured and by location of legzl entity
accepting the risk, and of (loss)/profit before tax by legal entity accepting risk.

Geaographical analysis of gross premiums written by location of insured

Year ended

31 December
2007

$'000

Year ended
31 December
2006

$000
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Europe 8,495 (257)
Africa 18 {28)
Near & Middle East 28 (108}
Far East 17 181
Australia & Oceania 172 (36)
North America 3,914 (76,329)
Latin America 39 1,728

12,683 {74,919)
Geographical analysis by location of legal entity
Gross premiums written (Loss)/profit before tax

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year encled

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Bermuda 613 1,735 (43,011) {8,176)
Jersey - 74 - (1,66}
United Kingdom 2,593 20,973 (9,272) 5,958
United States (6,415) {104,102} (28,214) {24,570}
Switzerland 15,892 6,401 2,417 21,057
12,683 (74,919) (78,080) (7,337}

Geographical analysis by location of legal entity

Carrying value of assets

Additions to property, plant

and equipment

As at As at Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2005
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Bermuda 796,896 1,135,396 20 -
Jersey - - - -
United Kingdom 512,483 659,344 54 473
United States 408,889 578,450 317 263
Switzerland 638,021 772,542 256 -
2,356,289 3,145,732 647 735
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
Operating equity and shareholders' equity interests $'000 $'000
Alea Europe Lid 239,330 230,660
Alea (Bermuda) Ltd ' 134,703 226,651
Alea US 230,359 241,491
Amounts held in Holding Companies (25,054) 103,703
Amounts held in non-insurance subsidiaries {2,514) (1,097)
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Note provided by Alea Europe Ltd to Alea US
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575,824 801,408
Amounts owed to credit institutions (30,000) (199,574}
Trust preferred securities (117,785) (117,69%)
Shareholders' funds attributable to equity interests 428,039 484 141
! Atea London Limited is wholly owned by Alea (Bermuda) Ltd has net assets as follows:
As at As st
31 December 31 December
2007 2005
$'000 $'000
Alea London Limited 81,827 87,954
8 Investment income
Year ended Year encled
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Financial assets - available for sale:
- Interest income from debt securities 67,070 86,537
Cash and cash equivalents interest income 6,019 8,284
73,089 94,21
9 Net realised losses on financial assets
Year ended Year encled
31 December 31 Decemler
2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Realised gains on financial assets - available for sale 281 4,700
Realised losses on financial assets - available for sale {1,591) (7,.200)
{1,310) (2,500)

10 Sale of subsidiary
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Alea North America Specialty Insurance Company

Alea North America Insurance Company (*ANAIC") sold its Delaware excess and surplus lines carrier, Alea North
America Specialty Insurance Company (“ANASIC”} to Insurance Corporation of Hannover, a member company of
Praetorian Financial Group, Inc. on 29 September 2006. ANAIC received a cash payment of $34.7 million
representing $4 million plus the statutory policyholders’ surplus of ANASIC as at date of sale. The Group
recognised in its IFRS accounts a net realised gain on the sale of $4.3 millien in 2006.

On the date of the sale, the Group's Alea (Bermuda) Ltd affiliate assumed 100% of all business written by
ANASIC prior to the closing date. The obligations under the agreements are supported by a guarantee: of the
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Company.
As at As at
31 December 29 September
2007 2005
$'000 $'000
ASSETS
Deferred acquisition costs - 45
Financial assets
Debt securities
- available for sale - 25,532
Loans and receivables including insurance receivables - 2,853
Reinsurance contracts - 9,487
Cash and cash equivatents - 4,477
Total assets - 42,394
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts - 11,769
Other liabilities and charges - 177
Trade and other payables - 58
Total liabilities - 12,004
Net Assets - 30,390
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary - 4,336
Total net consideration - 34.725_
The total consideration was satisfied in cash.
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration - 34,726
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of - (4,477)
Total net cash inflow on disposal - 30,245

11 Movement in prior year provision for insurance claims, net of reinsurance
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The table below presents amounts included in incurred claims arising from the movement in the prior year
provision for claims outstanding net of reinsurance. An increase is an adverse run-off deviation and a decrease is
a positive run-off deviation to the provision for claims outstanding, net of reinsurance held at the previous halance
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sheet date.
Year ended Year ended
34 December 31 December
2007 2006
Increasel/(decrease) in claims outstanding net of reinsurance before , '
discount $°000 $'000
Underwriting years 1999 and prior 608 (3,247)
Underwriting year 2000 2,475 1,465
Underwriting year 2001 6,298 5,1€4
Underwriting year 2002 10,072 5770
Underwriting year 2003 12,546 (1,465)
Underwriting year 2004 (13,677) (26,8413)
Underwriting year 2005 4,777 2,2C9
23,099 {16,945)
Claims outstanding net of reinsurance at prior year end before discount 1,171,165 1,612,450
Discount (95,533) (116,673)
1,075,632 1,495,771
12 Results of operating activities
Loss from operations has been arrived after charging:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,534 4,142
Staff costs (see note 13) 27,579 37,757
Auditors' remuneration (see below) 2,369 3,233

A more detailed analysis of auditors' remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below;

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2007 2006

$'000 $000

Audit services 2,193 2,523
http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=17...
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Tax services 46 13
Actuarial and other consulting 130 742
Total auditors' remuneration 2,369 3,283

13 Staff costs

The average monthly number of employees {including Executive Directors) was:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2007 2006

Underwriting - 14
Finance 22 45
Information Technology 14 19
Claims 50 48
Technical Accounts 15 22
Management and administration 18 30
119 178

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2007 2006

$'000 $'0C0

Wages and salaries ' 24,401 32,524

Social security costs 1,562 2,608
Other pension costs (see note 38) 1,616 2,62

27,579 37,757

Severance payments of $2.0 million made in the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: $12.2 million) are
excluded in the table above. Of this $2.0 million, $0.4 million (2006: $8.6 million) was provided in the
restructuring provision established at 31 December 2005 (see note 27). The remaining $1.6 million has been
charged through the income statement in 2007 (see note 6).

14 Finance costs

Year ended Year endad
31 December 31 Decembar
2007 2006

$°000 $'000
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Interest on borrowings 18,184 22,9¢0
Other investment expenses 2,932 3.2¢8
Elxchange losses/(gains) on non-functional currencies and transactions 580 (1.87)
osses
21,696 24,407
15 Net gains or losses on borrowings
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December
20086
$'000 $'000
Capitalised debt raising expenses charged to income
statement 518 636
518 636
16 Income tax expense/(credit)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
Current tax expense/(credit):
UK corporation tax {5} 326
Foreign tax 1,002 (4,934)
Total current tax 997 (4,608)
Deferred tax (note 23): {897) (1,8€4)
Total income tax expense/(credit) 100 (6,5C2)

UK corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2006: 30%) of the estimated assessable UK profit for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The tax expense for the periods presented varied from the stated rate of UK corporation tax as explained helow:
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$'000 $°000
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (78,080) (7,437)
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of UK
corporation tax at 30% (2006: 30%) (23,424) (2,201)
Factors affecting tax expense/(credit):
Adjustment in respect of foreign tax rates 11,426 611
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 130 (84)
Overseas and other taxes 670 973
Change in UK corporation tax rate used to provide deferred tax asset 79 -
Deferred tax asset in respect of current year losses not recognised 9,936 -
Utilisation of tax losses in respect of which no deferred tax assets
were provided {600) (4,276)
Other permanent differences 1,883 (725)
Tax expensef{credit} for the year 100 (6,502)

In addition to the amount expensed to the income statement, deferred tax of $1.0 million has been expensed to

equity in the year (2006: expense of $Nil).

17 Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

Year ended
31 December 2007

Year ended

31 December 2006

Earnings $ $
Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share i

835,201

being net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company (78,178,546) ( )
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: - -

Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share {78,179,546) (835,201}

Number of shares Year ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 Decembar 2008

Number Mumber

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the 173,788,126 173,738,502

purposes of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
- Share options
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Weighted average number of ordinary shares .
for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 173,788,126 173,738,502
18 Property, plant and equipment
Computer Fixtures and Other Total
equipment and  office equipment
software
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 January 2006 26,117 7793 1,724 35634
Additions 705 3 ) 736
Exchange difference 2,294 255 120 2669
Disposals (6,263) {3,481} {131) (9,375)
At 31 December 2006 22,853 4,598 1,713 20 164
Additions 374 220 53 647
Exchange difference 383 23 133 539
Disposals (830) (448} ) (1,280)
At 31 December 2007 22,780 4,393 1,897 29 070
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2006 (18,635) (5.525) (1,566) (25.726)
Charge for the year (3.778) (336} (28) 4.142)
Exchange differences (1,957) (230) {160) (2,347)
Eliminated on disposals 5,780 3522 147 6,449
At 31 December 2006 {18,590) {2,569) {(1,607) (22,766)
Charge for the year (2,017) (392) (125} (2,634)
Exchange differences (357) (12) (131) (500)
Eliminated on disposals 823 304 - 1,217
At 31 December 2007 (20,141) (2,579) (1,863) {24,583)

Carrying amount
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At 31 December 2007 2,639 34 4,487
At 31 December 2006 4,263 106 6,398
19 Intangible assets
Licences
$'000

Cost
At 1 January 2006 9,968
Additions -
At 31 December 2006 9,968
Additions -
At 31 December 2007 9,968
Amortisation
At 1 January 2006 {1,489)
Impairment of asset -
At 31 December 2006 (1,489)
Impairment of asset -
At 31 December 2007 {1,489)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 8,479
At 31 December 2006 8,47¢

Capitalised licences represent the cost of licences acquired to conduct business in the United States. The
Directors consider these licences to have indefinite useful lives. The licences are tested for impairment at each
balance sheet date. At 31 December 2007 the impairment review indicated that the carrying value of the
licenses reflects the recoverable amount and no impairment write down is necessary (31 December 2006: no

impairment write down was necessary).

20 Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition couts
$'000

At 1 January 2006

107,000
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Change in year (103,718)
Exchange difference 224
j At 31 December 2006 3,506
' Change in year (1,351)
. Exchange difference 1€8
At 31 December 2007 2,323

At 31 December 2007

Current assets 1,992
Mon-current assets Kb |
2,323

At 31 December 2006

Current assets 283
Non-current assets 3,243
3.506

21 Financial assets

As at As at
i 31 December 2007 31 December 2006
5 $'000 $'000
i
| Available-for-sale investments
- Equity securities 165 198
- Debt securities 1,365,040 1,664,341

The investments included above represent investments in listed equity securities and listed debt securities. The fair values o
these investments are based on quoted market prices.

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 006

Summary by maturity — Debt securities $'000 % $'000 %
Less than 1 year 598,506 43.8 661,770 398
1 year up to 3 years 317,638 23.3 354 899 21.3
3 years up fo 5 years 113,916 8.3 228,385 13.7
5 years up to 10 years 102,707 7.5 136,633 82
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More than 10 years 232.273 171 282,654 17.0
1,365,040 100.0 1,664,341 100.0

22 Loans and receivables including insurance receivables

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $'000

Deposits with ceding undertakings 91,177 118,558
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 1,496 21,989
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 101,689 143,993
Amounts due from reinsurance operations not transferring significant risk - 66,293
Accrued income: (1) 42,805 49,282
Other prepayments 5,108 2,531
Other debtors 31,432 38315
Total loans and receivables including insurance receivables 273,707 440@
Current asset 49,182 63,710
Non-current asset 224,525 377.251
273,707 440,961

' $31.8 million (31 December 2006: $35.2 million) of the renewal rights sales are recorded as accrued income at the

balance sheet date as disclosed in note 5.

Loans and receivables including insurance receivables are recorded on the balance sheet at amortised cost.

23 Deferred income tax

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior reporting period:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Unrealised Depreciation us Bonus and

gains on in advance of subsidiary pension

investments capital insurance accruals not

allowances transaction currently

timing deductible and

differences other timing
and losses differences Tctal
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2006 - 989 ' (1,878) 8 (831)

Credit/(expense) to the income - 1,878 \
statement 27 ) 1.694
Exchange differences - 138 - 3 41
At 1 January 2007 ) 1,154 ) ) 1,154
{1,030}

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=17...  3/6/2008




Market News Page 60) of 79

Expense to equity - - (1,030)
Credit/(expense) to the income 1,030 } ¢

statement (132) 8¢8
Exchange differences 12 - 12
As at 31 December 2007 {1,030) 1,034 1,030 - 1,034

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilittes have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $'000

Deferred tax assets 1,034 1,154
Deferred tax liabilities -

4,034 1,154

At the balance sheet date the Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of $66.5 million (31 December 2006:
$47.8 million) in respect of tax losses carried forward. The assets have not been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of $286.7 million (31 December 2006: $182.6 million)
available for offset against future profits. Of the losses at 31 December 2007 $62.6 million (31 December 2006:
$24.6 million) relate to the US, $151.0 million (31 December 2006: $140.5 million) relate to the UK and $53.1
million (31 December 2006: $17.5 million) relate to Switzerland.

US losses expire as follows: $21.7 million in 2026 and $40.9 million in 2027,
In the UK, tax losses are in part carried forward as disclaimed technical reserves. UK losses have no expiry date.
Swiss losses of $53.1 million expire in 2011,

The deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2007 and as at 31 December 2006 are non-current assets.
The deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2007 and as at 31 December 2006 are non-current liabilities.

The deferred income tax expensed to equity during the year is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $'000

Revaluation reser\.’e1 1,030 -
Hedging and translation reserve’ - -
1,030 -

' The revaluation reserve is a component of shareholders’ equity that is used to record the difierence between ti
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market value of available for sale investments carried on the balance sheet and the amortised cost of those asse:
Unrealised gains and losses arising when the market value is compared with the amortised cost of the asse

are taken to this reserve.

2 Movements in the unrealised gains and losses arising from the transiation of the Group's assets and liabiliti
denominated in functional currencies of the Group are shown in the hedging and translation reserve. Ti

hedging and translation reserve is a component of shareholders’ equity.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:
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As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
Cash at bank and in hand 31,589 69,738
Short-term deposits with credit institutions 122,664 87.482
Total cash and cash equivalents 154,253 157 220
Cash and cash equivalents yielded an effective rate of interest of 4.3% in 2007 (2006: 5.2%).
25 Insurance and reinsurance contracts
Insurance and reinsurance contracts are comprised of the following:
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$000 $'000
Gross claims outstanding
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,605,617 2,026,102
Discount {67,541) {105,855)
1,538,076 1,920,247
Claims handling provisions 11,815 17,843
Total gross claims outstanding 1,549,891 1,938,070
Provision for unearned premiums on insurance contracts - 3,444
Total insurance contracts 1,549,891 1,841,514
Aggregate excess reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 41,162 299 514
Discount - (7,657)
Net aggregale excess reinsurance 41,162 291,837
Other reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 508,651 573,216
Discount (3,012) (2,665)
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Net other reinsurance 505,639 570,551_

Total reinsurance

Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 549,813 872,760
Discount (3,012) (10,322}
Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding 546,801 862,438
Provision for unearned premiums on reinsurance contracts - 1,03‘.’_
Total reinsurance contracts 546,801 863,475
Undiscounted claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1,067,619 1,171,1€5
Discount {64,529) {95,533)
Claims outstanding net of reinsurance 1,003,090 1,075,632
As at As it

31 December 2007 31 December 20C6

Security held for aggregate excess reinsurance $'000 $'0C0
Deposits received from reinsurers 41,162 46,119
Trust fund and LOC collateral available against aggregate excess contracts - 240182
Total collateral available against aggregate excess reinsurance recoverable 41,162 286,31
As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 §'000

Current assets 72,669 211,817
Non-current assets 474,132 651,658
Total reinsurance contracts 546,801 863,475
Current liabilities 424,653 697,937
Non-current liabilities 1,125,238 1,243,577
Total insurance contracts 1,549,891 1,941,514

Basis for establishing provision for claims outstanding

Loss reserves for reinsurance business are established based on claims data reported to the Group by ceding
companies supplemented with relevant industry benchmark loss development patterns used to project the
ultimate incurred loss. Ultimate incurred loss indications are calculated by the Group's actuaries using several
standard actuarial methodologies including paid and incurred loss development and the Bornhuetter-Ferguson
incurred and paid loss methods.

The Group's actuaries utilise several assumptions in applying each methodology, including loss development
factors, expected loss ratios bhased on pricing analysis, and actual reported claim frequency and severity. These
reviews and documentation are completed in accordance with professional actuarial standards appropriate to the
jurisdictions where the business is written. The selected assumptions reflect the actuaries’ judgement based on
historical data and experience combined with information concerning current underwriting, economic, judicial,
regulatory and other influences on uitimate claim settlements.

Based on the actuarial indications, the Group selects and records a single point estimate separately for each line
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of business for each underwriting year. The single point reserve estimate is management's best estimate which
the Group considers to be one that has an equal likelihood of developing a redundancy or deficiency as the loss
experience matures. On a quarterly basis the Group analyses and records its loss reserve estimates across over
400 detailed lines of business which reflect class of business, geographic location, insurance versus reinsurance,
proportional versus non-proportional, and treaty versus facultative exposures. In addition, a limited number of the
Group’s largest contracts are reviewed individually.

During the loss settlement period, additional facts regarding claims are reported. As this occurs it may be
necessary to increase or decrease the unpaid losses and loss expense reserves. The actual final liability may be
significantly different to prior estimates. The Group reviews additional reported claim information on a monthly
basis. Actual claim experience is compared to that expected from the most recent actuarial reserve review to
highlight significant variances. A complete actuarial analysis by detailed line of business including seleztion of
single point estimates is completed semi-annually and is reviewed by the Group’s management.

Underwriting year table

1999 p?i’:: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Tota
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'00(
Gross
Estimate of cumulative claims:
At end of underwriting
year 3,022,313 367,605 386,762 590,359 821,724 1,092,870 630,215 -
One year later 4,564,137 452 324 396,996 612,137 816,546 990,260 610,599 -
Two years later 4,710,816 485,269 417,049 611,228 794 346 883,970 616,375 -
Three years later 4,755,187 507,747 441 839 654,210 786,147 874,949 - -
Four years later 4,828,948 539,694 440 855 660,908 790,476 - - -
Five years later 4,874,927 550,212 459,255 655,037 - - - -
Six years later 4,883,595 563,532 467,672 - - - - -
Seven years later 4,893,658 560,023 - - - - - -
Eight years later 4,874,618 - - - - - - -
Estimate of cumulative
claims as at 31
Decernber 2007 4,874,618 560,023 467,672 655,037 790,476 874,949 616,375 8,839,151
Cumulative
payments at (4,623,090} (476,632) {391,183} (552,650) (578,367} (600,775) (385,598) (7,608,295
31 December 2007
251,528 83,391

76,489 102,387 212,109 274,174 230,777 1,230,85!

Unearned element of
reserves at 31 - - - - {17 - (75) (92
December 2007

Earned non-life
reserves before effect

of discounting as at 261,528 83,391 76,489 102,387 212,092 274174 230702 1,230,76:
31 December 2007

Life and finite

reserves as at 31 - - - - - . - 374,85«

December 2007

Claims handling
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provisions as at 31
December 2007
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1,81

Present value of
reserves before
discount recognised in
the balance sheet as at
31 December 2007

1,617,43;

1999 and prior

$'000

2000

$'000

2001

$'000

2002

$'000

2003

$'000

2004

$'000

2005

$'000

Total

$'000

Reinsurance recoverable

Estimate of cumulative claims:

At end of underwriting year
One year later

Two years later

Three years later

Four years later

Five years later

Six years later
Seven years later

Eight years later

557,558
1,544,260
1,662,449
1,646,776
1,660,199
1,684,626

1,667,762
1,669,539

1,652,959

87,617
163,700
156,068
149,374
136,623
130,220

130,984

128,163

140,151
173,183
177,605
152,152
146,574
157,163
157,466

176,731
196,084
211,944
212,974
198,845
181,349

165,184
184,701
190,173
182,641
173,223

177,565
145,792
137,365

147,960

144,472
132,953

128,042

Estimate of cumulative
recoveries
at 31 December 2007

Cumulative recoveries
received at 31 December
2007

1,652,959

(1,538,292)

128,163

(110,301)

157,466

(147,733)

181,349

(173,738)

173,223

(135,848)

147,960

(97.220)

128,042

(93,305)

1,569,162

(2,296,437)

114,667

17,862

9,733

7,611

37,375

50,740

34,737

272,725

Unearned element of
reinsurance recoverable at 31
December 2007

Earned net non-life
reinsurance recoverable
before effect of discounting
as at 31 December 2007

114,667

17,862

9,733

7,611

37,375

50,740

34,737

272,725

Life and finite reinsurance
recoverable as at 31
December 2007

277,088

Present value of reinsurance
recoverable before discount
recognised in the balance
sheet as at 31 December
2007

549,813

1999 and
prior

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005
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$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'001
Net
Estimate of cumulative claims:
At end of underwriting year 2,464,755 279,988 246 611 413,628 656,540 915,305 485,743
One year later 3,019,877 288,624 223,843 416,053 631,845 844,468 477,646
Two years fater 3,048,367. 329,201 239,444 399,284 604,173 746,605 488,333
Three years later 3,108,411 358,373 289,687 441,236 603,506 726,989 -
Four years later 3,168,749 403,071 294,281 461,063 617,253 - -
Five years later 3,190,301 419,992 302,092 473,688 - - -
Six years later 3,215,833 432,548 310,206 - - - -
Seven years later 3,224.119 431,860 - - - - -
Eight years later 3,221,659 - - - - - -
Estimate of net cumulative ,
claims at 31 December 2007 3,221,659 431,860 310,206 473,688 617,253 726,989 488,333 6,269,98
g‘f‘n‘::c’g;‘,']gg‘r’ezgg;me"‘s at  (3084,798) (366,331) (243,450} (378,912) (442519) (503,555) (292,293)  (%,311,858
136,861 65,529 66,756 04,776 174,734 223,434 196,040 958,13
Uneamed element of reserves ) (92
at 31 December 2007 - - - (17} - (75)
Earned net non-life reserves
before effect of discounting as 958,03
at 31 December 2007 136,861 65,529 66,756 04,776 174,717 223,434 195,965
Net life and finite reserves as ) : ) ; _ _ .
31 December 2007 87,761
Claims handling provisions as _ R ) - _ N
at 31 December 2007 ) 11,84
Present value of net reserves
before discount recognised in _ ) _ } _ _ .
the balance sheet as at 31 1,067,61!

December 2007

{1) In June 2000 the Group added a UK insurance and reinsurance license through the acquisition of The Imperial Fire And Marine Company Limited (tmperial’)
{now called Alea London Limited). In acquiring this entity, the Group assumed insurance and reinsurance liabilities relating to 1998 and prior underw iting years
written by Imperial. This explains the significant increase in cumulative claims in respect of 1999 and prior underwriting years that occurs in the tible above
between 31 December 1999 and 3t December 2000. The increase in gross cumulative claims in respect of 1999 and prior as a result of the acqlisition was
$1,620.2 million and the increase in ceded cumulative claims was $897.7 million.

{2) The underwriting year development table above includes all cumulative claims in respect of underwriting years 1987 to 2005. It also includes 1983 and prior
underwriting year claims paid in calendar years 1999 to 2006, and the reserves in respect of 1886 and prior at each balance sheet date from 1999 to 2008,

{3) The insurance and reinsurance claims outstanding carried in the balance sheet of the Group include gross and ceded amounts in respect of Canadian
structured settlement life business. The gross and ceded amounts maich exactly, to leave no net liability. As these balances refate te life business they are
excluded from the underwriting year development table. Consequently, in order to achieve reconciliation to the balance sheet gross and ceded claims outstanding,
they are added back in the table above. The amount as at 31 December 2007 was $277.1 million (2006: $246.2 million).

26 Borrowings

The borrowings are repayable as follows:
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$'000 $'000
On demand or within one year - 200,000
In the second year 30,000 -
In the third to fifth years inclusive - -
After five years 120,000 1 20,000_
Total borrowings 150,000 320,000
Less: Capitalised debt raising expenses (2,215) (2,73%)
Total borrowings net of capitalised expenses 147,785 317,267
Analysis of borrowings:
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
Amounts owed to credit institutions 30,000 200,000
Trust preferred securities 120,000 120,000
Total borrowings 150,000 320,000

All borrowings are recorded at fair value. The directors consider the carrying values disclosed above to be a
reasonable approximation of the fair value at the year end.

Conditions aftaching to amounts owed to credit institutions as at 1 January 2007

The three-year bank term lean of $200.0 million (of which $150.0 million had been drawn down) and tha $50.0
million revolver carried an interest margin of 120 basis points, which was adjustable based upon the Standard and
Poor's debt ratings for Alea. The $50.0 million revolver facility was additionally subject toc a commitment fee of
40% of the applicable margin.

These borrowings fell due for repayment in Septerber 2007. On 19 April 2007, the Group repaid $25.0 million of
the term loan and all of $50.0 million revolver using its cash reserves, leaving an outstanding amount of $125.0
million.

Conditions attaching to the term loan agreed 6 July 2007

The Group drew down the maximum aggregate commitment under this new term loan agreement of $20.0 million.
This was due for repayment in three equal instalments of $30.0 million on 16 October 2007, 14 January 2008 and
18 July 2009. However, the Group made an optional prepayment of $60.0 million on 18 July 2007. The remaining
loan of $30.0 million was repaid on 14 Januvary 2008. It carried an interest margin of 200 basis points over LIBOR.

Trust preferred securities
Restructuring

Provision
$'000

At 1 January 2006 17,562
Utilisation of provision due to onerous contracts (2,052)
Reversal of provision due to onerous contracts 1 {2,500)
Utilisation of provision due to severance payments (8,638)
Exchange difference 869
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At 31 December 2006 5,241
Utilisation of provision due to onerous contracts (2,448)
Utilisation of provision due to severance payments (426)
Severance participation received due to sale of renewal rights 310
Exchange difference 160
At 31 December 2007 2,837

In December 2004, the Group issued $100.0 million of trust preferred securities and had in place a commitment
for an additional $20.0 million of trust preferred securities issuited in January 2005. These securities (issuzd from
three Delaware trusts established by Alea Holdings US Company, of which one trust was established in January
2005) provide for a preferred dividend at a rate of three month LIBOR plus 285 basis points. These securities
allow for the postponement of preferred dividends under certain circumstances for up to five years. These
securities carry no financial covenants and no cross default covenants, have a fixed maturity of 30 years, and are
callable after five years.

27 Provisions

As a result of Alea North America's sublease of its empty offices in Wilton a reversal of the previously
recognised provision for onerous contracts has been made. The reversal is part of the restructuring costs
presented in the income statement.

For further details regarding the restructuring costs see note 6.

At 31 December 2007

Current liabilities 1,955
Non-current liabilities 882
2,837

At 31 December 2006

Current liabilities 3,433
Non-current liabilities ) 1,808
5,241

28 Other liabilities and charges

Deferred Other accruals and Total
reinsurance deferred income
commission
$'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2006 3,362 33,783 37,145

Change in the pericd (516) 4,782 4,266
Exchange difference - (457) (457)
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At 31 December 2006 2,846 38,108 40,954
Change in the period (1,408) (6,550) (7,955)
Exchange difference - 236 236
At 31 December 2007 1,441 31,794 33,235
' Includes regulatory levies of $4.7 million for Alea US (2006: $7.9 million).
At 31 December 2007
Current liahilities 29,119
Non-current liabilities 4,116
33,235
At 31 December 2006
Current liabilities 38,545
Non-current liabilities 2,409
40,954
29 Trade and other payables
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
Insurance balance payable 9,340 7,109
Reinsurance balance payable 105,220 177,726
Deposits received from reinsurers 33,530 52,347
Reserves withheld creditors 42,048 47,004
Liabilities from reinsurance operations not transferring significant risk 230 67,342
Cther taxes and social securities 1,373 3,578
Total trade and other payables 191,741 355,506
Current liabilities 65,707 54,380
Non-current liahilities 126,034 301,226
191,741 355,306
30 Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share Share Capital Revatuation Hedging Retained Share Toial
capital  premlum reserve 1 and earnings based
reserve translation payment
2 reserva
reserves
$'000 $'000 $'000 §000 §000 $000 $:000 $030
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As at 1 January 2006 1,738 629,668 75,381 {23,697) 5,305 (204,974) 720 484,144
Loss of the period - - - - - (78,180) - (78,18))
Revaluation on available for sale i
Investments - gross - - - 14,342 - - - 14,342
Revaluation on avallable for sale R i} i} . . .
investments - tax {1,030) {1,030}
Movement in share based
payment reserve - ) . ) 146 148
Translation gains - gross - - . 8,620 - 8,60
Translation gains - tax - - - - -

As at 31 December 2007 1,738 629,668 75,381 {10,385) 13,925 (283,154) 866 428,008
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share Share Capital Revaluation Hedging Retained Share Total
capital  premium reserve 1 and eamings based
reserve translation payment
2 reserve
reserves
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
As at 1 January 2006 1,737 629,311 75,381 {12,671) (176) {204,139) 986 490,429
Issuance of shares 1 357 - - - - {358) -
Loss of the period - - - - {835) (835}
Revaluation on available for sale
investments - gross : . i (11.028) B - {11.026)
Revaluation on available for sale ) R i} _ R
investments - tax
Movement in share based
payment reserve i B ) - . 92 32
Translation gains - gross - - - - 5,481 - 5,431
Translation gains - tax - - - - - - - -
As at 31 December 2006 1,738 629,668 75,381 (23,697) 5305  (204,974) 720 484141

The revaluation reserve is a component of shareholders' equity that is used to record the difference between the market value of

available for sale investments carried on the balance sheet and the amortised cost of those assets. Unrealised gains and losses arising
when the market value is compared with the amortised cost of the assets are taken to this reserve.

currencies of the Group are shown in the hedging and translation reserve.

31 Share capital

Movements in the unrealised gains and losses arising from the translation of the Group's assets and liabilities denominated in functional
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As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2005
Number Number
'000s $'000 '000s $000
Authorised:
Common shares of $0.01 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,00)
Total authorised 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
Common shares of $0.01 173,788 1,738 173,788 1,733
Total allotted, called up share capital and fully paid 173,788 1,738 173,788 1,733

32 Stock options and restricted shares

Bermuda Plan

Alea Group Holdings AG (a former Group company which was merged with Alea Europe Ltd in 2005) had in place
a stock purchase and option plan for key employees and advisors known as the 1998 Amended and Restated
Stock Option Plan for Key Employees and Subsidiaries (the “Swiss Plan”). The Company adopted a 2002 Stock
Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries, as amended (the “Bermuda
Plan™), in connection with the re-domiciling of the ultimate parent company of the Group to Bermuda and all
awards under the Swiss Plan are now govemed by the terms of the Bermuda Plan. The terms of the Bermuda
Plan are substantially similar to the terms of the Swiss Plan. All Alea Group Holdings AG non-voting participation
shares and options were exchanged for common shares and options in connection with an equity exchange offer
that was completed on 3 April 2002. In total, 15,000,000 common shares are authorised for use under the
Bermuda Ptan.

The exercise price of the options will be the fair market value of the common shares on the grant date. Generally,
the options vest rateably over a five-year period except in the case of performance options where vesting is
affected by attainment of certain pre-approved financial targets. The exercisability of the options accelerates upon
a change of controi of the Group. Options expire and are no longer exercisable on the tenth anniversary or in
certain circumstances at the end of the three month period following such tenth anniversary of the grant date. The
expiration of the options can accelerate due to termination of employment. Certain options granted iontain
shortened expiration and vesting periods.

The terms of the Company’s common shares and the exercise price of the options to acquire company common
shares on the purchase/grant date were determined by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
terms of the Bermuda Plan. The Bermuda Plan was terminated as to future grants with effect from 19 November
2003.

Executive Plan

The Company's shareholders have adopted the Alea Executive Option and Stock Plan and the Alea Sharesave
Plan ("Executive Plan"). The Executive Plan provides for the grant of time and performance options, restricted
stock units and share savings for employees. The exercise price of options granted shall not be less than the
middle market quotation for the Company's shares on the dealing day preceding the date of grant. The nurnber of
common shares granted in any period under all of the Company's employee share schemes (excluding shares
issuable on exercise of options granted prior to 19 November 2003} may not exceed 10% of the Company's
issued ordinary share capital. Generally, the vesting period of an option granted under the Executive Plan is
subject to the discretion of the Board {or a committee thereof) provided that vesting for certain tax qualified
options may not be earlier than 3 years or more than 10 years after the date of grant and unless any nzlevant
performance conditions have been satisfied.

Other

The company has issued to Fisher Capital Corp. LLC certain options to acquire common shares, which are fully
vested and are exercisable within 15 years of the date of grant. In connection with a consulting agreement, the
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company has issued restricted shares which are fully vested to Richard Delaney, a former director. These shares
and options were not granted pursuant to either Plan.

Transactions involving common share optiens are disclosed in note 33.

33 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share option plan

The Group plans provide for a grant price equal to the average quoted market price of the Group shares on the
date of grant. The vesting period is generally 5 years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10
years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options are typically contractually forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group subject to certain exercise periods that apply to vested options and to certain options grianted
in 2005 pursuant to the Executive Plan.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
options price in $ options price in $
Options outstanding at beginning of
year 4,688,676 3.68 9,383,428 3.65
Options granted during the year - - - -
QOptions forfeited during the year (1,664,942) 3.78 (4,694,752) 3.95
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options which expired during the ) i
year ) )
Options outstanding at end of year 3,023,734 3.62 4,688,676 3.68
Options exercisable at end of year 2,509,850 3.56 3,153,866 3.59

No options were exercised during the year. The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had a weighted
average exercise price of $3.62 (2006 $3.68), and the weighted average remaining contractual lives of those
options are as follows,

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Welghted Welghtacl
Average Number of Average Number of
exercl';:n?i::; Remaining share options Range of exa;c::: Remaining ghare options
p Contractual outstanding p Contractual outstanding
Life Lie

Options outstanding at end of year
divided into meaningful ranges

Share options issued in respect of
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Alea Group Holdings AG after $320 322 0.87 60,880  $3.22  -$3.22 2.04 142,660
repricing
Alea Group Holdings {(Bermuda) Ltd K
options granted pre - IPO $3.22 -$4.30 3.09 2,266,844 $3.22 -$4.30 4.27 2,840,480
Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd .
options granted post - IPO $3.21 -$4.31 6.81 696,010 s -$4.31 7.95 1,705,536
All options $3.21 -$4.31 391 3,023,734 $3.21 -$4.31 5.54 4,688,176

No options were granted during the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 (2006: No options granted).

The Group recognised the following total expenses and repurchases in respect of equity-settled share based
payment transactions;

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
‘000 ‘003
Total expense recognised for the year arising from share-based payment
transactions that were recognised immediately as an expense - (all are equity 187 (8€)
settled)
RSU expense charged in year (41) 173
Cash repurchases of vested options held by leavers - -
146 9
34 Cash used in operations
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
$'000 $°000
Loss for the year {78,180) (835)
Adjustments for:
- tax expense/(credit) 100 (6,502}
- depreciation 2,534 4,142
Net cash flows for the period transferred to investing activities {55,380) (85,429)
(Proft)loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (16} 305
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary - (4,336)
Debt interest expense 18,184 22,990
(Profit)loss on foreign exchange (4,388) 1,500
Change in operating assets and liabilities {excluding the effect of acquisitions and
exchange differences on consolidation)
Net decrease in insurance liabilities {444 ,459) (979,4611)
Net decrease in reinsurance assets 332,392 212 680
Net decrease in loans and receivables 179,495 364,831
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Net decrease in other operating liabilities {191,192) (116,968)
Net movement in share based payment reserve 146 91
Cash used in operations {240,764) (586,998)

35 Contingent liabilities

Structured settlements

The Group, through the Canadian branch of Alea Europe Ltd, has assumed ownership of certain structured
settlements and has purchased annuities from life assurers to provide fixed and recurring payments to those
underlying claimants. As a result of these arrangements, the Group is exposed to a credit risk to the extent that
any of these insurers are unable to meet their obligations under the structured settlements. This risk is viewed by
the Directors as being remote as the annuities are fully funded and the Group has only purchased annuitizs from
Canadian insurers with a financial stability of AA or higher (Standard & Poor's). The Canadian branch is in run-off
and the branch discontinued accepting assignments of annuities in August 2001.

In the event of all the relevant life insurers being unable to meet their obligations under the structured settlements,
at 31 December 2007, the total exposure, net of amounts that may be recoverable from the Compensation
Corporation of Canada (a Canadian industry-backed compensation scheme), is estimated to be 41.5 million
Canadian Dollars ($41.6 million) and the maximum in relation to any one insurer 18.6 million Canadian Dollars
($18.7 million).

Subpoenas and requests for information/regulatory matters

The US domicited insurance members of the Group received certain subpoenas and information requests with
respect to the ongoing investigations by various regulators and governmental authorities relating to industry-wide
investigations into US producer compensation practices and arrangements. In November 2004, Alea North
America Insurance Company (‘ANAIC") received a subpoena from the Attorney General of New York and,
together with Alea North America Speciality Insurance Company (‘ANASIC"), received inquiries from the
insurance departments of Delaware and North Carolina. No allegations of wrongdoing have been made against
ANAIC, ANASIC nor any of their employees, nor does the Group have reason to believe that any of them are
specific targets of any investigation.

The Group has cooperated fully with these inquiries. After concluding their internal investigations in connection
with these matters, these member companies have reported to these regulatory authorities that they have
identified no transactions or information causing concern, nor are they aware of any improper conduct.

Certain members of the Group have received subpoenas and information requests with respect to finite
reinsurance from the US Securities and Exchange Commission, the FSA, the Australian Prudential Regulatory
Authority and the Florida and Delaware state insurance authorities.

The Group has cooperated or is cooperating fully with each authority from which it has received an inquiry and is
aware of no improper conduct.

These industry-wide investigations, including certain of the investigations to which the Group is a paty, are
ongoing and it is not possible to predict the impact that these investigations, or any enquiries specific to the
Group, may have on the Group's current or future business and financial results. Moreover, there can be no
assurance that further investigations will not be initiated or reopened in the future,

In connection with a periodic market conduct examination, the California Department of Insurance has disputed
certain fees collected from policyholders by two agents of one of the Group's subsidiaries. The Group disagrees
with the Department's position, but is cooperating to audit these fee arrangements. The agreements with the
agents involved have been terminated. It is not possible to predict the impact of this dispute on the (Sroup’s
financial results.

Company contingent liabilities
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In 2002 the Company entered into a top down guarantee with each of the Group's rated insurance opzarating
entities. These guarantees were in addition to the pre-existing guarantees already in place between certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Subject to applicable corporate and regulatory requirements, the top down guarantees

| required that the Company make funds available to the insurance operating entities to allow the entities to fulfil
their insurance or reinsurance obligations to the client/customer incurred while the guarantee remained in effect.
The Group terminated all top down and other intra-Group guarantees effective 30 November 2006.

36 Exposure to specific credit risk

Exposure to Lumbermens

In connection with the Group's acquisition of the Equus Re reinsurance division of Lumbermens on 3 December
1999, Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens entered into a 100% quota share reinsurance of the Lumbermens
business written by Equus Re through 3 December 1999 (namely, business written by Equus Re prior to the
Group's acquisition of the Equus Re operations). Lumbermens, in turn, provides stop loss reinsurance o Alea
(Bermuda) Ltd for losses in excess of a 75% paid loss ratio on the same business incepting prior to 1 October
1999 (the “Protected Business”). In addition to the Protected Business, the parties agreed that the Group would
write new and renewal business on behalf of Lumbermens (as the reinsurer) up to 31 December 2001, which
business is ceded by a 100% quota share reinsurance to Alea (Bermuda) Ltd (the “Fronted Business”).
Concurrent with these arrangements, Lumbermens retained Alea North America Company (“ANAC") as its agent
to adjust and pay claims and collect premiums for both the Protected Business and the Fronted Business.

The respective obligations of Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens noted above are subject to contractual mutual
offset provisions under the reinsurance agreements and as permitted under lllinois law. Further, in respect of the
Protected Business, Lumbermens is contractually required to fund losses on its own behalf once the 75% paid
loss ratio is met. The Group's balance sheet therefore, records (i) no net balance due from Lumbermens under
| the Protected Business, as the 75% paid loss ratio was met in late December 2003 (specifically, $64.35 million
| due to and from Lumbermens), and (ii) as at 31 December 2007, an aggregate balance due to Lumbermens
| under the Fronted Business and in respect of business written by Equus Re between 1 October 1999 and 3
! December 1999 of $39.2 million, after taking credit for amounts treated as paid for accounting purposes.
|

As is required for credit for reinsurance purposes when cessions are made to non-US licensed reinsurers, Alea
: (Bermuda) Ltd must collateralise its obligations to Lumbermens. Pursuant to contract, the amount of posted
| collateral is required to equal 120% of the estimated loss reserves, which based on the above year-end balance
due from Alea (Bermuda) Ltd would be approximately $47.0 million.

Alea {Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens continue to disagree over the level of reserves requiring collateralisation.
However, following commutations completed in 2007 with Lumbermens with respect to certain ceding companies
and a further release of collateral at the request by Alea (Bermuda) Ltd, on 31 December 2007, the posted

| collateral was reduced to $99.4 millicn (31 December 2006 $134.6 million). Either party may reqJire an
independent actuarial estimate of applicable reserves to resoclve their differences with regard to the required
collateral calculation. Neither party has required another independent reserve estimate since the last
independent reserve estimate dated as of 30 September 2004.

Lumbermens risk based capital level allows the lllinois Department of Insurance to assume control of
Lumbermens at its discretion. The mutual obligations of Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens described above
are subject to contractual mutual offset provisions under the agreements and as permitted under lllinnis law.
Accordingly, having taken legal advice, the Group believes that the Group should not he expesed to material
credit risk resulting from these arrangements with Lumbermens. However, no assurance can be given that a court
would uphold these mutual offset provisions and contractual rights.

37 Related party transactions
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Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P./Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C.

At 30 June 2007, certain parties related to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. owned in excess of 40% of the
Company's issued shares. In connection with that ownership, the Company had in place certain relationship,
management rights, shareholder and advisory fee agreements, as amended with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.,
L.P., KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership, KKR Partners (international), Limited Partnership and
Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C. These agreements were further described in the Company'’s Listing Particulars dated
14 November 2003 and provided for annual advisory fees of $750,000 payable to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.,
L.P., an affiliate of KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership, a shareholder and KKR Pariners
(International), Limited Partnership, also a shareholder and $350,000 payable to Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C.., also
a shareholder. In connection with negotiations pertaining to acquisition of control of the Company by FIN
Acquisition Limited, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. and Fisher Capital Corp. LLC agreed to waive payment
of these fees for the period commencing 1 April 2007. These agreements were terminated effective 5 July 2007
in connection with the acquisition of control of the Company by FIN Acquisition Limited. As at 31 December 2007,
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. and Fisher Capital Corp. LLC had received $187,500 and $87,500 in
advisory fees, respectively. As at 31 December 2007 the balance due under these arrangements was $Nil (31
December 2006: $Nil). Certain of the Company's former Directors held interests in these entities as described in
the Directors' Report included within the Annual Report 2006.

Fortress Investment Group

At 31 December 2007, certain parties related to Fortress Investment Group owned 72.40% of the Company’s
issued shares. Effective 1 October 2007 the Company put in place an advisory fee agreement with FIG LLC, a
Fortress affiliate (“Fortress”), under which the Company has agreed to pay Fortress $1,000,000 per year, rayable
quarterly in arrears, for advisory services. At 31 December 2007, Fortress had received $Nil. As at 31 December
2007 the balance due under these arrangements was $250,000. The Fortress Directors' beneficial interests in
common shares of the Company as at 31 December 2007 were as follows:

Name of Director Number of common share:
Robert | Kauffman' 125,826,832
Randal A Nardone' 125,826,832

1 Robert Kauffman and Randal Nardone are members of the Joint Investment Committee formed pursuant to the terms ¢f a Joint

Investment Commitiee Agreement (“JICA™) by and among FIG Corp., Fortress Investment Group LLC (the direct parent of FIG
Corp. *Fortress™), Fortress Operating Entity | LP, Forlress Operating Entity || LP, Messrs Kauffman, Nardene, Peter L. Briger Jr.,
Wesley R. Edens and Michael R. Novogratz. Under the terms of the JICA, each other party to the Joint Investment Committee
Agreement has delegated all power o control, to direct or to cause the direction of the management and policies of the Company
to Messrs Kauffman, Nardone and Edens. As such Messrs Kauffman and Nardone are interested in the 125,826,832 common
shares owned by FIN Acquisition Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Fortress.

In connection with services involving potential acquisition opportunities in the property and casualty insurance
sector that may be performed by Mark Cloutier and Kirk Lusk, these executive directors of the Company entered
into a consultancy agreement effective 1 October 2007 with Fortress Capital Finance Il (A) LLC, a Fortress
affiliate, whereby each would be paid $2,000 per day spent on such activities plus a discretionary bonus. At 31
December 2007, $Nil had been paid or accrued under this arrangement.

Loans to officers
Loans to officers were offered in connection with their purchase of Company shares and are interest bearing, full
recourse and made on consistent terms as those to other employees.

As at 31 December 2007 the Group had received repayment of all loans made to key managemeant persennel and
had loans to key management personnel, in aggregate principa! amounts of $Nil (31 December 2006: $140,000).
The number of key management personnel that had outstanding loans at 31 December 2007 was $Nil (31
December 2006: 2). Key management personnel are as described below.
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Appleby Hunter Bailhache

Timothy C Faries, a Director of the Company until 5 July 2007, is a partner and the Insurance Team Practice
Leader at Appleby Hunter Bailhache, Barristers & Attorneys, in Bermuda. In 2007, from 1 January to 5 July the
Company paid $81,866 (2006: $49,338 from 1 January to 31 December) in respect of fees for legal and co porate
administrative services provided by Appleby Hunter Bailhache. Mr Faries resigned as a director an § July 2007.

As at 31 December 2007 the amount outstanding was $Nil (31 December 2006: $373).

Key management personnel

The Group considers its key management personnel to include its Directors and those members of management
reporting directly to its Executive Directors that have executive management responsibility for Group-wide
operations.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and those members of management reporting directly to its Executive Directors
that have executive management responsibility for Group-wide operations, who are the key manajement
personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures. For the period ended 31 December 2007 this included 14 individuals (2006; 13).

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$ $

Short-term employee benefits 6,512,367 3,190,672
Post-employment benefits 62,250 41,571
Other long-term benefits Nil 114,783
Termination benefits 127,244 2,244,314
Share-based payment Nil 171,820
Total 6,701,861 5,763,170

Key management personnel employment and retention contracts

Members of the Group have entered into employment and retention contracts with Executive Directors and/or
certain members of key management, in each case taking into account the practices in the jurisdiction where the
Group operates. Compensation and termination benefits in the table above include amounts paid in 2006 and
2007 to Executive Directors and certain members of key management under such contracts, to the extent not
reported in earlier periods.

Share and loan transactions with members of key management
Kirk Lusk

Mr Lusk was granted a $49,998 loan in connection with the common share purchase program, bearing
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Board approved a deferral of principal repayment on Mr Lusk’s loan in 2005. In October 2008, Mr Lusk
paid the 2006 principal instalment of $10,000 on this loan plus accrued interest of $2,118 through the
instalment payment date. In September 2007, Mr Lusk repaid the full principal balance of his loan and
accrued interest with the proceeds of the tender of his shares to FIN Acquisition Limited.

Share and loan transactions with members of key management
Thomas Weidman

Mr Weidman was granted a $99,999 loan in connection with the share purchase program, bearing interest
at 3.7665% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31 August commencing in 2006. The: Board
approved a deferral of principal and interest on Mr Weidman's loan in 2006. Mr Weidman fully repaid the
principal balance of his loan plus accrued interest in July 2007 with the proceeds of the sale of his shares
of the Company. In accordance with the terms of his RSU award, Mr Weidman was issued 6,543 RSU
shares on 21 Septernber 2006, In connection with his separation arrangements, on 31 March 2007, Mr
Weidman forfeited his remaining 19,629 RSU shares.

|
|
|
interest at 4.1625% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31 August, commencing in 2005. The
Mark Ricciardelli

Mr M Ricciardelli received a loan of $375,000 in connection with his purchase of pledged shares at a cost
of $750,000 in March 2004 bearing interest at 1 year LIBOR set on the funding date and reset annually
on each anniversary thereof.

|

i In connection with Mr M Ricciardelli’s separation arrangements, on 28 June 2006, the Company agreed
that it would vest all restricted stock units not already vested and deliver the underlying shares (fotalling
| 70,918 shares) to Mr M Ricciardelli for sale. A portion of the proceeds of the sale of such shares,
! together with the simultaneous sale of shares purchased in 2004 by Mr M Ricciardelli (164,821 shares)
were used to satisfy the balance of Mr Ricciardelli's loan of $300,000 plus accrued interest of $13,360
through 31 August 2006, his last day of employment.

38 Retirement benefit scheme

Defined contribution schemes

The employees of the Group are covered by defined contribution schemes the costs of which are charged to the
income statement when incurred. The total cost of retirement benefits for the Group in the year ended 31
December 2007 was $1.6 million {31 December 2006 $2.6 million).

39 Operating leases

At the following balance sheet dates, the Group was committed to paying total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in each of the following periods:

Year ended Year endd
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Land and Land and
buildings Other Total buildings Other To1al

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000

- within one year 2,883 52 2,935 4,048 111 4,158
- between two and five years 5,758 2 5,760 5,561 29 5,580
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- over five years - - 189 ) 189
8,641 54 8,695 9,798 140 9,938

The total of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at 31
December 2007 was $3.6 million (31 December 20086: $4.7 million).

The gross amount incurred under operating leases during the period ended 31 December 2007 was $5.2 million
(31 December 2006: $4.9 million) before deducting income receivable from subleases of $1.0 million (31
December 2006: $1.0 million).

40 Events after the balance sheet date

On 11 January 2008 the Group announced that it had reached agreement to fully and finally commute all
exposure under an excess of loss reinsurance treaty effective 31 December 2007. Consequently, the Group has
recorded an expense of $8.8 million in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 in respeact of
this agreement. As the agreement was announced subsequent to the balance sheet date, reinsurance
recoverables totalling $41.2 million in respect of this contract are still shown as a reinsurance contract asset in the
balance sheet, with a corresponding amount shown under reserves withheld creditors. These corresponding
balances of $41.2 millian will be eliminated in the first quarter of 2008.

41 Group subsidiaries

The consolidated financial information presents the financial record of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2007 and 31 December 2006. A list of all investments in Group subsidiaries, including the narne and
country of incorporation is given below. All companies listed are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group and are
fully consclidated into the Group accounts.

The ultimate parent company of the Group is Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Place of Incorporation Proportion of Proportion of

{or registration) and ownership voting power
Name of subsidiary operation interestin % held in %
Alea Europe Ltd Switzerland 100 10C
Alea (Bermuda) Ltd Bermuda 100 10¢
Alea Holdings US Company ’ USA 100 10C
Alea North America Insurance Company USA 100 10¢
Alea North America Company USA 100 100
Alea Holdings UK Limited England and Wales 100 100
Alea London Limited England and Wales 100 100
Alea Services UK Limited England and Wales 100 100
Alea Services AG 1 Switzerland 100 100
AHUSCO Statutory Trust | USA 100 100
AHUSCO Statutory Trust Il USA 100 100
AHUSCO Statutory Trust Il) USA 100 100
Alea Syndicate Management Limited England and Wales 100 100
Alea Corporate Member Limited England and Wales 100 100
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' IRM International Reinsurance Management AG changed its name to Alea Services AG on 14 December

2008.

In 2006 the following five entities were liquidated: Alea Jersey Limited, Alea Global Risk Limited, Alea Holdings
Guernsey Limited, Alea Financial UK Limited and Alea Technology Limited. Alea North America Specialty
Insurance Company was sold on 29 September 2006 as disclosed in note 10.

HithH
END

(close]
London Stock Exchange pic is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons and
countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons andfor outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=17...  3/6/2008




Market News \ Page 1 0f 46
File No. 82-34885

Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section H &
Company Alea Group Holdings{Bermuda} Ltd

TIDM ALEA

Headline Preliminary Results - Part 2

Released 07:01 068-Mar-08

Number 4883P

RNS Number:4883P
Alea Group Holdings{Bermuda) Ltd
06 March 2008

12 Results of operating activities

Loss from operations has been arrived after charging:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,534 4,142

Staff costs (see note 13} 27,579 37,757

Auditors' remuneration {see below) 2,369 3,283
A more detailed analysis of auditors' remuneration on a worldwide basis is

provided below:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2007 2006
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$'000
Audit services 2,193
Tax services 46
Actuarial and other consulting 130
Total auditors' remuneration 2,369

13 sStaff costs

The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was:

Year ended
31 December

2007

Underwriting -
Finance 22
Information Technology 14
Claims 50
Technical Accounts 15
Management and administration 18
119

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Year ended
31 December
2007
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$'000
2,523
18
742

3,283

Year ended
31 December
2006

14
45
19
48
22
30

178

Year ended
31 December
2006
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$'000
Wages and salaries 1 24,401
Social security costs 1,562
Other pensicn costs {see note 38) 1,616
27,579

1 Severance payments of $2.0 million made in the year ended 31 December 2007
{2006: $12.2 million) are excluded in the table above. Of this $2.0 million,
$0.4 million (2006: $B.6 million) was provided in the restructuring provision
established at 31 December 2005 (see note 27). The remaining $1.6 million has
been charged through the income statement in 2007 (see note 6).

14 Finance costs

Year ended
31 December

2007

$'000

Interest on borrowings 18,184

Other investment expenses 2,932

Exchange losses/(gains) on non-functional currencies and 580
transactions losses

21,696

15 Net gains or losses on borrowings
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$'000

32,524
2,608
2,625

37,757

Year ended
31 December

2006
$'000

22,990
3,288

(1,871)

24,407
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'0Q0
Capitalised debt raising expenses charged to income 518 636
statement
518 636
16 Income tax expense/{credit)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
Current tax expense/{credit):
UK corporation tax (5) 326
Foreign tax 1,002 (4,934)
Total current tax 997 (4,608)
Deferred tax (note 23): {897} {1,894)
Total income tax expense/ {credit) 100 (6,502)

UK corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2006: 30%) of the estimated assessable
UK profit for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

The tax expense for the periods presented varied from the stated rate of UK
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corporation tax as exp

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of

UK corporation tax at

Factors affecting tax

Adjustment in respect

Adjustment in respect

Overseas and other tax
Change in UK corporati
asset

Deferred tax asset in respect of current year losses not

recognised

Utilisation of tax losses in respect of which no deferred tax

assets were provided
Other permanent differ
Tax expense/ (credit) £

In addition to the amount expensed to the income statement,
million has been expensed to equity in the year {2006: expense of $Nil}.

17 Earnings per share

lained below:

30% (2006: 30%)
expense/ (credit) :

of foreign tax rates

of prior periods
es

on tax rate used to provide deferred tax

ences
or the year

deferred tax

Year ended

31 December 2007
$'000

{78,080)

(23,424)
11,428
1390

670

79

9,936
(600)

1,883
100

of $1.0

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the

following data:
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Year ended

31 December 2006
$'000

(7,337

(2,201,

611
(884)
973

(4,276)
{725)
(6,502)
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Earnings S $
Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share {78,179,5486) (835,201}
being net loss attributable to equity heclders of
the Company
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary - -
shares:
Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per {78,179,5486) (835,201}
share
Number of shares Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 173,788,126 173,738,502
for the purposes of basic earnings per
share
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares:
- Share options - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 173,788,126 173,738,502
for the purposes of diluted earnings per
share
18 Property, plant and equipment
Computer eguipment Fixtures and office Other Total
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and software

Cost or Valuation

At 1 January 2006
Additions

Exchange difference
Disposals

At 31 December 2006
Additions

Exchange difference
Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2006
Charge for the year

Exchange differences
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2006
Charge for the year
Exchange differences

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2007
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

5'000

26,117
705
2,294
(6,263)
22,853
374
383
(830)
22,780

(18, 635)
(3,778)
(1,857)

5,780

(18, 590)
{2,017)
(357

823

(20,141}

2,639

4,263

equipment
$'000

7,793
31

255
(3,481)
4,598
220

23
(448)
4,393

(5,525}
(336)
(230}
3,522

(2,569)
(392)
{12)

394

(2,579)

1,814

2,029

$'000

1,724

120
{131)
1,713

53

133

(2)
1,897

(1,566)
(28)
{160)
147

(1,607}
(125}

(131)

{1,863}

34

106
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$'000

35,634
736
2,668
(9,875)
29,164
647
539
(1,280)
29,070

{25,726)
(4,142)
(2,347)

9,449

(22,766}
(2,534)
{500)

1,217

{24,583)

4,487

6,398
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19 Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 January 2006
Additions

At 31 December 2006
Rdditions
At 31 December 2007

Amortisation

At 1 January 2006
Impairment of asset

At 31 December 2006
Impairment of asset
At 31 December 2007

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2007
At 31 December 2006

Capitalised licences represent the cost of licences acquired to conduct business
in the United States. The Directors consider these licences to have indefinite
useful lives. The licences are tested for impairment at each balance sheet date.
At 31 December 2007 the impairment review indicated that the carrying value of
the licenses reflects the recoverable amount and no impairment write down is
necessary (31 December 2006: no impairment write down was necessary).
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Licences
5'000

9,968

9,968

9,968
{1,489}
(1,489)

(1,489)

8,479
8,479
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20 Deferred acquisition costs

At 1 January 2006
Change in year
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2006
Change in year

Exchange difference
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2007
Current assets
Non—-current assets

At 31 December 2006
Current assets
Non-current assets

Page 9 of 46

Deferred acquisition costs
$'000

107,000
{103,718)
224

3,506
{1,351)
168
2,323

1,992
331
2,323

283
3,223
3,506
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21 Financial assets

As at As at
31 becember 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000

Available-for-sale investiments
- Equity securities 165 198
- Debt securities 1,365,040 1,664,341

The investments included above represent investments in listed equity securities
and listed debt securities. The fair values of these investments are based on
guoted market prices.

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Summary by maturity - Debt securities $'000 % $'000 %
Less than 1 year 598, 506 43.8 661,770 39.8
1 year up to 3 years 317,638 23.3 354,899 21.3
3 years up to 5 years 113,916 8.3 228,385 13.7
5 years up to 10 years 102,707 7.5 136,633 8.2
More than 10 years 232,273 17.1 282,654 17.0
1,365,040 100.0 1,664,341 100.0

22 Loans and receivables including insurance receivables
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As at As at
31 Becember 2007 31 December 2006
5'000 $'000
Deposits with ceding undertakings 91,177 118,558
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 1,496 21,989
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 101,689 143,993
Amounts due from reinsurance operations not transferring significant - 66,293
risk
Accrued income (1} 42,805 49,282
Other prepayments 5,108 2,531
Cther debtors 31,432 38, 315
Total loans and receivables including insurance receivables 273,707 440, 961
Current asset 49,182 63,710
Non-current asset 224,525 377,251
273,707 440, 961
1 $31.8 million (31 December 2006: 3$35.2 million) of the renewal rights
sales are recorded as accrued income at the balance sheet date as disclosed in
note 5.

Loans and receivables including insurance receivables are recorded on the
balance sheet at amortised cost.

23 Deferred income tax

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by
the Group and movements thereon during the current and pricr repeorting period:
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Unrealised Depreciation US subsidiary Bonus and Total
gains on in advance of insurance pension accruals
investments capital transaction not currently
allowances timing deductible and
differences and other timing
losses differences
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2006 - 589 (1,878) 8 (881)
Credit/ {expense) to the income - 27 1,878 (11} 1,894
statement
Exchange differences - 138 - 3 141
At 1 January 2007 - 1,154 - - 1,154
Expense to equity {(1,030) - - {1,030)
Credit/ (expense) to the income {132) 1,030 - 898
statement
Exchange differences 12 - 12
As at 31 December 2007 (1,030} 1,034 1,030 - 1,034

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting

purposes:
As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 57000

Deferred tax assets 1,034 1,154
Deferred tax liabilities - -
1,034 1,154
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At the balance sheet date the Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of
$66.5 million (31 December 2006: 5$547.8 million) in respect of tax losses carried
forward. The assets have neot been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of $266.7 million (31
December 2006: $182.6 million) available for offset against future profits. Of
the losses at 31 December 2007 $62.6 million {31 December 2006: $24.6 million)
relate to the US, $151.0 million (31 December 2006: $140.5 million) relate to
the UK and $53.1 million (31 December 2006: $17.5 million) relate to
Switzerland.

US losses expire as follows: $21.7 million in 2026 and $40.9 million in 2027.

In the UK, tax losses are in part carried forward as disclaimed technical
reserves. UK losses have no expiry date.

Swiss losses of $53.1 million expire in 2011.

The deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2007 and as at 31 December 2006 are
non-current assets.

The deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2007 and as at 31 December 2006
are non-current liabilities.

The deferred income tax expensed to equity during the year is as follows:

Year ended
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31 December 2007
$'000
Revaluation reservel 1,030
Hedging and translation reservel -
1,030
1 The revaluation reserve is a component of shareholders' equity that is used
to record the difference between the market value of available for sale
investments carried on the balance sheet and the amortised cost of those assets.
Unrealised gains and losses arising when the market value is compared with the
amortised cost of the assets are taken to this reserve.
2 Movements in the unrealised gains and losses arising from the translation of
the Group's assets and liabilities denominated in functional currencies of the
Group are shown in the hedging and translation reserve. The hedging and
translation reserve is a component of shareholders' equity.
24 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:
As at
31 December 2007
5'000
Cash at bank and in hand 31,589
Short-term deposits with credit institutions 122,664
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31 December 2006
$'000

As at
31 December 2006
5'000

69,738
87,482
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Total cash and cash equivalents 154,253 157,220

Cash and cash equivalents yielded an effective rate of interest of 4.3% in 2007

(2006: 5.2%).

25 Insurance and reinsurance contracts

Insurance and reinsurance contracts are comprised of the following:

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
3'000 $'000
Gross claims outstanding
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not 1,605,617 2,026,102
reported
Discount (67,541) {105, 855)
1,538,076 1,920,247
Claims handling provisions 11,815 17,823
Total gross claims outstanding 1,549,891 1,938,070
Provision for unearned premiums on insurance contracts - 3,444
Total insurance contracts 1,549,881 1,941,514
Aggregate excess reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not 41,162 299,544
reported
Discount - {(7,657)
Net aggregate excess reinsurance 41,162 291,887
Other reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not 508, 651 573,216
reported
Discount {3,012) (2,665)
Net other reinsurance 505, 639 570,551
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Total reinsurance

Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not
reported

Discount

Total reinsurers' share of claims outstanding
Provision for unearned premiums on reinsurance
contracts

Total reinsurance contracts

Undiscounted claims ocutstanding, net of reinsurance
Discount
Claims outstanding net of reinsurance

Security held for aggregate excess reinsurance

Deposits received from reinsurers

Trust fund and LOC collateral available against aggregate excess
contracts

Total collateral available against aggregate excess reinsurance
recoverable

Current assets
Non-current assets
Total reinsurance contracts

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total insurance contracts
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549,813

(3,012)
546,801

546,801

1,067,619
{64,529)
1,003,090

As at
31 December 2007
5'000

41,162

41,162

As at

31 December 2007
$T000

72,669

474,132

546,801

424,653
1,125,238
1,549,891
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872,760

{10,322)
862,438
1,037

863,475

1,171,165
(95,533)
1,075,632

As at
31 December 2006
5'000

46,119
240,182

286, 301

As at

31 December 2006
$'000

211,817

651, 658

863,475

697,937
1,243,577
1,941,514
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Basis for establishing provision for claims outstanding

Loss reserves for reinsurance business are established based on claims data
reported to the Group by ceding companies supplemented with relevant industry
benchmark loss development patterns used to project the ultimate incurred loss.
Ultimate incurred loss indications are calculated by the Group's actwaries using
several standard actuarial methodoleogies including paid and incurred loss
development and the Bornhuetter-Ferguson incurred and paid loss methods.

The Group's actuaries utilise several assumptions in applying each methodology,
including loss development factors, expected loss ratios based on pricing
analysis, and actual reported claim frequency and severity. These reviews and
documentation are completed in accordance with professional actuarial standards
appropriate to the jurisdictions where the business is written. The selected
assumptions reflect the actuaries' judgement based on historical data and
experience combined with information concerning current underwriting, economic,
judicial, regulatory and other influences on ultimate claim settlements.

Based on the actuarial indications, the Group selects and records a single point
estimate separately for each line of business for each underwriting year. The
single point reserve estimate is management's best estimate which the Group
considers to be one that has an equal likelihood of developing a redundancy or
deficiency as the loss experience matures. On a quarterly basis the Group
analyses and records its loss reserve estimates across over 400 detailed lines
¢f business which reflect class of business, geographic location, insurance
versus reinsurance, proportional versus non-proportional, and treaty versus
facultative exposures. In addition, a limited number of the Group's largest
contracts are reviewed individually.

During the loss settlement period, additional facts regarding claims are
reported. As this occurs it may be necessary to increase or decrease the unpaid
losses and loss expense reserves. The actual final liability may be
significantly different to prior estimates. The Group reviews additional
reported claim information on a monthly basis. Actual claim experience is
compared to that expected from the most recent actuarial reserve review to
highlight significant variances. A complete actuarial analysis by detailed line
of business including selection of single point estimates is completed
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semi-annually and is reviewed by the Group's management.

Underwriting year table

1999 and prior 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Total
$'000 $'000 $T000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gress
Estimate of cumulative claims:
At end of
underwriting year 3,022,313 367,605 386,762 590, 359 821,724 1,092,870 630,215 -
One year later 4,564,137 452,324 396, 856 612,137 816,546 990,260 610,599 -
Two years later 4,710,816 485,269 417,049 611,228 794, 346 883,970 616,375 -
Three years later 4,755,187 507,747 441,839 654,210 186,147 874,949 - -
Four years later 4,828,948 539,694 440,855 660, 908 790,476 - - -
Five years later 4,874,927 550,212 459,255 655,037 - - - -
Six years later 4,883,595 563,532 467,672 - - - - -
Seven years later 4,893,658 560,023 - - - - - -
Eight years later 4,874,618 - - - - - - -
Estimate of
cumulative claims
as at 31 December 4,874,618 560,023 467,672 655,037 790,476 874,949 616,375 8,839,150
2007
Cumulative (4,623,090) (476,632} (391,183} (552, 650) {578,367) (600,775) (385, 598) (7,608,295}
payments
at 31
December 2007
251,528 83,391 76,489 102, 387 212,109 274,174 230,777 1,230,855
Unearned element - - - - {17) - (75) (92)
of reserves at 31
December 2007
Earned non-life
reserves before 251,528 83,391 76,489 102,387 212,092 274,174 230,702 1,230,763
effect of
discounting as at
31 December 2007
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Life and finite
reserves as at 31
December 2007

Claims handling
provisions as at

31 December 2007
Present value of
reserves before
discount recognised
in the balance sheet
as at 31 December
2007

Reinsurance recoverable

1999 and
prior
$'000

Estimate of cumulative claims:

At end of underwriting
year

One year later

Two years later

Three years later

Four years later

Five years later

Six years later

Seven years later
Eight years later

Estimate of cumulative
recoveries

at 31 December 2007
Cumulative recoveries
received at 31 December
2007

Unearned element of
reinsurance recoverable

557,558
1,544,260
1,662,449
1,646,776
1,660,199
1,684,626
1,667,762
1,669,539
1,652,959

1,652,959

{1,538,292)

114,667

2000

$'000

B7,617
163,700
156,068
149,374
136,623
130,220
130,984
128,163

128,163

(110, 301)

17,8862

2001

$'000

140,151
173,153
177,605
152,152
146,574
157,163
157,466

157,466

{147,733)

9,733

2002

57000

176,731
196,084
211,944
212,974
139, 845
181, 349

181, 349

(173,738}

7,611

2003

$'000

165,184
184,701
190,173
182, 641
173,223

173,223

{135,848

37,375

2004

$'000

177,565
145,792
137,365
147,960

147,960

(97,220)

50,740
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2005

$'000

144,472
132,953
128,042

128,042

{93,305)

34,737
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374,854

11,815

1,617,432

Total

$'000

2,569,162

(2,296,437

272,725
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at 31 December 2007
Earned net non-life
reinsurance recoverable
before effect of
discounting as at 31
December 2007
Life and finite
reinsurance recoverable
as at 31 December 2007
Present value of
reinsurance recoverable
before discount
recognised in the
balance sheet as at 31
December 2007

1999 and
prior
$'000

Net
Estimate of cumulative claims:

At end of underwriting

year 2,464,755
One year later 3,019,877
Two years later 3,048, 367
Three years later 3,108,411
Four years later 3,168,749
Five years later 3,190,301
Six years later 3,215,833
Seven years later 3,224,119
Eight years later 3,221,659
Estimate of net 3,221,659

cumulative claims at
31 December 2007

Net cumulative
payments at 31
December 2007

(3,084,798)

136,861
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114,667

17,862

2000

$'000

279,988
288,624
329,201
358,373
403,071
419,992
432,548
431,860

431,860

{366, 331)

65,529

9,733

2001

$'000

246,611
223,843
239,444
2889, 687
294,281
302,092
310,206

310,206

{243,450)

66,756

7,611

2002

$'000

413,628
416,053
399,284
441,236
461,063
473, 688

473,688

{378,912)

94,776

37,375

2003

5'000

656, 540
631,845
604,173
603,506
617,253

617,253

(442,519)

174,734

50,740

2004

$'000

915, 305
844,468
746,605
726,989

726,989
({503, 555)

223,434

34,737

2005

$'000

485,743
477,646
488, 333

488,333

(292,293)

196, 040
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272,725

277,008

549,813

Total

$'000

6,269,988

{5,311,858)

958,130
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Unearned element of

reserves at 31 - - - - {(17) - {75)
December 2007

Earned net non-life

reserves before effect 136,861 65,529 66,756 94,7176 174,717 223,434 195, 965
of discounting as at
31 December 2007

Net life and finite - - - - - = =
reserves as at 31

December 2007

Claims handling - - - - - = =
provisions as at 31

December 2007

Present value of net - - - - - - -
reserves before

discount recognised in

the balance sheet as

at 31 December 2007

{1) In June 2000 the Group added a UK insurance and reinsurance license through
the acquisition of The Imperial Fire And Marine Company Limited ('Imperial')
{now called Alea London Limited). In acquiring this entity, the Group assumed
insurance and reinsurance liabilities relating to 1999 and prior underwriting
years written by Imperial. This explains the significant increase in cumulative
claims in respect of 1999 and prior underwriting years that occurs in the table
above between 31 December 1999 and 31 December 2000. The increase in gross
cumulative claims in respect of 1999 and prior as a result of the acquisition
was $1,620.2 million and the increase in ceded cumulative claims was $897.7
million.

(2} The underwriting year development table above includes all cumulative claims
in respect of underwriting years 1987 to 2005. It alsc includes 1986 and prior
underwriting year claims paid in calendar years 1999 to 2006, and the reserves
in respect of 1986 and prior at each balance sheet date from 1999 to 2006.

{3) The insurance and reinsurance claims outstanding carried in the balance
sheet of the Group include gross and ceded amounts in respect of Canadian
structured settlement life business. The gross and ceded amounts match exactly,
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{92)

958,038

87,766

11,815

1,067,619
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to leave no net liability. As these balances relate to life business they are
excluded from the underwriting year development table. Consequently, in order to
achieve reconciliation to the balance sheet qgross and ceded claims outstanding,
they are added back in the table above. The amount as at 31 December 2007 was
$277.1 million {2006: $246.2 million).

26 Borrowings

Page 22 of 46

The borrowings are repayable as follows: As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
On demand or within one year - 200, 000
In the second year 30,000 -
In the third to fifth years inclusive - -
After five years 120,000 120,000
Total borrowings 150,000 320,000
Less: Capitalised debt raising expenses {(2,215) (2,733)
Total borrowings net of capitalised expenses 147,785 317,287
Analysis of borrowings:
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 Decenmber 2006
$'000 $'000
Amounts owed to credit institutions 30,000 200,000
Trust preferred securities 120,000 120,000
Total borrowings 150,000 320,000
All borrowings are recorded at fair value. The directors consider the carrying
http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1730460&source=RNS 3/6/2008



Market News Page 23 of 46

values disclosed above to be a reasonable approximation of the fair value at the
year end.

Conditions attaching to amounts owed to credit institutions as at 1 January 2007

The three-year bank term loan of $200.0 million (of which $150.0 million had
been drawn down} and the $530.0 million revolver carried an interest margin of
120 basis points, which was adjustable based upon the Standard and Poor's debt
ratings for Alea. The $50.0 million revolver facility was additionally subject
to a commitment fee of 40% of the applicable margin.

These borrowings fell due for repayment in September 2007. On 19 April 2007, the
Group repaid $25.0 million of the term loan and all of $50.0 million revolver
using its cash reserves, leaving an outstanding amount of $125.0 million.

Conditions attaching to the term loan agreed 6 July 2007

The Group drew down the maximum aggregate commitment under this new term loan
agreement of $90.0 million. This was due for repayment in three equal
instalments of $30.0 million on 16 October 2007, 14 January 2008 and 18 July
2009. However, the Group made an optional prepayment of $60.0 million on 18 July
2007. The remaining lecan of $30.0 million was repaid on 14 January 2008. It
carried an interest margin of 200 basis points over LIBOR.

Trust preferred securities
Restructuring Provision

$'000
At 1 January 2006 17,562
Utilisation of provision due to onerous contracts (2,052}
Reversal of provision due to onerous contracts 1 (2,500)
Utilisation of provision due to severance payments (8,638}
Exchange difference 869
At 31 December 2006 5,241
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Utilisation of provision due to onerous contracts

Utilisation of provision due to severance payments

Severance participation received due to sale of renewal rights
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2007

In December 2004, the Group issued $100.0 million of trust preferred securities
and had in place a commitment for an additional $20.0 million of trust preferred
securities issued in January 2005. These securities {(issued from three Delaware
trusts established by Alea Heldings US Company, of which one trust was
established in January 2005) provide for a preferred dividend at a rate of three
month LIBOR plus 285 basis points. These securities allow for the postponement
of preferred dividends under certain circumstances for up to five years. These
securities carry no financial covenants and no cross default covenants, have a
fixed maturity of 30 years, and are callable after five years.

27 Provisions

1 As a result of Alea North America'’s sublease of its empty offices in
Wilton a reversal of the previously recognised provision for onerous contracts
has been made. The reversal is part of the restructuring costs presented in the
income statement.

For further details regarding the restructuring costs see note 6.
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(2,448)
(426)
310
160
2,837
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At 31 December 2007
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

At 31 December 2006
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

28 Other liabilities and charges

Deferred reinsurance

commission

$'000

At 1 January 2006 3,362

Change in the period (516)

Exchange difference -

At 31 December 2006 2,846

Change in the period (1,405)

Exchange difference -

At 31 December 2007 1,441
i Includes regulatory levies of $4.7 million for Alea US (2006:

million}.

At 31 December 2007
Current liabilities
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Other accruals and
deferred income 1
$'000

33,783
4,782
(457)

38,108

(6,550)
236

31,794
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1,955
882
2,837

3,433
1,808
5,241

Total
5'000
37,145
4,266
(457}
40, 954

{7,955)
236

33,235

29,118
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Non-current liabilities 4,116
33,235

At 31 December 2006

Current liabilities 38,545
Non-current liabilities 2,409
40, 954

29 Trade and other payables

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
57000 $'000
Insurance balance payable 9, 340 7,109
Reinsurance balance payable 105,220 177,726
Deposits received from reinsurers 33,530 52,847
Reserves withheld creditors 42,048 47,004
Liabilities from reinsurance operations not transferring significant 230 67,342
risk
Other taxes and social securities 1,373 3,578
Total trade and other payables 191,741 355, 606
Current liabilities 65,707 54,380
Neon-current liabilities 126,034 301,226
191,741 355, 606

30 Consoclidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Share Capital Revaluation Hedging and Retained Share Total
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capital
$'Q00
As at 1 January 2006 1,738
Loss of the period -
Revaluation on available -
for sale investments -
gross
Revaluation on available -
for sale investments -
tax
Movement in share based -
payment reserve
Translation gains - -
gross
Translation gains - tax -
As at 31 December 2007 1,738
Share
capital
$'000
As at 1 January 2006 1,737
Issuance of shares 1

Loss of the period
Revaluation on available -

for sale investments

gross

Revaluation on available -
for sale investments -

premium

$'000

629, 668

629, 668

reserve

$7000

75,381

75,381

reserve 1

$7000

(23,697)

{10, 385)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share
premium

$'000

629, 311
357

Capital
reserve

$'000

75,381

Revaluation
reserve 1
$'000

{(12,671)

translation earnings based
reserves 2 payment
reserve
$'000 $°'000 $'000
5,305 (204,974) 720
- (78,180) -
- - 146
8,620 - -
13,925 (283,154) 866
Hedging and Retained Share
translation earnings based
reserves 2 payment
reserve
$'000 $'000 $'000
(176} (204,139) 986
- - {358)
- (835) -

(11,026)
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$'000

484,141
(78,180)
i4,34z2

{1,030}

146

8,620

428,039

Total

$'000

490,429

{835)
(11,026)
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tax

Movement in share based - - -
payment reserve

Translation gains - - - - - 5,481
gress

Translation gains - tax - - - - -
As at 31 December 2006 1,738 629, 668 75,381 (23,697) 5,305
1 The revaluation reserve is a component of shareholders’' equity that

is used to record the difference between the market wvalue of available for sale
investments carried on the balance sheet and the amortised cost of those assets.
Unrealised gains and losses arising when the market value is compared with the

amortised cost of the assets are taken to this reserve.

2 Movements in the unrealised gains and losses arising from the
translation of the Group's assets and liabilities denominated in functicnal
currencies of the Group are shown in the hedging and translation reserve.

31 Share capital

Authorised:
Commeon shares of $0.01
Total authorised

Allotted, called up and fully paid:

As at

31 December 2007

Number $'000
'000s

1,000,000 10,000

1,000,000 10,000

(204, 974)

Number
'000s

1,000,000
1,000,000

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1730460&source=RNS

Page 28 of 46

92 92

- 5,481

720 484,141

As at
31 December 2006
$'000

10,000
10,000
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Common shares of $50.01 173,788 1,738 173,788
Total allotted, called up share capital and fully paid 173,788 1,738 173,788

32 Stock options and restricted shares

Bermuda Plan

Alea Group Holdings AG (a former Group company which was merged with Alea Europe
Ltd in 2005) had in place a stock purchase and option plan for key employees and
advisors known as the 1998 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan for Key
Employees and Subsidiaries ({the ''Swiss Plan''). The Company adopted a 2002
Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, as amended (the ''Bermuda Plan''), in connection with the
re—-domiciling of the ultimate parent company of the Group to Bermuda and all
awards under the Swiss Plan are now governed by the terms of the Bermuda Plan.
The terms of the Bermuda Plan are substantially similar to the terms of the
Swiss Plan. All Alea Group Holdings AG non-voting participation shares and
options were exchanged for common shares and options in connection with an
equity exchange offer that was completed on 3 April 2002. In total, 15,000,000
common shares are authorised for use under the Bermuda Plan.

The exercise price of the options will be the fair market value of the common
shares on the grant date. Generally, the options vest rateably over a five-year
period except in the case of performance options where vesting is affected by
attainment of certain pre-approved financial targets. The exercisability of the
options accelerates upon a change of control of the Group. Options expire and
are no longer exercisable on the tenth anniversary or in certain circumstances
at the end of the three month period following such tenth anniversary of the
grant date. The expiration of the options can accelerate due to termination of
employment. Certain options granted contain shertened expiration and vesting
periods.
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The terms of the Company's common shares and the exercise price of the options
to acquire company common shares on the purchase/grant date were determined by
the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the terms of the Bermuda Plan. The
Bermuda Plan was terminated as to future grants with effect from 19 November
2003.

Executive Plan

The Company’'s shareholders have adopted the Alea Executive Option and Stock Plan
and the Alea Sharesave Plan {("Executive Plan"). The Executive Plan provides for
the grant of time and performance options, restricted stock units and share
savings for employees. The exercise price of options granted shall not be less
than the middle market quotation for the Company's shares on the dealing day
preceding the date of grant. The number of common shares granted in any period
under all of the Company's employee share schemes (excluding shares issuable on
exercise of options granted prior to 19 November 2003) may not exceed 10% of the
Company's issued ordinary share capital. Generally, the vesting period of an
option granted under the Executive Plan is subject to the discretion of the
Board {or a committee therecf) provided that vesting for certain tax qualified
options may not be earlier than 3 years or more than 10 years after the date of
grant and unless any relevant performance conditions have been satisfied.

Other

The company has issued to Fisher Capital Corp. LLC certain options to acguire
common shares, which are fully vested and are exercisable within 15 years of the
date of grant. In connection with a consulting agreement, the company has issued

restricted shares which are fully vested to Richard Delaney, a former director.
These shares and options were not granted pursuant to either Plan.

Transactions involving common share options are disclosed in note 33.

33 Share-based payments
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Equity-settled share coption plan

The Group plans provide for a grant price equal to the average quoted market
price of the Group shares on the date of grant. The vesting period is generally
5 years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the
date of grant, the options expire. Options are typically contractually forfeited
if the employee leaves the Group subject to certain exercise periods that apply
to vested options and to certain options granted in 2005 pursuant to the
Executive Plan.

Year ended
31 December 2007

Number of Weighted Number of
options average options

exercise price

in $
Options outstanding at beginning of year 4,688,676 3.68 9,383,428
Options granted during the year - - -
Options forfeited during the year (1,664,942} 3.78 {4,694,752)
Options exercised during the year - - -
Options which expired during the year - - -
Cptions outstanding at end of year 3,023,734 3.62 4,688,676
Options exercisable at end of year 2,509,850 3.5¢ 3,153,866

No options were exercised during the year. The options outstanding at 31
December 2007 had a weighted average exercise price of $3.62 (2006: $3.68), and
the weighted average remaining contractual lives of those options are as
follows.

Year ended

31 December 2007
Weighted Number of
Average share

Range of
exercise

Range of
exercise

Weighted
Average
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Year ended
31 December 2006
Weighted

average

exercise
price in §

3.65

3.95

Year ended

31 December 2006

Number of
share
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Opticns outstanding at end
of year divided into
meaningful ranges

Share options issued in
respect cof Alea Group
Holdings AG after repricing
Alea Group Holdings
(Bermuda) Ltd coptions
granted pre - IPO

Alea Group Holdings
{(Bermuda) Ltd options
granted post - IPO

All options

$3.22

$3.22

$3.21

$3.21

prices

-$3.22

-$4.30

-$4.31

-$4.31

Remaining
Contractual
Life

0.97

3.09

6.81

3.91

options
outstanding

60,880

2,266,844

696,010

3,023,734

$3.22

$3.22

$3.21

$3.21

prices Remaining
Contractual

Life

-$3.22 2.04
~-54.30 4.27
-54.31 7.95
-$4.31 5.54

No options were granted during the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 (2006:

No options granted).

The Group recognised the following total expenses and repurchases in respect of
equity-settled share based payment transactions:

Total expense recognised for the year arising from share-based
payment transactions that were recognised immediately as an
expense - {all are equity settled)

RSU expense charged in year

Cash repurchases of vested options held by leavers

Year ended

Page 32 of 46

options
outstanding

142, 660

2,840,480

1,705,536

4,688,676

Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

'000

187

(41)
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34 Cash used in operations

Year ended
31 December

2007
$'000
Loss for the year (78,180)
Adjustments for:
- tax expense/{credit) 100
- depreciation 2,534
Net cash flows for the pericd transferred to investing {55, 380)
activities
(Proft)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (16)
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary -
Debt interest expense 18,184
(Profit)/loss on foreign exchange {4,388)

Change in operating assets and liabilities (excluding the effect of acquisitions and

exchange differences on consolidation)

Net decrease in insurance liabilities {(444,459)
Net decrease in reinsurance assets 332,392
Net decrease in loans and receivables 179,495
Net decrease in other operating liabilities (191,192}

Net movement in share based payment reserve 146
Cash used in operations (240, 764)

3% Contingent liabilities

l46
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Year ended
31 December

2006
$'000

(835)

{(6,502)
4,142
(85,429)

305
(4,336)
22,990
1,500

(979, 468)
212,680
364,831

{lle, 968)

91

(586,999)
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Structured settlements

The Group, through the Canadian branch of Alea Europe Ltd, has assumed ownership
of certain structured settlements and has purchased annuities from life assurers
to provide fixed and recurring payments to those underlying claimants. As a
result of these arrangements, the Group is exposed to a credit risk to the
extent that any of these insurers are unable to meet their obligations under the
structured settlements. This risk is viewed by the Directors as being remote as
the annuities are fully funded and the Group has only purchased annuities from
Canadian insurers with a financial stability of AA or higher (Standard &
Poor's). The Canadian branch is in run-off and the branch discontinued accepting
assignments of annuities in August 2001.

In the event of all the relevant life insurers being unable to meet their
obligations under the structured settlements, at 31 December 2007, the total
exposure, net of amounts that may be recoverable from the Compensation
Corporation of Canada (a Canadian industry-backed compensation scheme), is
estimated to be 41.5 million Canadian Dollars ($41.6 million) and the maximum in
relation to any one insurer 18.6 million Canadian Dollars ($18.7 million).

Subpoenas and requests for information/regulatory matters

The US domiciled insurance members of the Group received certain subpoenas and
information requests with respect to the ongoing investigations by various
reqgulators and governmental authorities relating to industry-wide investigations
into US producer compensation practices and arrangements. In November 2004, Alea
North America Insurance Company ("ANAIC") received a subpoena from the Attorney
General of New York and, together with Alea North America Speciality Insurance
Company ("ANASIC"), received inquiries from the insurance departments of
Delaware and North Carolina. No allegations of wrongdoing have been made against
ANAIC, ANASIC nor any of their employees, nor does the Group have reason to
believe that any of them are specific targets of any investigation.
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The Group has cocperated fully with these ingquiries. After concluding their
internal investigations in connection with these matters, these member companies
have reported to these regulatory authorities that they have identified no
transactions or information causing concern, nor are they aware of any improper
conduct.

Certain members of the Group have received subpoenas and information requests
with respect to finite reinsurance from the US Securities and Exchange
Commission, the FSA, the Australian Prudential Regulatory Ruthority and the
Florida and Delaware state insurance authorities.

The Group has cooperated or is cooperating fully with each authority from which
it has received an inquiry and is aware of no improper conduct.

These industry-wide investigations, including certain of the investigations to
which the Group is a party, are cngoing and it is not possible to predict the
impact that these investigations, or any enquiries specific to the Group, may
have on the Group's current or future business and financial results. Moreover,
there can be no assurance that further investigations will not be initiated or
reopened in the future.

In connection with a periodic market conduct examination, the California
Department of Insurance has disputed certain fees collected from policyholders
by two agents of one of the Group's subsidiaries. The Group disagrees with the
Department's position, but is cooperating to audit these fee arrangements. The
agreements with the agents involved have been terminated. It is not possible to
predict the impact of this dispute on the Group's financial results.

Company contingent liabilities

In 2002 the Company entered into a top down guarantee with each of the Group's
rated insurance operating entities. These guarantees were in addition to the
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pre-existing guarantees already in place between certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Subject to applicable corporate and regulatory requirements, the top down
guarantees required that the Company make funds available to the insurance
operating entities to allow the entities to fulfil their insurance or
reinsurance obligations to the client/customer incurred while the guarantee
remained in effect. The Group terminated all top down and other intra-Group
guarantees effective 30 November 2006.

36 Exposure to specific credit risk

Exposure to Lumkermens

In connection with the Group's acquisition of the Equus Re reinsurance division
of Lumbermens on 3 December 1999, Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens entered into
a 100% guota share reinsurance of the Lumbermens business written by Equus Re
through 3 December 1999 (namely, business written by Equus Re prior to the
Group's acquisition of the Equus Re operations). Lumbermens, in turn, provides
stop loss reinsurance to Alea ({(Bermuda) Ltd for losses in excess of a 75% paid
loss ratio on the same business incepting prior to 1 October 1999 (the
"Protected Business™). In addition to the Protected Business, the parties agreed
that the Group would write new and renewal business on behalf of Lumbermens (as
the reinsurer) up to 31 December 2001, which business is ceded by a 100% quota
share reinsurance to Alea (Bermuda) Ltd (the "Fronted Business"). Ceoncurrent
with these arrangements, Lumbermens retained Alea North America Company ("ANAC")
as its agent to adjust and pay claims and collect premiums for both the
Protected Business and the Fronted Business.

The respective obligations of Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens noted above are
subject to contractual mutual offset provisions under the reinsurance agreements
and as permitted under Illincis law. Further, in respect of the Preotected
Business, Lumbermens is contractually required to fund losses on its own behalf
once the 75% paid loss ratio is met. The Group's balance sheet therefore,
records (i) no net balance due from Lumbermens under the Protected Business, as
the 75% paid loss ratio was met in late December 2003 (specifically, $64.35
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million due to and from Lumbermens), and {ii) as at 31 December 2007, an
aggregate balance due to Lumbermens under the Fronted Business and in respect of
husiness written by Equus Re between 1 Octeober 1999 and 3 December 1999 of $39.2
million, after taking credit for amounts treated as paid for accounting
purposes.

As is required for credit for reinsurance purposes when cessions are made to
non-US licensed reinsurers, BAlea (Bermuda) Ltd must collateralise its
obligations to Lumbermens. Pursuant to contract, the amount of posted collateral
is required to equal 120% of the estimated loss reserves, which based on the
above year-end balance due from Alea (Bermuda) Ltd would be approximately $47.0
million.

Alea (Bermuda} Ltd and Lumbermens continue to disagree over the level of
reserves requiring collateralisation. However, following commutations completed
in 2007 with Lumbermens with respect to certain ceding companies and a further
release of collateral at the request by Alea (Bermuda) Ltd, on 31 December 2007,
the posted collateral was reduced to $99.4 million (31 December 2006 $134.6
million). Either party may require an independent actuarial estimate of
applicable reserves to resolve their differences with regard to the required
collateral calculation. Neither party has required another independent reserve
estimate since the last independent reserve estimate dated as of 30 September
2004.

Lumbermens risk based capital level allows the Illinois Department of Insurance
to assume control of Lumbermens at its discretion. The mutual obligations of
Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens described above are subject to contractual
mutual offset provisions under the agreements and as permitted under Illinois
law. Accordingly, having taken legal advice, the Group believes that the Group
should not be exposed to material credit risk resulting from these arrangements
with Lumbermens. However, no assurance can be given that a court would uphold
these mutual offset provisions and contractual rights.
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37 Related party transactions

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P./Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C.

At 30 June 2007, certain parties related to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P.
owned in excess of 40% of the Company's issued shares. In connection with that
ownership, the Company had in place certain relationship, management rights,
shareholder and advisory fee agreements, as amended with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts
& Co., L.P., KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas}, Limited Partnership, KKR Partners
(International), Limited Partnership and Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C. These
agreements were further described in the Company's Listing Particulars dated 14
November 2003 and provided for annual advisory fees of $750,000 payable to
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P., an affiliate of KKR 1936 Fund (Overseas),
Limited Partnership, a shareholder and KKR Partners (International), Limited
Partnership, also a shareholder and $350,000 payable to Fisher Capital Corp.
L.L.C., alsc a shareholder. In connection with negotiations pertaining to
acguisition of contrel of the Company by FIN Acquisition Limited, Kohlberg
Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. and Fisher Capital Corp. LLC agreed to waive payment
of these fees for the period commencing 1 April 2007. These agreements were
terminated effective 5 July 2007 in connection with the acguisition of control
of the Company by FIN Acquisition Limited. As at 31 December 2007, Kohlberg
Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. and Fisher Capital Corp. LLC had received $187,500
and $87,500 in advisory fees, respectively. As at 31 December 2007 the balance
due under these arrangements was $Nil (31 December 2006: $Nil). <Certain of the
Company's former Directors held interests in these entities as described in the
Directors' Report included within the Annual Report 2006.

Fortress Investment Group

At 31 December 2007, certain parties related to Fortress Investment Group owned
72.40% of the Company's issued shares. Effective 1 Octcber 2007 the Company put
in place an advisory fee agreement with FIG LLC, a Fortress affiliate
("Fortress™), under which the Company has agreed to pay Fortress $1,000,000 per
year, payable quarterly in arrears, for advisory services. At 31 December 2007,
Fortress had received $Nil. As at 31 December 2007 the balance due under these
arrangements was $250,000. The Fortress Directors' beneficial interests in
common shares of the Company as at 31 December 2007 were as follows:
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Name of Director Number of common shares

Robert I Kauffmani
Randal A Nardonel

1 Robert Kauffman and Randal Nardone are members of the Joint Investment
Committee formed pursuant to the terms of a Joint Investment Committee Agreement
("JICA") by and among FIG Corp., Fortress Investment Group LLC {the direct
parent of FIG Corp. "Fortress"), Fortress Operating Entity I LP, Fortress
Operating Entity II LP, Messrs Kauffman, Nardone, Peter L. Briger Jr., Wesley R.
Edens and Michael R. Novogratz. Under the terms of the JICA, each other party to
the Joint Investment Committee Agreement has delegated all power to contrel, to
direct or to cause the direction of the management and policies of the Company
to Messrs Kauffman, Nardone and Edens. As such Messrs Kauffman and Nardone are
interested in the 125,826,832 common shares owned by FIN Acquisition Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Fortress.

In connection with services involving potential acquisition opportunities in the
property and casualty insurance sector that may be performed by Mark Cloutier
and Kirk Lusk, these executive directors of the Company entered into a
consultancy agreement effective 1 October 2007 with Fortress Capital Finance III
(A) LLC, a Fortress affiliate, whereby each would be paid $2,000 per day spent
on such activities plus a discretionary bonus. At 31 December 2007, $Nil had
been paid or accrued under this arrangement.

Loans to officers

Loans to officers were offered in connection with their purchase of Company
shares and are interest bearing, full recourse and made on consistent terms as
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those to other employees.

As at 31 December 2007 the Group had received repayment of all loans made to key
managemnent personnel and had loans to key management personnel, in aggregate
principal amounts of 5Nil (31 December 2006: $140,000). The number of key

management personnel that had outstanding loans at 31 December 2007 was SNil {31
December 2006: 2). Key management personnel are as described below.

Appleby Hunter Bailhache

Timothy C Faries, a Director of the Company until 5 July 2007, is a partner and
the Insurance Team Practice Leader at Appleby Hunter Bailhache, Barristers &
Attorneys, in Bermuda. In 2007, from 1 January to 5 July the Company paid
$81,866 (2006: $49,338 from 1 January to 31 December} in respect of fees for
legal and corporate administrative services provided by Appleby Hunter
Bailhache. Mr Faries resigned as a director on 5 July 2007,

As at 31 December 2007 the amount outstanding was $Nil (31 December 2006: $373).

Key management personnel

The Group considers its key management personnel to include its Directors and
those members of management reporting directly to its Executive Directors that
have executive management responsibility for Group-wide operations.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and those members of management reporting
directly to its Executive Directors that have executive management
responsibility for Group-wide cperations, who are the key management personnel
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of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified
in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. For the period ended 31 December 2007 this
included 14 individuals (2006: 13).

Year ended
31 December 2007

$
Short-term employee benefits 6,512,367
Post-employment benefits 62,250
Other long-term benefits Nil
Termination benefits 127,244
Share-based payment Nil
Total 6,701,861

Key management personnel employment and retention contracts

Members of the Group have entered into employment and retention contracts with
Executive Directors and/or certain members of key management, in each case
taking into account the practices in the jurisdiction where the Group operates.
Compensation and termination benefits in the table above include amounts paid in
2006 and 2007 to Executive Directors and certain members of key management under
such contracts, to the extent not reported in earlier pericds.

Share and loan transactions with members of key management

Kirk Lusk
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Mr Lusk was granted a $49,998 loan in connection with the common share purchase
program, bearing interest at 4.1625% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31
Angust, commencing in 2005. The Board approved a deferral of principal repayment
on Mr Lusk's loan in 2005. In October 2006, Mr Lusk paid the 2006 principal
instalment of $10,000 on this locan plus accrued interest of $2,118 through the
instalment payment date. In September 2007, Mr Lusk repaid the full principal
walance of his loan and accrued interest with the proceeds of the tender of his
shares to FIN Acquisition Limited.

Share and loan transactions with members of key management

Thomas Weidman

Mr Weidman was granted a $99%,99%%9 loan in connection with the share purchase
program, bearing interest at 3.7665% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31
Bugust commencing in 2006. The Board approved a deferral of principal and
interest on Mr Weidman's loan in 2006. Mr Weidman fully repaid the principal
balance of his loan plus accrued interest in July 2007 with the proceeds of the
sale of his shares of the Company. In accordance with the terms of his RSU
award, Mr Weidman was issued 6,543 RSU shares on 21 September 2006. In
connection with his separation arrangements, on 31 March 2007, Mr Weidman
forfeited his remaining 19,629 RSU shares.

Mark Ricciardelli

Mr M Ricciardelli received a loan of $375,000 in connection with his

purchase of pledged shares at a cost of $750,000 in March 2004 bearing interest
at 1 year LIBOR set on the funding date and reset annually on each anniversary
thereof.
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In connection with Mr M Ricciardelli's separation arrangements, on 29 June 2006,
the Company agreed that it would vest all restricted stock units not already
vasted and deliver the underlvying shares (totalling 70, 918 shares) to Mr M
Ricciardelli for sale. A portion of the proceeds of the sale of such shares,
together with the simultaneous sale of shares purchased in 2004 by Mr M
Ricciardelli {164,821 shares) were used to satisfy the balance of Mr
Ricciardelli's loan of $300,000 plus accrued interest of $13,360 through 31
August 2006, his last day of employment.

38 Retirement benefit scheme

Defined contribution schemes

The employees of the Group are covered by defined contribution schemes the costs
0of which are charged to the income statement when incurred. The total cost of
retirement benefits for the Group in the year ended 31 December 2007 was $1.6
million {31 December 2006: $2.6 million}.

39 Operating leases

At the following balance sheet dates, the Group was committed to paying total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in each of
the fellowing periods:

Year ended
31 December 2007
Land and Other Total Land and
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buildings buildings

$'000 $'000 5'000 $'000

- within one year 2,883 52 2,935 4,048
- between two and five years 5,758 2 5,760 5,561
- over five years - - - 189

8,641 54 8,695

The total of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under
non-cancellable subleases at 31 December 2007 was $3.6 million (31 December
2006: $4.7 million).

The gross amount incurred under operating leases during the period ended 31
December 2007 was $5.2 million (31 December 2006: $4.9 million) before deducting
income receivable from subleases of $1.0 million (31 December 2006: $1.0
million) .

40 Events after the balance sheet date

On 11 January 2008 the Group announced that it had reached agreement to fully
and finally commute all exposure under an excess of loss reinsurance treaty
effective 31 December 2007. Consequently, the Group has recorded an expense of
$8.8 million in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 in
respect of this agreement. As the agreement was announced subsequent to the
balance sheet date, reinsurance recoverables totalling $41.2 million in respect
of this contract are still shown as a reinsurance contract asset in the balance
sheet, with a corresponding amount shown under reserves withheld creditors.
These corresponding balances of $41.2 million will be eliminated in the first
quarter of 2008.
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41 Group subsidiaries

The consolidated financial information presents the financial record of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006. A list of all
investments in Group subsidiaries, including the name and country of
incorporation is given below. All companies listed are wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group and are fully consolidated into the Group accounts.

The ultimate parent company of the Group is Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda} Ltd.

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary Place of Propeortion of
incorporation (or ownership interest
registration) and in %
operation

Alea Europe Ltd Switzerland 100

Alea (Bermuda) Ltd Bermuda 100

Alea Holdings US Company usa 100

Alea North America Insurance Company USA 100

Alea North America Company USA 100

Alea Holdings UK Limited England and Wales 100

Alea London Limited England and Wales 100

Alea Services UK Limited England and Wales 100

Alea Services AG 1 Switzerland 100

AHUSCO Statutory Trust I Usa 100

AHUSCO Statutory Trust II Ush 100

AHUSCO Statutory Trust III USA 100

Alea Syndicate Management Limited England and Wales 100

Alea Corporate Member Limited England and Wales 100
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1 IRM International Reinsurance Management AG changed
Services AG on 14 December 2006.

In 2006 the following five entities were liquidated: Alea
Global Risk Limited, Alea Holdings Guernsey Limited, Alea
and Alea Technology Limited. Alea North America Specialty
sold on 29 September 2006 as disclosed in note 10.

HhEH

This information is provided by RNS3

its name to Alea

Jersey Limited, Alea
Financial UK Limited
Insurance Company was
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Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section Eg 8
Company Alea Group Holdings{Bermuda) Ltd

TIDM ALEA

Headline Preliminary Results Amendment

Released 07:01 07-Mar-08

Number 5826P

7 March 2008
Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd {("Alea" or the "Company")

Audited results for the 12 months ended 31 December 2007 - Amendment

Hamilton, Bermuda

Further to yesterday's announcement of Alea's results for the 12 months ended 31 December 2007 (the
"Announcement"), it has come to the Company's attention that certain items of financial disclosure contained in
the Announcement contained minor inaccuracies.

These inaccuracies appeared in the tables included in the Financial Review and in Section 4 of the
Announcement (i) presenting the Alea Group's booked gress claims outstanding before claims handling
provisions and before discount as at 31 December 2007 by class of business and year and (ii) analysing Alea's
gross claims outstanding between incurred but not reported ("IBNR") and case reserves at 31 December 2007.
The total provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported is not affected by these inaccuracies.

These inaccuracies are not felt by management to have a material impact on their previous conclusion that the
Directors properly discharged their obligations as set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities to produce
financial statements showing a true and fair view of the Alea Group’s position and results and in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards. The Company has corrected these inaccuracies and will ralease
revised financial statements including revised disclosures as soon as possible.

For further information, please contact:

Mark Cloutier
+1 (441) 296-9150

Financial Dynamics
Nick Henderson or Robert Bailhache
+44 (20) 7269 7114

Certain statements made in this announcement that are not based on current or historical facts are forward-looking in nature including, without
limitation, statements containing words "believes,” "anticipates,” "plans,” "projects,” "intends,"” "expects,” "estimates," "predicts,” and words of
similar import. All statements other than statements of historical facts including, without limitation, those regarding the Group’s financial
position, business strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations (including development plans and objectives) are
forward-locking statements. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that
could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In particular, forecasting of reserves for future losses is based on
historical experience and future assumptions. As a result, they are inherently subjective and may fluctuate based on actual future experience
and changes to current or future trends in the legal, social or economic environment. Such forward-locking statements are based on numerous
assumptions regarding the Group's present and future business strategies and the environment in which the Group will operate in th2 future.
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These forward-looking statements speak only as at the date of this document or other information concemned. Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda)
Ltd expressly disclaims any obligations or undertaking (other than reporting obligations imposed on us in relation to our listing on the London
Stock Exchange) to disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any changes in the
Group's expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.
References in this paragraph to the Group are to Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd and its subsidiaries from time to time.

END
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London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons and
countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified

countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.
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Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section 2 &
Company Alea Group Holdings{Bermuda) Ltd

TIDM ALEA

Headline Revised Preliminary Results

Released 07:02 10-Mar-08

Number 6909P

This announcement replaces the previous Preliminary Results announcement (RNS numbers 4882P and
4883P), released at 07.01am on 6 March 2008.

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd
Audited results for the 12 months ended 31 December 2007
lea announces full 2007 res n vi a n run-off
Fi cial Perf n

» Insurance contracts liabilities decreased by 20.2% from $1,941.5 million at 31 December 20086 to $1,549.9
million at 31 December 2007.

Investment income of $73.1 million (2006': $94.8 million) reflecting a decrease in invested assets as cash is
used for claims payments and commutations.

Other operating expenses for 2007 were $59.7 million (2006 $66.6 million) which includes $11.9 miillion of
one-time transaction related expenses, which on a per share? basis3 was $0.07.
Result of operating activities of $(56.4) million (2006: $17.1 million).

Adverse reserve development, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount in the
year ended 31 December 2007 of $29.9 million (2006: adverse reserve development of $37.6 million, net of
reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount).

Agreements to commute two excess of loss reinsurance treaties resulted in a loss of $33.8 million, vhich on
a per share basis was $0.19.

Loss after tax in 2007 of $78.2 million (2006: loss after tax of $0.8 million) which on a per share basis was
$0.45 (2006 loss per share of $0.00).

Net asset value of $2.46 per share compared with 31 December 2006 of $2.79 per share including the
impact of unrealised losses on investments.

Subsequent to 31 December 2007 the Group repaid all of its outstanding bank loans.

Operational Highligh
» Staff headcount reduced to 105 as at 31 December 2007 down from 137 as at 31 December 2006.

Di r Ch C . cti

Several events in 2007 resulted in a significant change in both the ownership and the Board of Directors of Alea
Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd. Following the acquisition by FIN Acquisition Limited of approximately 67% of the
Company’s? shares in issue, on 6 July 2007, the Group announced the resignation of each of John Reeve,
Timothy Faries, James Fisher, Todd Fisher, Perry Golkin, R. Glenn Hilliard, and Scott Nuttall as directers of the
Company with effect from 5 July 2007. The Group further announced the appointment of Robert Kauffman,
Randal Nardone and Greg Share as non-executive directors of the Company with simultaneous effect. Mr
Kauffman was also appointed Chairman of the Board.
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On 10 July 2007, the Group anncunced the conversion of the currency in which the Company’s shares trade on
the London Stock Exchange from pounds sterling to US dollars. On 18 July 2007, the Group announced it had
posted a circular to its shareholders relating to the conversion of the Company's listing on the Official List of the
UK Listing Authority from a primary listing to a secondary listing, with an effective date of 16 August 2007.

On 23 July 2007, FIN Acquisition Limited announced it had closed to further acceptances on 20 July 2007, its
recommended cash offer to acquire the shares of Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd, which increased its
ownership to 72.4%.

Dividend
The Company has not proposed a dividend for the 2007 financial year (2006: $Nil).
Notes

1. Except where specifically indicated all statements refer to the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 or 31 December 2006.

2. Welghted average number of ordinary shares of 173.8 million (2006: 173.7 miillion).

3. Basic and diluted loss per share are the same value.

4, “Company” refers to Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd only. “Group” refers to Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd ard all its
subsidiaries.

Financial information presented herein has been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS™).

For further information, please contact;

Mark Cloutier
+1 441 296 9150

Financial Dynamics
Robert Bailhache
Nick Henderson

+44 20 7268 7114

Past performance cannot be relied upon as a guide to future performance.

Certain statements made in this document that are not based on current or historical facts are forward-looking in nature including, without
limitation, statements containing words "believes,” "anticipates,” "plans,” "projects,” "intends,” "expects " "estimates,” "predicts,” and words of
similar import. All statements other than statements of historical facts including, without limitation, those regarding the Group's financial
position, business strategy, plans and objeclives of management for future operations (including development plans and objectives) are
forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that
could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to be materially different from future results, perforrnance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In particular, forecasting of reserves for future losses is based on
historical experience and future assumptions. As a result they are inherently subjective and may fluctuate based on actual future esperience
and changes to current or future trends in the legal, social or economic environment. Such forward-looking statements are based on r umerous
assumptions regarding the Group's present and future business strategies and the environment in which the Group will aperate in the future.
These forward-looking statements speak only as at the date of this document or other information concerned. Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda)
Ltd expressly disclaims any obligations or undertaking {cther than reporting obligations imposed on us in relation to our listing on thiz London
Stock Exchange) to disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-locking statements contained herein to reflect any changes in the
Group's expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.
References in this paragraph to the Group are to Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd and its subsidiaries from time to time.

This document is the revised Annual Financial Report and financial statements and replaces the Annual
Financial Report and original financial statements which were approved by the Board of Directors on 5 March
2008 and issued to the market on 6 March 2008.

The Financial Review and note 4 to the financial statements contain tables (i) presenting the Alea Group's
booked gross claims outstanding before claims handling provisions and before discount as at 31 December
2007 by class of business and year and (ii) analysing Alea's gross claims outstanding between incurred but not
reported ("IBNR") and case reserves at 31 December 2007. In the original financial statements, due to an
arithmetical error, the analysis between classes was incorrect, although the totals by year and the grand totals
were correct, and the analysis between IBNR and case reserves was incorrect. No other note disclosures,
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primary financial statements or commentary in the Financial Review was affected. These inaccuracies have
been carrected in the revised Annual Financial Report and financial statements.

MANAGEMENT REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

2007 was another year of significant change for Alea Group. While we continued to focus on the orderly ru1-off of
the Group's balance sheet we also completed a number of major transactions including the purchase of a majority
interest in the Group by FIN Acquisition Limited, a Company formed at the direction of Fortress Investment (Sroup.

As we have stated previously, our goal is to crystallise, preserve and, if possible, grow our capital base and,
through our run-off activities, free-up excess capital which can be returned to shareholders or reinvestec in the
business. While our reported results for 2007 were impacted by several one-time events that require further
explanation, we can report significant further progress in our efforts to deleverage the Group's balance sheet and
secure and release capital for the benefit of our shareholders.

During the course of the year, we completed a number of commutation transactions that met our ecanomic
objectives, and we believe, reduced volatility in our provisions for claims outstanding. In our direct insurance
portfolio we closed in excess of 3,000 claims representing a considerable reduction of open claims outstanding,
further reducing uncertainty in our claims provisions. Our total gross claims provision at 31 December 2007 is
$1,549.9 million compared to $1,938.0 million at 31 December 2006, a reduction of $388.1 million, representing a
considerable further deleveraging of our capital.

Our income statement for 2007 was impacted by a number of one-time items. The acquisition by FIN Acquisition
Limited of 72.4% of our issued share capital resulted in one-time transaction expenses of $11.9 million. During the
year we commuted an outwards reinsurance agreement resulting in a $25.0 million charge to earnings. Also, on
11 January 2008 we announced that we had reached agreement to commute another outwards reinsuranca treaty
effective 31 December 2007, resulting in an $8.8 million charge to our income statement, but no impact in the
period to our balance sheet. These transactions, resulting in a total charge of $45.7 million, are expected to
enhance the value of the Group in the long term and with respect to the commutations will result in a simplification
of our financial statements and accounting for reinsurance recoverahles.

In addition to the one-time items, we also experienced net adverse development of $28.9 million in our claims
provisions, occurring principally in our North American reinsurance portfolio. While less than iast year (2006 $37.6
million}, the net adverse development is particularly disappointing given our efforts to identify and where possible
reduce volatility in our claims provisions. With respect to our claims provisions, we have also made an adjustment
to the discount rate applied to those provisions which are carried at a discount to reflect the expected performance
of the assets supporting those provisions. This adjustment results in an additionat charge of $6.2 million to the
income statement.

The exceptional one-time items, adverse development and the discount rate adjustment combined to impact
operating income by $81.8 million ($0.47 per share).

While reporting a loss of any kind is disappointing, we continue to make progress in our efforts to align operating
costs with the reducing asset base, address volatifity in the balance sheet and reduce the amount of capital
required to support the business.

Evidence of that progress is found in the fact that during 2007 and shortly thereafter we repaid the full $200.0
million of bank debt carried by the Group. Repayment was achieved through funds made avaitable through
distributions from regulated subsidiaries. This action further strengthens the Group's balance sheet and provides
more flexibility in terms of capital management initiatives.

As we move into 2008, we believe we have better positioned the Group by simplifying our balance: sheet,
strengthening our reserves and significantly reducing our debt obligations. We will remain keenly focused on
reducing expenses, further reducing insurance contract liabilities and preserving our capital and assats. We
continue to explore various options for the future of the Group, including our new addition, Alea Syndicate
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Management Ltd., which we formed in 2007 as a vehicle to pursue Lloyd's Reinsurance to Close (RITC)
opportunities.

Both Kirk Lusk and | would also like to extend our gratitude to the staff at Alea for continuing to contribute tc the

run-off of the Company and under very demanding circumstances. Their hard work and dedication has made a
significant contribution to the progress of the run-off and the outlook for the Group.

Mark Cloutier
Chief Executive Officer
7 March 2008

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Consolidated income statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$’million $'million
Gross premiums written 12.7 (74.59
Revenue
Premium revenue 17.7 303.3
Premium received from/(ceded {o) reinsurers 4.7 (87.4)
Net insurance premium revenue 224 215.9
Fee income 1.9 3.2
Investment income 731 94.8
Net realised losses on financial assets (1.3) (2.5)
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary - 43
Net realised losses on sale of renewal rights (1.7) (5.0)
Total revenue 94.4 3107
Expenses
Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses 448 173.4
Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses paid to/(recovered from) 34.4 (16.7)
reinsurers
Net insurance claims 79.2 156.7
Acquisition costs 10.3 69.2
Other operating expenses 59.7 66.6
Restructuring costs 1.6 1.1
Total expenses 150.8 293.6
Results of operating activities (56.4) 17.1
Finance costs (21.7) (24.4)
Loss before income tax {78.1) (7.3)
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Income tax (expense)/credit {0.1) 6.5

Loss for the year (78.2) (0.8)

Performance indicators and comparison to prior years

The Group ceased underwriting new and renewal business and was placed into run-off in the fourth quarter of
2005. The Group’s business has therefore changed significantly and as a result the standard indicators used to
assess the performance of participants in the insurance industry are not considered appropriate for the Group.
Performance indicators that are relevant to the Group's run-off strategy are provided where these provide
meaningful and useful comparisons.

Reserves and claims

At 31 December 2007 the total insurance contracts balance comprising gross claims outstanding less discount on
claims outstanding, claims handling provisions and provision for unearned premiums was $1,549.9 million, a
decrease of 20.2% from 31 December 2006 ($1,941.5 million}. The claims outstanding, net of reinsurancz at 31
December 2007 was $1,003.1 million (31 December 2006: $1,075.6 million). Excluding the impact of the
commuted Group excess of loss reinsurance treaty the change in claims outstanding, net of reinsurance was
29.6% (31 December 2006: 28.6%).

The balances are analysed below:

As at As at
31 December
31 December 2007 2005
$’million $'million
Gross claims outstanding
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not
reported 1,605.6 2,026.1
Discount {67.5) (105.9)
1,538.1 1,920.2
Claims handling provisions 11.8 17.8
Total gross claims outstanding 1,549.9 1,938.0
Provision for unearned premiums on insurance contracts - 35
Total insurance contracts 1,549.9 1,941 §
Aggregate excess reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not
reported 41.2 299.6
Discount - (7.7)
Net aggregate excess reinsurance 41.2 2919
Other reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not
reported 508.6 573.2
Discount (3.0) (2.7)
Net other reinsurance 505.6 570.5

Total reinsurance
Provision for claims cutstanding, reported and not
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reported 549.8 872.8
Discount (3.0) (10.4)

Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding 546.8 862.4
Provision for unearned premiums on reinsurance ) 10
contracts '

Total reinsurance contracts 546.8 863.4
Undiscounted claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1, 067.6 1,171,
Discount {64.5) (85.5)
Claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1,003.1 1,075.(§

The following table presents the Group’s booked gross claims cutstanding before claims handling provisions and

before discount as at 31 December 2007 by class of business.

General Motor  Workers' Professional Property MAT' Total

$'million liability comp.
1999 and prior 90.9 439 14.9 0.5 289 736 2527
2000 25.9 106 10.7 13.9 6.9 21.0 89.0
2001 25.1 8.3 16.7 9.8 3.3 10.5 73.7
2002 28.3 71 5.8 19.4 6.1 36 70.3
2003 30.3 23.5 3.4 236 1.5 5.1 87.4
2004 330 329 6.6 24.7 75 0.2 104.9
2005 14.6 492 2.3 24.3 457 1.5 137.6
Reinsurance

reserves 248.1 175.5 60.4 116.2 99.9 115.5 815.3
Insurance reserves 221.7 63.7 100.2 26.4 9.0 - 421.1)
Total non-life

reserves 4698 239.2 160.6 142.6 108.9 115.5 1,236.6
Life structured

settlements 277.1
Life reinsurance 91.8
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,605.6

' Marine, Aviation and Transport

The following table analyses Alea’s gross claims outstanding between incurred but not reported (“IBNR™) and
case reserves as at 31 December 2007. The insurance and reinsurance splits are in line with the Group’s typical

business tail and the relative maturity of the respective books.

Percentage Total
Case reserves 46%
IBNR 54%
Total 100%

Adverse reserve development

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 the Group experienced adverse development in the
reserves, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount of $29.9 million (31 Dezember
2006: adverse reserve development, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount of

$37.6 million).

Loss reserve discount
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As permitted by IFRS 4, categories of claims provisions where the expected average interval between the Jate of
settlement and the balance sheet date is in excess of four years may be discounted at a rate which dces not
exceed that expected to be eamed by assets covering the provisions. As at 31 December 2007 30% (31
December 2006: 28%) of the Group's gross reserves were discounted at a rate of 4.0% (31 December 2006:
4.5%).

As at 31 December 2007 the Group's total net discount was $64.5 million (31 December 2006: $85.5 million). This
is expected to reduce towards zero over the duration of the normal course of payout of the reserves. The
unwinding of the discount will be charged to insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses in the income
statement as the remaining expected duration for each category of claims provisions drops below the UK GAAP
qualified level of four years as permitted by IFRS 4.

Income statement

Gross premiums written and net insurance premium revenue

Gross premiums written in 2007 were $12.7 million (2008: negative $74.9 million which reflected the cancelation
of policies written in prior periods). Net insurance premium revenue reduced by 89.6% to $22.4 million in 2007
(2006: $215.9 million). This is primarily due to the Group’s decision to cease writing new and renewal busir ess
resulting in a reduction in premium.

Fee income

In 2007 fee income was $1.9 million compared with $3.2 millicn recorded in 2006. Fee income represents income
arising on structured reinsurance and insurance contracts without significant transfer of insurance risk. These
contracts are accounted for on a deposit accounting basis.

Investment income and realised gains and losses

Investment income in 2007 was $73.1 million, 22.9% ($21.7 million} lower than the $94.8 million recorded in 20086.
The fall recorded reflects a 4.3% yield on invested assets for 2007 on average invested assets of $1,687.9 million
compared with a 4.3% yield on invested assets for 2006 on average invested assets of $2,228.3 million.

Net realised losses on financial assets were $1.3 million in 2007 compared with $2.5 million realised losses in
2006.

Net realised losses on sale of renewal rights

The Group completed three renewal rights transactions in the fourth quarter of 2005. These were accounted for
as net realised gains on sale of renewal rights of $61.1 million. Subsequently, the following movemerits have
been recognised in the income statement reflecting a change to the estimate of fair value based on the latest
financial data available. These amounts reflect the discounted estimated future cash flows arising from specified
percentages of applicable commissionable premiums written over the applicable period in accordance with the
terms of the sale contracts.

The table below summarises the change in the fair value of each transaction:

Transaction Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'million $’million

London/Canopius - (0.8)
AARIAMTrust (1.9) (5.2)
Europe/SCOR 0.2 1.0
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Total {1.7) {5.0)

To date the Group considers that the amounts recoverable of $54.4 million derived after the adjustments bhooked
in 2007 and 2006 are reasonable. It has received $22.6 million in cash. The outstanding balance consists of
$29.6 million due from AmTrust and $2.2 million due from Canopius.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses

In 2007 the Group incurred net insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses of $79.2 million (2006: $156.7
million).

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs are directly associated with the acquisition of insurance and reinsurance contracts including
brokerage, commissions, underwriting expenses and other acquisition costs. They are deferred and amrortised
over the period of contract, consistent with the earning of premium.

Given that the Group is no longer accepting new insurance risks and is releasing its unearned premium reserves
as the risk associated with those premium receipts is extinguished, acquisition costs are expected to hecome
insignificant.

In 2007 totai acquisition costs were $10.3 million (20086; $69.2 million) which includes a charge of $2.6 million in
respect of a profit sharing arrangement.

The Group has assessed its deferred acquisition cost asset (‘DAC") at 31 December 2007 of $2.3 million
(31 December 2006: $3.5 million) as fully recoverable and as a result has not recorded any DAC wrile-off in
2007.

Other operating expenses

The Group plans to minimise operating expenses as much as possible while still retaining the personnel and
capabilities to manage an efficient run-off of the existing book and pursue other corporate activities. To the extent
that investment income net of discount released does not offset other operating expenses in relation to run-off
activities, the Group will establish a run-off provision.

In 2007 other operating expenses were $59.7 million. Net of one-time transaction related expenses of $11.9
million, other operating expenses were $47.8 million. This compares with other operating expenses in 2006 of
$66.6 million.

Restructuring costs

Restructuring costs in 2007 were $1.6 million (2006: $1.1 million). These costs include severance payments of
$1.6 million (2006: $3.6 million) made to employees who were not part of the original restructuring plan as
disclosed at 31 December 2005.

Restructuring costs in 2006 also included a credit of $2.5 million which resulted from Alea North America's
sublease of its empty offices in Wilton and a resulting reversal of part of the previously recognised provision for
onerous contracts.

Staff headcount at 31 December 2007 stood at 105 (31 December 2006: 137).

Results of operating activities

In 2007, results of operating activities were a loss of $56.4 million compared with a profit of $17.1 million in 2006.
The Group incurred significant one-time charges of $45.7 million associated with the change in majority
ownership of the Company and the agreement to commute two large excess of loss reinsurance treaties. Absent
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these one-time charges, the results of operating activities for 2007 would have been a loss of $10.7 million.

Finance costs

Finance costs include investment expenses, foreign exchange movements and debt interest. In 2007 total finance
costs were $21.7 million, compared with $24.4 million recorded in the corresponding period in 2006. The majority
of this decrease resulted from a reduction in bank debt from $200.0 million to $30.0 million in 2007. The
outstanding balance was paid in full on 14 January 2008.

Loss before income tax

Loss before income tax was $78.1 million in 2007 compared with a loss of $7.3 million in 20086.
Income tax expense

The income tax expense in 2007 was $0.1 million, compared with a credit of $6.5 miillien in 2006.

The impact of the income tax expense/{credit) on the income statement is summarised as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'million $'million

Current tax expense/{credit):
UK corporation tax - 0.3
Foreign tax 1.0 (4.9)
Total current expensel/{credit) 1.0 (4.6i
Deferred tax credit: (0.9) (1.9)
Total income tax expensel/(credit) 0.1 (6.5)

The Group's Swiss, US and UK entities have significant trading losses carried forward in respect of which no
deferred tax assets have been recognised due to the uncertainty over future profitability.

In 2007 the Group’s current tax expense of $1.0 million (2006. credit of $4.6 million) is mainly derived from
branches where there are no trading losses carried forward available.

Loss on ordinary activities after income tax

Loss on ordinary activities after income tax in 2007 was $78.2 millicn (2006: loss of $0.8 million),

Loss per share

Basic and fully diluted loss per share for 2007 was $0.45 per share (2008: loss per share of $0.00).
Dividend

The Company will not be paying a dividend for the 2007 financial year (2006: $Nil).

Balance sheet

Total assets

Total assets as at 31 December 2007 decreased by 25.1% to $2,356.3 million from $3,145.7 million at 31
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December 2006.

Net assets

Net assets (shareholders’ funds attributable to equity interests) at 31 December 2007 were $428.0 million (31
December 2006: $484.1 million). Net assets per share were $2.46 (31 December 20086: $2.79).

Net assets have been favourably impacted by a $13.3 million decrease in cumulative unrealised losses in the
investment portfolio described below. However, net assets have been adversely affected by the $33.8 million loss
associated with the agreement to commute two large excess of loss reinsurance treaties, $11.9 million in one-
time transaction related expenses and by $29.9 million in adverse development.

Reinsurance recoverables

Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding was $546.8 million at 31 December 2007 {31 December 2006:
$862.4 million). The reduction is primarily attributable to the agreement to commute one large excess of loss
reinsurance treaty completed in 2007.

Invested assets

The Group’s investment strategy emphasises a high quality diversified portfolio of liquid investment grace fixed
income securities as a method of preserving capital. The investment portfclio does not currently consist of equity
or real estate investments, but the Group may, in the future, invest in other asset classes.

At 31 December 2007 the value of available for sale investments was $1,365.2 million, compared with $1,664.5
million at 31 December 2006.

Of total invested assets $1,317.2 million (31 December 2008: $1,732.7 million) is managed by third-paity fund
managers with the asset mix shown below. The remaining invested assets of $202.3 million include
predominantly mutual funds invested in fixed income securities and deposits at banking institutions.

Asset class 31 December 2007 31 Decembar 2006
US government 20% 21%
US mortgage 15% 16%
EU and Switzerland government and corporate 15% 14%
US corporate 10% 11%
Asset backed securities 2% 4%
US municipalities 1% 1%
Canadian government and provinces 2% 2%
Cash and cash equivalents 35% 3%
Total 100% 100%

At 31 December 2007 the Group's investment portfolic had an average duration of 1.5 years (31 December 20086:
1.7 years). The Group has maintained a shortened average duration for the portfolio to provide liquidity
anticipated to be required to support the Group's run-off strategy. The Group may choose to increase the average
duration of the portfolio in the future.

In 2007 the Group achieved a total gross return on the investment portfolio of 5.2% (2006: 3.6%). The investment
return comprised 4.3% investment income (2006: 4.3%), 0.1% realised loss (2006: loss of 0.1%) and 1.0%
unrealised gain (2006: loss of 0.6%) on average invested assets of $1,317.2 million (2006: $2,228.3 million).

At 31 December 2007, apart from $3.3 million rated BBB, all of the Group's fixed income portfolio was rated A or
better and 85.3% was rated AA or better (31 December 2006: 93.7%) by either Standard & Poor's or Moody's.
The portfolio had a weighted average rating of AAA based on ratings assigned by Standard & Poor's or Moody's.
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Other than with respect to US, Canadian and European Union government and agency securities, the Group's
investment guidelines limit its aggregate exposure to any single issuer to 5% of its portfolio. Under the Group’s
current investment guidelines, all securities must be rated A or better at the time of purchase and the wiighted
average rating requirement of the Group's portfolio is AAA. There were no investment write-offs in either 2006 or
2007.

There are pledges over certain investments for the issuance of letters of credit in the normal course of business.
As at 31 December 2007 the pledges covered assets of $282.2 million (31 December 2006: $343.6 million). In
addition $134.2 million (31 December 2006; $131.7 million) is held as statutory deposits for local regulators and a
further $534.9 million (31 December 2006: $619.4 million) is held in trust for the benefit of policy holders inzluding
$176.1 million (31 December 2008: $197.5 million) that Alea (Bermuda) Ltd has placed in trust on behalf of Alea
North America Insurance Company.

As at 31 December 2007 the Group held Société d'Investissement & Capital Variable (*SICAV”) of $58.5 million
{31 December 2006: $55.5 million) pledged for the benefit of French and Belgian cedants. These SICAVs are
mutual funds invested in European fixed income securities with weighted average credit quality of AAA and
duration of approximately six years.

We have reviewed our investment portfolio with regard to any impact from subprime issues and concluded that no
impairment of the invested assets is required.

Capital management

Financing facilities

The Group raised $100 million of hybrid capital in December 2004 and a further $20 million in early January 2005.
This capital is in the form of 30-year hybrid trust preferred securities priced at LIBOR plus 285 basis points.

At 1 January 2007 the Group had $150 million outstanding under its term loan facility and $50 million outstanding
under its revolver facility. Interest was charged at LIBOR plus 120 basis points on these bank facilities. The bank
facility would have been due in September 2007.

On 19 April 2007, the Group repaid $25.0 million of the term loan and all of $50.0 million revclver using its cash
reserves, leaving an cutstanding amount of $125.0 million.

On 6 July 2007, the Group negotiated a new term loan credit facility with Banc of America Securities Limited as
facility agent. Under this facility, the Group drew down the maximum aggregate commitment of $90.0 million,
which, along with $35.0 million of its own cash reserves, was used to repay the pre-existing bank facility of $125.0
million.

The Group made an optional prepayment of $60.0 million on 18 July 2007. The remaining $30.0 million was
repaid on 14 January 2008.

Liquidity and cashflow

Cash flows from operating activities primarily consist of premiums collected, investment income and collected
reinsurance recoverable balances, less paid claims, retrocession payments, operating expenses and tax
payments. Net cash outflow from operating activities after income tax paid for 2007 was $233.3 million (2006:
$585.0 million net cash outflow). The operating cash ocutflow reflects claims, commutation payments and
expenses.

The net decrease in cash was $8.9 million (increase for 2006 of $42.4 million). This is after net cash received
from investing activities of $411.6 million (2006: net cash received of $649.3 million) and net cash used in
financing activities of $187.3 million (2006: net cash used of $21.9 million). As a result, after taking account of
exchange movements of $6.0 million (2006: $2.4 million), the Group's cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
2007 were $154.3 million (31 December 2006: $157.2million).
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Intra-Group arrangements

The Group manages a number of different intra-Group arrangements designed to ensure that each local balance
sheet retains risk commensurate with its capital base. The principal means of achieving this is by arranging
capacity through internal quota share reinsurances (‘quota shares') primarily with Alea Bermuda. For 2002 to
2006 underwriting years, the Group has put in place a 70% quota share to Alea Bermuda of Alea North America’s
insurance and reinsurance business. For 2001 to 2005 underwriting years there was a 35% quota share
arrangement from Alea London to Alea Europe in place which was commuted in the third quarter of 2006, There
is a 50% quota share of certain 2000 and prior underwriting year business from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda.
Given the change in circumstances, the Group is evaluating options to simplify its capital structure and balance
sheet and is therefore considering commutations of the remaining quota shares. Such transactions would be
subject to regulatory approval in each jurisdiction affected.

Key risks to which the Group is exposed

As a result of its activities the Group is subject to different types of risk. These include insurance risk (which
incorporates underwriting and reserving risk), investment risk, credit risk and financial risk (incorporating interest
rate risk, asset price risk, currency risk and liquidity risk). Further details of each of these types of risk and the
procedures that the Group has in place to mitigate them can be found in note 4 of the Annual Financial Report.

Credit ratings

In the first half of 2006, Alea Group requested the withdrawal of all Group and member company ratings folowing
ratings downgrades by both Standard and Poor's and A.M. Best.

Important events that have occurred since the end of the financial year

Alea London Limited commuted a large excess of loss reinsurance contract on 11 January 2008, effective 31
December 2007. Further detail can be found in note 40 of the Annual Financial Report.

The Group prepaid its outstanding bank ioans on 14 January 2008. Further detail can be found in note 28 of the
Annual Financial Report,

Branches

The Company's subsidiaries, Alea London Limited and Alea Europe Ltd. have licensed branches in Australia and
Canada, respectively. A full listing of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out in note 41 of the Annual Financial
Report.

Financial calendar 2008

The Group expects to release its interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2008 on 27 August 2008.*

“provisional date

Kirk Lusk
Group Chief Financial Officer
7 March 2008

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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Directors that served during the year are as foliows:

Robert | Kauffman (Current Chairman)’
Mark B Cloutier (Group Chief Executive Officer)?
Kirk H Lusk (Group Chief Financial Officer)®
Randal A Nardone*

Gregory M Share®

John Reeve (Former Chairman) ¢

Timothy C Faries’

James R Fisher®

Todd A Fisher?

Perry Golkin'®

R Glenn Hilliard"!

Scott C Nuttall'2

Notes

Appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of the Board effective 5 July 2007.

Appointed as an Executive Directer effective 1 September 2006. Last re-elected 26 June 2007.

Appointed as an Executive Director effective 1 September 2006. Last re-elected 26 June 2007.

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 5 July 2007.

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 5 July 2007.

Appointed as independent Non-Executive Chaiman of the Board effective 19 November 2003. Last re-elected 26 June 2007.
Resigned effective 5 July 2007.

Appointed as an independent Non-Executive Director effective 7 December 2001. Last re-elected 26 June 2007, Fesigned
effective 5 July 2007.

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 19 November 2003, Resigned effective 5 July 2007.

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 19 November 2003. Resigned effective 5 July 2007,

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 15 November 2003, Resigned effective 5 July 2007

Appointed as senior independent Non-Executive Director effective 19 November 2003. Last re-elected 29 June 2008. Fesigned
effective 5 July 2007.

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 19 November 2003. Resigned effective 5 July 2007.
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Re-election of Directors

The Company is proposing the reappointment of Kirk H Lusk as Director, who is retiring by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. Mr Lusk is an Executive Director and Group Chief Financial Officer and Group
Chief Operating Officer.

The Company is also proposing the reappointment of Robert Kauffman, Randal Nardone and Gregory Share as
Directors, each of whom is retiring at the first Annual General Meeting {following their appointments in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. Mr Kauffman is the Non- Executive Chairman of the Board. Messrs Nardone and
Share are Non-Executive Directors. Each of their Director's appeintment letters is renewable on 19 June 2011 for
an additional three year term, subject to the provisions of the Company's Bye-laws.

Purchase of own shares

Under contractual arrangements between the Company and certain Group employees, the Company has the right
to repurchase shares in the Company held by such an employee at the end of their employment. No share
purchases pursuant to these arrangements were made in 2007.

The Company is not required to obtain shareholder approval to authorise purchases of its own shares under
Bermudan law.
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Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolition to
reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

George P Judd
Group Secretary
7 March 2008

STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors (whose names and functions are set out on page 15) are responsible for preparing the Annual
Financial Report including the financial statements. The Bermudan Companies Act 1981 permits the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the ‘Group’), to prepare financial statements which comprise the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consulidated
statement of recognised income and expense and the related notes 1 to 41 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’).

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year the
Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of
the effect of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria
for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Beard's 'Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.’ In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation
will be achieved by compliance with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards. Directors are
required to:

 properly select and apply accounting policies, including whether to prepare financial statements on a
going concern basis;

. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information; and

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's
financial position and financial performance.

As described on page 2, these financial statements are revised financial statements which replace those
approved on 5 March 2008. In line with UK practice for the preparation of revised financial statements, they show
a true and fair view as if they were prepared and approved by the directors as at the date of the original financial
statements and accordingly do not take account of events which have taken place after the date on which the
original financial statements were approved.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable acc uracy at
any time the financial position of the Company, for safeguarding the assets and for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group's website. Legislation in the United

Kingdom and Bermuda governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may dif‘er from
legistation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
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Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole; and

« the Management Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and
position of the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties they face.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ALEA GROUP HOLDINGS
{BERMUDA) LTD

We have audited the revised group financial statements (the “financial statements”) of Alea Group Holdings
{Bermuda) Lid for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of recognised
income and expense and the related notes 1 to 41. These financial statements have been prepared undler the
accounting policies set out therein and replace the original financial statements approved on 5 March 20008 as
explained on page 2.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this repont, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors' responsibilities for preparing the revised Annual Financial Report and the revised financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) are set out
in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the revised financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the revised financial statements give a true and fair view in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework and whether the revised financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. We report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the Directors’ Repert is consistent with the revised financial statements. We also
report to you if the company has not kept proper accounting records and if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit.

We read the other information contained in the revised Annual Financial Report and consider whether it is
consistent with the audited revised financial statements. The other information comprises only the Management
Report, the Board of Directors’ biographies, the Directors’ Report and the Statement of the Directors’
Responsibilities. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstaterments
or material inconsistencies with the revised financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any further
information outside the revised Annual Financial Report.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the revised financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of ithe revised financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the revised financial
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statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the revised financial
statements.

Opinion
In our opinion;

« the revised financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, as seen as at the date
the original financial statements were approved, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007

and of its loss for the year then ended;

» the revised financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981; and

» the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the revised financial statements.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Landon

7 March 2008

ALEA GROUP ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2007
Year ended 31 December 2007

Consolidated income statement

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Notes $'000 $°000
Gross premiums written 7 12,683 (74,919)
Revenue
Premiurmn revenue 17,666 303,338
Premium received from/{ceded to) reinsurers 4,693 (87,422)
Net insurance premium revenue 7 22,359 215,916
Fee income 7 1,949 3,143
investment income 8 73,089 94,821
Net realised losses on financial assets 9 (1,310) (2,500)
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary 10 - 4,336
Net realised losses on sale of renewal rights 5 (1,723) (£,020)
Total revenue 7 94,364 312,696
Expenses
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses 44,740 173,408
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses .
paid to/(recovered from) reinsurers 34,416 (16,716)
Net insurance claims 7,11 79,156 156,692
Acquisition costs 7 10,279 69,292
Other operating expenses 12,13 59,742 65,555
Restructuring costs 6 1,574 1,087
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Total expenses 150,748 293,626
Results of operating activities 7 {56,384) 17,070
Finance cosis 14,15 {21,696) (24,407)
Loss before income tax 7 {(78,080) (7,337}
Income tax {expense)/credit 16 {100) 6,502
Loss for the year (78,180) (835)
Earnings per share for losses attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company during the period:
Basic ($) 17 (0.45) (0.00)
Diluted ($) 17 (0.45) {0.00)
ALEA GROUP ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2007
Year ended 31 December 2007
Consolidated balance sheet
As at As zt
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
Notes $°000 $'000
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 18 4,487 6,398
Intangible assets 19 8,479 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs 20 2,323 3,508
Financial assets
Equity securities
- available for sale 21 165 198
Debt securities
- available for sale 21 1,365,040 1,664,341
Loans and receivables including insurance
receivables
22 273,707 440,961
Deferred tax assets 23 1,034 1,154
Reinsurance contracts 25 546,801 863,475
Cash and cash equivalents 24 154,253 167,220
Total assets 2,356,289 3,145,722
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 25 1,549,891 1,941,514
Borrowings 26 147,785 317,267
Provisions 27 2,837 5,241
Other liabilities and charges 28 33,235 40,954
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Trade and other payables 29 191,741 355,803
Current income tax liabilities 2,761 1,003
Total liabilities 1,928,250 2,661,591
Net assets 428,039 484 141
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders
Share capita! 31, 30 1,738 1,733
Other reserves 30 709,455 687,377
Retained loss 30 {283,154) {204,974)
Total equity 428,039 484,141
Approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2008 and signed on its behalf by:
Kirk Lusk
Group Chief Financial Officer
ALEA GROUP ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2007
Year ended 31 December 2007
Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended Year encled
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Notes $°000 $'000
Cash used in operations 34 (240,764) (586,929)
Income tax recovered 7,505 1,949
Net cash used in operating activities (233,259) (585,050)
Cash flows generated from/{used in} investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (64T) {735)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 63 424
Cash payments to acquire equity and debt securities (5,575,634) (3,820,920)
Cash receipts from sales of equity and debt securities 5,920,523 4,356,128
Net amounts outstanding for securities 11,935 {6,448}
Cash receipts from sale of subsidiary - 34,726
Cash receipts from interest and dividends 55,380 85,429
Net cash generated from investing activities 411,620 649,304
Cash flows used in financing activities
Repayments of borrowings {170,000} -
Interest paid on borrowings (17,289) (21,888)
Net cash used in financing activities (187,289) (21,888)
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Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (8,928) 42,356
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 157,220 116,962
Cash of a subsidiary sold - (4,477)
Exchange gains on cash and bank overdrafts 5,961 2,369
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 154,253 157,220
ALEA GROUP ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2007
Year ended 31 December 2007
Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 20015
$°000 $'000
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 10,999 (11,93¢)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations 8,620 5,481
Tax on items taken directly into equity (1,030) -
Net loss recognised directly in equity 18,589 (6,45¢)
Transfers
Transfers to profit and loss on sale of available-for-sale invesiments 3,343 913
Tax on items transferred from equity - -
Total transfers net of tax 3,343 913
Loss for the year (78,180) (838)
Total recognised income and expense for the year (56,248) (6.380)

The total recognised income and expense are attributable to the Company's equity holders.

ALEA GROUP ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2007

Year ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were encaged in
the business of underwriting insurance and reinsurance risks. The Group operates through four principal
operating segments representing London market business, North American business including alternaive risk
transfer and reinsurance, Continental European reinsurance and financial services. In 2005 the Group ceased to
write new business and placed all operations into run-off. Although the Group has disposed of the renewal rights
for Alea Alternative Risk, Alea London and Alea Europe and placed all operations into run-off, the Group will
continue to service claims relating to business written during 2005 and prior for the foreseeable future. As such, i
is considered appropriate to recognise all amounts as relating to continuing operations.
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The Company is registered in Bermuda and is listed on the London Stock Exchange. As such it is required to
prepare its financial information in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, which permits the
Company and the Group to prepare financial statements which comprise the consolidated income staternent, the
consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consoclidated statement of recognised
income and expense and the related notes 1 to 41 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS"). Accordingly, the financial information has been prepared in accordance with Bermuda Law.

2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements, as required by the Listing Rules of the United Kingdem'’s Financial Services Authority
(*FSA™), have been prepared on the basis of IFRS recognition and measurement principles which are applicable
at the 2007 year end.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars, rounded to the nearest thousand.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
instruments which have been classified as available for sale.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to exercise its judgement in
making estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group's accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgement about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily available from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the periods in which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect only those periods or in the
periods of the revision and future periods if applicable,

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in following years are discussed
below.

As IFRS are limited in specifying full insurance-specific guidelines to the requirements of IFRS 4 ‘Insurance
Contracts’ pending completion of the second phase of the IASB's project on insurance contracts, accounting
policies for insurance contracts have been selected with primary consideration to existing UK GAAP as parmitted
by IFRS 4. The annual basis of accounting has been applied to all classes of business.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies in force
for the year ended 31 December 2007. A summary of the principal accounting policies is provided in note 3.

3 Accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently by all Group entities.

Basis of consolidation

These financial statements consolidate all the enterprises in which Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd owns or
controls, directly or indirectly, the majority of the voting shares. There are no other enterprises over which the

Group has the ability to exercise control.

Intra-group transactions, balances, and gains and losses are eliminated except to the extent that the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
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The results of subsidiaries liquidated or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement up to the effective date of liquidation or disposal, as appropriate.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from other business segments. A gecgraphical segment is engaged
in providing services within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars, which is the (Group's
presentation currency.

b) Group companies

The functional currencies for Group entities are usually the currencies of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinfiationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabitities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange -ates at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at transactional or average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are franslated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and ot
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

c) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included
in the revaluation reserve in equity.

To safeguard against fluctuations in exchange rates, Group entties seek to match assets and liabllities in
currency. However, currency gainsflosses which do arise from transactions in a currency other than a functional
currency are reported in the income statement within other income or other expenses, as applicable.

The foreign currency rates used for significant foreign currencies are as fofllows:
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31 December 2007 31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006

Average Closing Average Closing
British pound 0.5001 0.5038 0.5437 0.5047
Euro 0.7295 0.6854 0.7964 0.751
Swiss franc 11972 1.1326 1.2544 1.2201

Insurance contracts
The Group enters into contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined as risk,
other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of a contract to the issuer. Financial risk is defined as 1he risk
of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commaodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case
of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Those contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for by recognising an asset or liability
based on the consideration paid or received less any explicitly identified premiums or fees to be retained by the
ceding company. Future cash flows are estimated to calculate the effective yield, and revenues and expenses are
recorded as other income or expense.

Premium revenue

For all insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue proportionally over the peried of coverage,
having regard, where appropriate, to the incidence of risk and this is known as earned premium. The portion of
premium receivable on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet dale is reparted as
the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are exclusive of taxes
and duties levied thereon.

Premiums comprise total premiums earned under contracts incepting during the financial year, together with
adjustments arising in the financial year to premiums earned in respect of business written in previous financial
years. Premiums also include estimates of pipeline premiums earned on business written but not yet nolified to
the Group.

In respect of both risks accepted and risks ceded by the Group, premiums and claims relating to reinsurance
arrangements which do not involve significant transfer of insurance risk are not recognised in the income
statement but are accounted for as deposits due from, or liabilities due to, reinsurers or cedants.

Reinsurance

The Group cedes premium and risks in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for losses
arising from risks accepted. Insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers on contracts that are deemed to transfer
significant insurance risk are recognised as an expense in @ manner that is consistent with the recognition of
insurance premium revenue arising from the underlying risks being protected. Reinsurance contracts tha’ do not
meet the definition of an insurance contract are accounted for as financial assets. The portion of premium ceded
to reinsurers on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is reported as the
unearned premium asset.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses recovered from reinsurers are accounted for in the same
accounting period as the claims for the related inward insurance and reinsurance business being covered and are
estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsurance policy.

Provision is made for potentially non-collectable reinsurance recoveries and the exposure of the Group 1o credit
risk is assessed through the aggregation of reinsurance assets due from counter parties belonging to the same
insurance groups.

Renewal rights transactions
Renewal rights transactions represent books of insurance and reinsurance business sold to third partizs. The
Directors use fair value accounting for renewal rights transactions. Valuations and revaluations of such
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transactions are recognised in the income statement as net realised gains or losses on sale of renewal rigfts.

In determining the fair value for the business sold, the Directors value the discounted estimated future cash flows
arising from specified percentages of applicable commissionable premiumns written over the applicable pzriod in
accordance with the terms of the sale contracts. In determining the fair market value of renewal rights soid, the
Directors consider the prior production and growth of the businesses sold, external projections and the most
recent assessment of the husinesses sold. The Directors also make certain assumptions about levels of program
transfer and renewal probabilities of future premiums.

As the ultimate consideration receivable is dependent upon the future levels of business generated on renewal in
relation to the rights sold over differing time periods as specified in the sale contracts, it is necessary for the
Directors to review and re-evaluate the fair value of the consideration receivable based on the likely volumes ol
renewal business that will be written. Consequently, adjustments to the consideration receivable recognised in the
income statement will be made at each balance sheet date where required.

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Costs which vary and are directly associated with the acquisition of insurance and reinsurance contracts including
brokerage, commissions, underwriting expenses and other acquisition costs are deferred and amortised aver the
period of contract, consistent with the earning of premium. These are shown as a capitalised asset in the balance
sheet.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses comprise the estimated cost of all claims occurring prier to the
balance sheet date, whether reported or not, and include loss adjustment expenses related to intemal and
external direct and indirect claims handling costs, and adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.
Claims handling costs include related internal and external direct and indirect claims handling costs and cansist of
third party loss adjustor fees, legal expenses and claims staff costs.

Liabilities for unpaid claims are determined on an individual case basis and are based on the estimated ultimate
cost of all claims notified but not settied by the balance sheet date, together with the provision for relatecl claims
handling costs and net of salvage and subrogation recoveries. The provision also includes the estimated cost of
claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date based on statistical methods.

The Group discounts certain categories of claims provisions, such as certain casuvalty and auto liability claims,
where the expected average interval between the date of claim settlement and the balance sheet date is in
excess of four years in accordance with the statutory regulations of the European Union. The discount rate used
is 4.0% (2006: 4.5%).

Liability adequacy test (“LAT”)
At each balance sheet date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance
contract liabilities net of related DAC and premiums receivable.

Provision is made where current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and
administration expenses arising after the end of the financial year from contracts concluded bhefore that date is
expected to exceed the provision for unearned premiums net of DAC and premiums receivable. Investment
income from the assets backing the liabilities is taken into account in calculating the provision. The assessment of
whether a provision is necessary is made on the basis of information available as at the balance sheet date, after
offsetting surpluses and deficits arising on products which are managed together. Any deficiency is immzdiately
charged to the income statement initially by writing off DAC and by subsequently establishing a provision for
losses arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision). Any DAC written off as a result of this
test cannot subsequently be reinstated.

Investment income

Investment income includes dividends and interest. Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend basis that s when
the right to receive payment is established. Interest and rental income are recognised on an accruals basis.
Interest income in respect of the Group’s available for sale investments is recognised using the effective interest
method.
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Fee income

Fee income represents income arising on finite risk reinsurance and insurance contracts without significant
transfer of insurance risk and expense related to deposits received from reinsurers. Such income is recognised
over the term of the contract.

Employee Benefits
a) Share-based payments

The cost of awards to employees that take the form of shares or rights to shares is charged to the income
statement as personnel costs on a straight line basis over the pericd to which the employee's
performance relates and a corresponding amount is reflected in share-based payment reserve in
shareholders’ equity. The charge is calculated as being the fair value of the shares at the date of grant,
reduced by any consideration payable by the employee, and a reasonahle expectation of the extent to
which performance criteria will be met.

b) Pension costs

The Group only operates defined contribution pension arrangements. Contributions are charged to the
income statement as employee benefit expense as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
each scheme. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor} are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise items of equipment only. Equipment is stated at cost less accurnulated
depreciation and impairment losses when appropriate. Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives vary between three and
five years for fixtures and equipment.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the cost of licences acquired to conduct business in the United States. The Directors
consider these licences to have indefinite useful lives. Licences are granted for an indefinite period and are
essential to carry on business. The licences are tested for impairment at each balance sheet date.

Investments - Financial Instruments

The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition the Group determines the category of financial
instrument and values it accordingly. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments are
acquired.

a) Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets, typically equities or bonds. On initial
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recognition, the fair value is the cost including transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition. On
subsequent remeasurement the fair value excludes transaction costs on disposal and represents the
listed bid price. Fair value movements are recognised in equity.

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market other than those that the Group intends to sell in the short term or that it
has designated as at fair value through income or available-for-sale. Receivables arising from insurance
contracts are also classified in this category and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impzirment
review of loans and receivables.

Trade receivables do not carry any interest rate and are measured at the fair value which is their nominal
value less appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. On the initial recognition of loans
the carrying value is determined as the proceeds of the loans less the costs of the transaction which are
amortised over the length of the loan peried in accordance with the effective interest method.

The Group has not designated any investments to be held to maturity or to be valued at fair value through profit
and loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Purchases and sales of securities and currencies are recognised on trade date - the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Before evaluating whether, and to what extent, de-recognition of a financial asset or liability is appropriate, the
Group determines whether de-recognition should be applied to only part of the financial asset / liability or group of
financial assets / liabilities. The Group only derecognises a financial asset or liability when the contractuz! rights
and obligations to the cash flows expire or the financial asset / liabilities are transferred and the Group has also
transferred substantially ali risks and rewards of ownership.

Gains and losses on derecognition are recognised through the income statement. Changes in fair value ol
available for sale investments, except for foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses which are
recognised in the income statement, are directly recorded in equity until such time that the financial zsset is
derecognised.

In the Company'’s accounts, investments in Group subsidiaries are stated at net asset value (equity method) with
any movement taken to the Company’s revaluation reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Impairment of assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. In assessing the value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Taxation
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable in the year and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences, which are based on
the difference between the financial statement carrying values and the tax bases of assets and liabilities using
enacted income tax rates and laws. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as
probable that they will be utilised against sufficient future taxable income, Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each batance sheet date and reduced to the extznt that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be ulilised.

The deferred tax that results from unrealised gains and losses on securities classified as available for sale is
recognised in shareholders' equity along with those unrealised gains and losses.

Current tax payable by any Group company on distribution to the holding company of the undistributed p-ofits of
any subsidiaries is recognised as deferred tax unless the timing of the distribution of those profits is controlled by
the holding company and the temporary difference is not expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

In accordance with IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes', deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising from the
revaluation of fixed assets even where there is no commitment to sell the asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Provisions
a) Restructuring costs and legal claims

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring prcvisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class
of obligations may be small,

b) Levies

The Group is subject to various insurance-related assessments or guarantee fund levies. Related
provisions are provided for where there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incrementzal costs
directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of
tax. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments as consideration for the acquisition of
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a business are included in the cost of acquisition.

Accounting developments

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ on 30 November 2006
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14 ‘Segment Reporting’
and requires the disclosure of financial infermation about the Group based upon the information used internally to
evaluate the performance of the operating segments and the allocation of resources to those segments. The
directors consider this will not result in significant changes to the current disclosure under IAS 14 ‘Segment
Reporting’. The Group has not early adopted IFRS 8.

The Group has adopted IFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and a complementary amendment tc 1AS 1,
‘Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures’. This results in additional disclosures of the Group's
risk management policies and the extent to which the Group is exposed to risk.

4 Analysis of risk

Risk management framework
As a global run-off insurance and reinsurance operation, the Group is exposed to various types of risk.

The Board of Directors retains overall responsibility for the risk management framework that has been estzblished
to mitigate the Group’s exposure to risk and assesses the effectiveness of the controls established to identify,
menitor and mitigate the risks faced by the Group.

The risks that the Group faces include, but are not limited to:

Insurance risk — risk associated with the uncertainty over the likelihood of an insured event occurring, the
quantum of the claim, or the time when claims payments will fall due.

Investment and credit risk — risk associated with the Group's reinsurance arrangements, investment portfolio,
and other counter party credit risk.

Financial risk —~ risk associated with possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, foreign exchange rate or other variable. Also included within financial risk is liquidity risk, the risk
that obligations cannot be met as they become due as a consequence of being unable to readily realise assets to
meet these obligations.

Insurance risk

Underwriting risk

When it was underwriting insurance business, the Group managed the transfer of insurance risk from its edants
in a number of ways. Underwriting guidelines governed the products it was willing to sell and the geographical
location in which the risk was located. Before risk was accepted, its impact upon the overall risk profile of the
insurance portfolio was assessed. Underwriting controls included the establishment of limits on underwriting
authority and the monitoring of exposure by industry, geographical region and class of business.

The Group used a variety of reserving and modelling methods to determine the levels of insurance risk accepted.
The modelling techniques employed helped the Group to monitor, estimate and control its exposure to natural and
man-made catastrophes. Diversification was sought through the range of products sold and geographical
locations in which business was written.

The Group Underwriting Committee monitored emerging issues that affected its exposure to insurance risk such
as new areas of liability and the impact of major losses.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments
The Group takes steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However,
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given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final cutcome will prove to be different
from the original liability established.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers any information available
from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods.
Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distorting effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimation of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR") is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty
than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where information about the claim
event is available. An assessment of the liability for future claims is affected not only by the risks inherent in the
perils insured but also by changes that may occur in the legal and judicial environment before claims are settled,
all of which affect the quantum of the claim. Additionally, the practical limits to information flows from insured
parties hampers the estimation of the claim amounts.

For casualty risks, for example, claims may not be apparent to the insured until many years have passed after the
event that gave rise to the claims. The Group's casualty business was typically written on an occurrence basis,
meaning that the Group is liable for all insured events that occurred during the term of contract, even if the: loss is
discovered after the end of the contract term. Liability claims are therefore notified and settled over a lang period
of time. As a result, for casualty business, a large element of the claims provision relates to IBNR and will typically
display greater variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty
of estimating these liabilities.

For property business, the greatest uncertainty arises from catastrophe events, where a single event affects a
large number of contracts. In such cases the Group estimates the IBNR using an exposure methodology,
assessing each programme written by the Group to determine the expected claims in respect of that event.

For property business other than catastrophe, and for casualty business, the IBNR is typically based on a
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and claims-experience-based estimates, with greater weight given to
actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important assumption in the
estimation technique and is based on a number of factors including previous years' experience, premium rate
changes, market experience and historical claims inflation.

The projections given by the various methodoelogies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomas, The
most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and
the extent of the development of each underwriting year.

The amount of casualty claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of iegal
precedent on matters of contract and tort. Casualty contracts are also subject to the emergence of new types of
latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the balance sheet date.

The following table presents the Group’s booked gross claims outstanding before claims handling provisions and
before discount as at 31 December 2007 by class of business.

G_engl_'al Motor Workers’ Professional  Property MAT' Total
$'million liability comp.
1999 and prior 90.9 43.9 14.9 0.5 28.9 73.6 252.7
2000 259 10.6 10.7 13.9 6.9 21.0 89.0
2001 251 8.3 16.7 9.8 3.3 10.5 73.7
2002 28.3 7.1 58 19.4 6.1 3.6 70.3
2003 30.3 23.5 34 23.6 1.5 5.1 87.4
2004 33.0 329 6.6 247 7.5 0.2 104,29
2005 14.6 492 2.3 24.3 457 1.5 1373
Reinsurance
reserves 2481 175.5 60.4 116.2 99.9 115.5 815.6
Insurance
reserves 221.7 63.7 100.2 26.4 9.0 - 421.0
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Total non-life

reserves 469.8 239.2 160.6 142.6 108.9 1155 1,236.6
Life structured settlements 2771
Life reinsurance 91.9
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,605.6

' Marine, Aviation and Transport

The following table analyses Alea's gross ¢laims outstanding between incurred but not reported {'IBNR') and case
reserves at 31 December 2007. The insurance and reinsurance splits are in line with the Group's typical business
tail and the relative maturity of the respective books.

Percentage Total
Case reserves 46%
IBNR 54%
Total 100%

Prior year reserve development

The Group's expected loss development is determined by the Group’s internal actuaries based on historical
claims analysis and projected trends. Actual reported losses may vary from expected loss development.
Generally, as an underwriting year matures, the level of newly reported claims decreases.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 the Group experienced adverse development in the
reserves, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount of $29.8 million {31 December
2006: adverse reserve development, net of reinsurance excluding the impact of commutations and discount of
$37.6 million).

Net reserve development is determined by netting adverse and positive reserve development. 129.2% of the
negative 2007 reserve development relates to the Group's reinsurance portfolio (2006: 82%). Reinsurance
operations by their nature add further complications to the reserving process, particularly to casualty business,
where there is an inherent lag in the timing and reporting of a loss event from an insured or ceding comgany to
the reinsurer. This reporting lag creates an even longer period of time between the policy inception and when a
claim is finally settled. As a result, more judgement is required to establish reserves for ultimate losses in
reinsurance operations.

The following table presents the development of the Group’s claims outstanding and claims handling expense
reserves net of reinsurance and before discount for the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 for each of the
underwriting years indicated. An increase is an adverse run-off deviation and a decrease is a positive run-off
deviation to the provision for claims outstanding, net of reinsurance held at the previous balance sheet date

Increasel/(decrease) in claims outstanding Year ended 31 Decemher 2007
net of reinsurance

$'million Pre-discount  Post discount
Underwriting years 1999 and prior 0.6 7.3
Underwriting year 2000 25 6.0
Underwriting year 2001 6.3 10,3
Underwriting year 2002 10.1 12.3
Underwriting year 2003 12.5 7.’
Underwriting year 2004 (13.7) (13.7)
Underwriting year 2005 4.8 4.8
Total 23.1 34."

Historical ultimate loss ratios ('ULR’)
The ULR is an actuarial estimate of total claims to the point of final settlement as a percentage of gross ultimate
premiums, 1t excludes expenses. The table below shows the ULR as of 31 December 2007 for proportional and
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non-proportional US casualty reinsurance, gross of reinsurance and prior to discounting. The Group’s US casualty
reinsurance ULR shown in the table below is the aggregate ULR for Alea North America, Alea London and Alea
Bermuda. The table also shows the aggregate ULR for Alea Europe.

US casualty US casualty Europe

proportional non-proportional
Underwriting year % % %
1995 - 56.0 65.8
1996 101.0 - 746
1897 - - 91.4
1998 19.4 76.4 107.5
1999 156.5 121.2 137.3
2000 125.0 172.9 96.3
2001 86.4 122.9 78.4
2002 73.5 100.2 71.5
2003 65.8 62.0 496
2004 62.1 53.2 50.2
2005 70.9 76.7 71.8

Note 25 to the financial statements presents the development of the estimate of ultimate claim cost for policies
underwritten in a given year. This gives an indication of the accuracy of the Group's estimation technique for
ultimate claims payments.

If the gross claims reserve carried in the balance sheet moved by 1% the impact cn the income statemsent and
equity would be a change of $16.1 million (31 December 2006: $19.6 million} on an undiscounted and pre-tax
basis.

Investment and credit risk

Investment risk
The Group’s investment strategy is based on a high quality diversified portfolio of liquid investment gracle fixed
income securities as a method of preserving equity capital and prompt claim payment capability.

The Group uses external investment managers to invest its assets. The Group's Investment Comnmittee
establishes investment policies and creates guidelines for external investment managers. These guidelines
specify criteria on the overall credit quality and liquidity characteristics of the portfolio and include limitations on
the size of certain holdings as well as restrictions on purchasing certain types of securities.

The Group's invested assets are subject to interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate risk is concentrated in the
US and Europe and is sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary polices and domestic and
international economic and political conditions. Based on invested assets at external managers of $1,317.2 million
as at 31 December 2007, a 100 basis point increase/decrease in interest rates across the yield curve would resull
in an approximate $19.3 million unrealised loss/profit respectively (2008: on invested assets at external managers
of $1,732.7 million a 100 basis point increase/decrease in interest rates across the yield curve would result in an
approximate $29.6 million unrealised loss/profit respectively). The entire impact of $19.3 million would be reflected
in equity since ali investments are available for sale.

The assets managed by third-party fund managers show the asset mix below. The remaining invested assets of
$202.3 million (2006: $89 million) include predominantly mutual funds invested in fixed income securities.

Asset class 31 December 2007 31 December 2006

in% in ‘%
US government 20 1
US mortgage 15 16
EU and Switzerland government and corporate 15 14
US corporate 10 11
US municipalities 1 1
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Asset backed securities 2 <
Canadian government and provinces 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents 35 31

100 10([

Financial and insurance liabilities risk
The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk on its insurance reserves and fioating rate borrowings.

Where appropriate, reserves are discounted in accordance with existing UK GAAP as permitted by IFRS 4.
Discount rates are based on the expected future cash flow derived from assets established for the payment of
reserves. The Group discounts loss reserves for certain business with a mean term to ultimate claims settlement
in excess of four years. The majority of such discount applies to casualty business. The unwind of the discount is
sensitive to the claims payment pattern.

The Group discount rate used is based on the relevant average investment return of the last five years. A
reduction of 0.1% would reduce the net discount in the balance sheet by approximately $1.6 million (2003: $2.1
million) and would negatively impact income statement and equity by the same amount. -

The Group has $120 million of trust preferred securities in issue. These securities provide for a preferred dividend
at a rate of three month LIBOR plus 285 basis points.

The Group had $30.0 million cutstanding under its loan facility which was due for repayment on 18 July 2009.
This loan carried an interest margin of 200 basis points over LIBOR and was repaid on 14 January 2008,

Credit risk

When the Group was underwriting, it purchased reinsurance to manage its catastrophe exposure and mitigate
insurance risk. However, the ceding of insurance risk exposes the Group to credit risk from its reinsurers and
retrocessionaires.

The Group selected its reinsurers and retrocessionaires based on price and credit quality and continues to
monitor them closely over time. It also sought to diversify its business among reinsurers and retrocessionaires and
required collateral where deemed prudent to do so. Thus, the use of maximum limits for credit exposure to any
one counter party was an effective method for mitigating credit risk.

The Group required that at the time of purchase all reinsurers and retrocessionaires had a minimum credit rating
of A-, unless high quality collateral is provided.

Additionally, the Group is subject to credit risk in respect of third party companies in which the Group holds debt
securities issued by those companies. As a consequence of the established investment policies and in order to
mitigate investment risk, apart from $3.3 million rated BBE, all of the Group's fixed income portfolio was rated A or
better and 85.3% (31 December 2006: 93.7%) was rated AA or better. The portfolio had a weighted average
rating of AAA based on ratings assigned by Standard & Poor's or Moody's. Other than with respect to US,
Canadian and Eurcpean Union government and agency securities, the Group’s investment guidelines limit its
aggregate exposure to any single issuer to 5% of its portfolio. All securities must be rated A or better at the time of
purchase and the weighted average rating requirement of the Group’s poertfolio is AAA. There were no investment
write-offs in either 2007 or 2006. The following table illustrates the split of total debt securities by rzting of
investee.

Credit Rating of Debt security investment Debt security investment
investee as at 31 December 2007 as at 31 December 2005
in % in ‘!@
AAA [ US Government or .
equivalent 74.8 82.1
AA 10.5 11.5
A 14.4 6.3
BBB or lower 0.3 -
Total 100.0 100.0
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At 31 December 2007, the Group's largest aggregate exposure to any single issuer other than with respect to the
United States, Canadian and European government and agency securities was $23.4 million (31 December 2006:
$27.2 million) in respect of General Electric Corporation and various subsidiary companies.

Depending upon the duration of the liabilities supported by a particular portfolio, the Group’s portfolio investment
duration targets may range from one to three years. The duration of an investment is based on the maturity of the
security and also reflects the payment of interest and the possibility of early principal payment of such security.
The Group seeks to utilise investment benchmarks that reflect this duration target. The Investment Committee
periodically revises the Group's investment benchmarks based on business and economic factors including the
average duration of the Group's potential liabilities.

At 31 December 2007, the Group's investment portfolio had an effective duration of 1.5 years (31 December
2006: 1.7 years). The Group has shortened duration targets on its investment portfolios to ensure that sufficient
liquidity will be available to execute the commutation strategy and to reflect the greater uncertainty now inherent in
the duration of its liabilities with this commutation strategy.

Analysis by credit rating of all financial assets {(impaired, past due, neither past due nor impaired):

As at 31 December 2007

AAA AA A BBB Collater- Equities Not Nen Tot:
and alised rated financial
below asset
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'00(
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - B 4,487 4,48
Intangible assets - - - - - - B 8,479 8,47
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - - - - 2,323 2,3:
e ets - available for sale 1,021,401 143,186 197,107 3,346 - 185 - - 1,365,2
Loans and receivables including insurance
receivables 36,134 45477 72,805 5,176 12,396 - 1,716 9 273,7¢
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - - 1,034 1,02
Reinsurance contracts 22,886 315,401 83,906 1,980 62,164 - 60,464 - 546,8¢
Cash and cash equivalents 51,7111 78,781 23,611 88 - - 62 - 154,2¢
Total assets 1,132,132 582,845 377,429 10,590 74,560 165 162,23¢ 16,332 2,356,2¢
As at 31 December 2006
AAA AA A BBB Collater- Equities Mot Non Tot:
and alised rated financial
below asset
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'00(
Property, plant and equipment - - - . - - - 6,398 6,39
tntangible assets - . - . - - . 8,479 8,47
Deferred acguisition costs - - - . - - - 3,506 3,50
Financial assets - available for sale
securitles 1,384,728 188,540 110,707 - - 198 368 - 1,664,53
Loans and receivables including insurance ”
receivables 40,310 24,504 135,981 11,5908 5,803 - 221,07z 282 440,96
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - - 1,154 1,15
Reinsurance contracts 40,202 306,648 121,273 2,506 356,814 - 36,03z - B63,47
Cash and cash equivalents 42180 111,130 1,973 498 B - 1,45¢ . 157,22
Total assets 1,487,400 630,822 369,834 14913 363,717 198 258,928 18,818  3,14573

Analysis by credit rating of assets that were neither past due nor impaired at the balance sheet date:
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]
As at 31 December 2007
AAA AA A BBB Coliater- Equities Not Non Tot:
and alised rated financial
below asset
$°000 $°000 $°000 §$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'00C
Property, plant and equipment - - - . - - - 4,487 448
Intangible assets - - - . - . " 8,479 8,47
Deferred acquisition costs - . . . - - - 2,323 2,3%
Financia) assets - available for sale 1021401 143,186 157,107 3,34 - s . - 1,385
sec"r'ues ¥ ¥ 1 r » ¥ (]
Loans and receivables including insurance
receivables 31,606 44,914 69,730 4,562 12,397 - 71,474 9 234 6%
Deferred tax assets - . - - - - - 1,034 1,02
Reinsurance contracts 22,886 315,403 83,907 1,468 62,165 - 53,254 - 539,0¢
Cash and cash equivalents 51,71 78,781 23,611 85 . - 62 - 154,2¢
Total assets 1,127,604 582,284 374,355 9,484 74,562 165  124,7%0 16,332  2,309,5¢
As at 31 December 2006
AAA AA A BBB Collater- Equities Not Non Totz
and alised rated financial
below asset
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $7000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'00(
Property, plant and equlpment - - - - . . . 6,308 B,39
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 8,479 847
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - - - - 3,508 3,50
Financlal assets - avallable for sale
| securities 4,364,728 188,940 110,706 - - 198 kKliyg - 1,664,53
' Loans and recelvables Including insurance .
| recelvables 40,242 23,782 120,242 10,654 8,903 - 186,639 282 348,74
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - - 1,154 1,15
Reinsurance contracts 40,202 306,648 121,273 2,506 356,814 - 25,1683 - 852,61
Cash and cash equivalents 42,160 111,130 1,973 497 - - 1,460 - 157,22
Total assets 1,487,332 830,100 354,194 13,657 383,717 198 223,634 19,819  3,092,65

Analysis of impaired and past due assets
In performing its assessment of which assets should be impaired, the Group considers reinsurer ratings, the
existence of notified disputes and historical collection experience.

The following table presents financial assets that were impaired, or past due but not impaired at the end of the
year.

As at 31 December 2007

0-3 4-6 79 10-12 More Impaired Total  Neither Total
months months months months  than 12 past due assets
pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue months nor
past due impaired
$'0C0 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - - 4,487 4,487
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 8,479 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - - - - 2,323 2323
Financial assets - available for sale
securities B - - - - - - 1,365,205 1,365,205
Loans and receivables including insurance
recelvables 2,000 2,018 - 836 22,226 11,937 39,015 234,692 273,707
Deferred tax assets . - - - - - - 1,024 1,034
Reinsurance contracts - . . - - 7,718 7,718 539,083 545,801
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - -~ 154,253 154,283
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Total assets 2,000 2,016 - 836 22,226 19,655 46,733 2,309,566 2,356,289

As at 31 December 2006

0-3 4-6 7-8 10-12 More Impaired Total  Neither Total
months months months months  than 12 past due assots
pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue months nor
past due impaired
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - - 6,398 6,298
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 8,479 8479
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - - - - 3,506 3,506
Financlal assets - available for sale . 1,664,530 1,664,530
securitles
Loans and receivables including insurance :
recolvzbles 4,187 389 79 15,480 7.890 14,182 42,217 383,744 44081
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - - 1,154 1,154
Reinsurance contracts - - - - 1,400 9,464 10,864 852,611 863,475
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - - 157,220 157,220
Total assets 4,197 389 79 15,480 9,280 23,646 53,081 3,092,651 3,145,732

As at 31 December 2007 $35.3 million of assets were subject to a valuation allowance in respect of impairment
(2006: $39.8 million). As at 31 December 2007, after deducting the impairment provision of $15.6 million (2006:
$16.2 miliion) the impaired assets had a carrying value of $19.7 million (2006: $23.6 million).

Collateral pledged to and by the Group

The following table shows balance sheet carrying value of collateral pledged by the Group as a resul: of its
underwriting activities;

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2003

$'000 $'000

Carrying value of financial assets pledged to insured 1,009,808 1,150,211

parties as collateral for liabilities

The financial assets have been pledged as collateral under the following terms and conditions:

Alea London Limited has written regulated US business and has as a result been required to previde a
collateralised Trust Fund in respect of outstanding claims relating to this business. Collateral is provided in the
form of cash and approved investments in accordance with the terms of the trust deed. The total amount of
collateral provided at 31 December 2007 was $63.1 million (2006: $67.1 million). In addition Alea London Limited
maintains letter of credit {("LOC") facilities in respect of its previous underwriting activities and is obliged to
collateralise any LOCs issued under these facilities. The total amount of collateral provided at 31 December 2007
under these treaties was $136.7 million (2006: $169.4 million). Alea London Limited has SICAV investments of
$7.7 million (2006: $6.9 million) pledged as security for reinsurance obligations. Alea London Limited also has
other restricted deposits of $0.4 million {2006: $2.5 million).

Alea Europe Ltd maintains LOC facilities in respect of its previous underwriting and is obliged to collateral se any
LOCs issued under these facilities. The total amount of collateral provided at 31 December 2007 was $136.1
million (2006: $131.7 million). The amount held in trust for the benefit of holders of North American policies is
$68.6 million {2006: $63.9 million). Additionally, Alea Eurcpe Ltd holds a permanent amendment to irrevocable
standby LOC of $3.8 million (2006: $7.9 million) in favour of its cedents. Alea Europe Ltd has SICAV investments
of $50.8 million (2006: $48.7 million) pledged as security for reinsurance obligations.
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Alea (Bermuda) Ltd has pledged collateral in the form of various LOCs totalling $9.5 million (2008: $42.4 million)
which are held as cash and invested assets in designated collateral accounts. Other collateral pledged totalling
$106.9 million (2006: $142.2 million) is in respect of quota share policies written by Alea {Bermuda) Lid for
Lumberman's and Alea North America Specialty Insurance Company. The collateral is pledged in form of trust
accounts. Additionally Collateral of $176.2 million (2006 $197.5 million) is pledged in form of a trust account for
the benefit of Alea North America Insurance company.

Alea North American Insurance Company has pledged assets consisting of LOCs, trust funds and cash totalling
$116.3 million (20086: $140.8 million). LOCs are automatically extended without amendment for a period of one
year following the expiration date. Alea North American insurance Company also has securities on deposit at
various state regutators totalling $133.7 million (2006: $129.2 million}).

The fair value of collateral pledged to the Group as a result of its underwriting activities:

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$000 $000

Fair value of collateral held by the Group that can be
sold or repledged regardless of whether the owner of 94,690 217,463
the collateral defaults

Fair value of any such collateral sold or repledged - -

Carrying amount of any assets obtained by taking
possession of collateral held as security 48,748 66,806

Alea Europe Ltd received an LOC from SCOR SA Paris in respect of the renewal rights transaction. The LOC was
cancelled in 2007. At 31 December 2006 the LOC amounted to $ 20.0 million.

Alea North American Insurance Company holds collateral as security for claims due from third-parties of $94.7
million (2006: $197.5 million) which consists of funds held in trust and LOCs.

Alea (Bermuda) Ltd, holds collateral in respect of certain reinsurance recoverables in the form of $15.5 miillion of
LOCs (2006: $17.0 million), $2.5 million of cash collateral (2006: $2.3 million) and $30.3 million of funds wsithheld
(2006: $47.5 million), and generally has the right to hold this collateral remains until commutation or a mutual
agreement to decrease the collateral.

Impairment provision analysis

The following impairment provisions have been made against reinsurance contracts with the credit ratings
indicated:

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $000

AAA - (169)
AA - (B866)
A - -
BBB and below - -
Not rated {1,050} (15)
{1,050) (1,080)

The following impairment provisions have been made against debtors arising out of insurance operations with the
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As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $'000

AAA . .
AA - -
A . .
BBB and below - -
Not rated {1,459) (1,893)

(1,459) (1,893)

The following impairment provisions have been made against debtors arising out of reinsurance operations with
the credit ratings indicated.:

:
credit ratings indicated:

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
AAA (2) -
AA (186} {41)
A (249) (744)
BBB and below {509) (177)
Not rated {12,105) {12,310)
{13,051) (13,272)

The following table analyses the movements in the impairment provisions:

Impairment
| Provisions
5 $'000

At 1 January (18,432)
Amounts written off (357)
Recoveries on assets previously written off 37
Net exchange differences 2,537
At 31 December 2006 (16,215)
Amounts written off (699)
Recoveries on assets previously written off 1,673
Net exchange differences (319)
At 31 December 2007 (1$5,560)

Financial risk

The Group is subject to several types of financial risk. The most significant of these is the risk that at any given
date, the proceeds from realising the financial assets of the Group may be insufficient to meet the financial
obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The Group is also exposed to risk as a result of changes in foreign
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currency and interest rates. Another significant risk relates to the liquidity of the Group.

Asset and liability mismatch risk

In order to ensure that adequate liquid resources are available to fund insurance liability cash outflows when they
fall due, the Group's practice is to invest in assets matching the currency and duration of the expected related
liabilities.

Currency risk
The Group reports its results in US Dollars and accordingly, to the extent that shareholders’ funds are invested in
assets denominated in currencies other than US Dollars, exchange gains or losses may arise on translatior..

The Group controls its currency risk by investing in assets that match the currency in which it expects related
liabilities to be paid and by investing the majority of assets backing shareholder funds in US Dollars. The
Directors consider the revaluation gains and losses arising from the revaluation of non-functional currencies that
impact the income statement and equity to be insignificant.

The Group estimates that its net exposure to currencies is as follows:

As at 31 December 2007
Functional Currencies in $ ‘000

usb AUD GBP CHF Euro Subtotal

330,730 21,204 440 (22,177) 50,560 380,757
Non-Functional Currencies

GBP Euro SEK DKK JPY CAD Other Subtotal Total
27,466 22,850 (6,808) (4,753) (4,569) 25430 (12,336) 47282 428,039

Functional Currencies in %

usD AUD GBP CHF Euro Subtotal

77.3 5.0 0.1 {5.2) 11.8 89.0
Non-Functional Currencies in %

GBP Euro SEK DKK JPY CAD Other Subtotal Total
6.4 5.3 (1.6) (1.1) {1.1) 59 -2.8 11.0 100.0

As at 31 December 2006
Functional Currencies in $ ‘000

usD AUD GBP CHF Euro Subtotal

410,699 7,965 3,267 (21,983) 47,545 447 493
Non-Functional Currencies

GBP Euro SEK DKK JPY CAD Other Subtotal Total

25,196 16,792  (15,548) (265) (4,626) 20,356 (5,257) 36,648 484,141

Functional Currencies in %

usD AUD GBP CHF Euro Subtotal

84.8 1.6 0.7 (4.5) 9.8 92 .4
Non-Functional Currencies in %

GBP Euro SEK DKK JPY CAD Other Subtotal Total
5.2 3.5 (3.2) (0.1) {1.0) 4.2 {1.0) 7.6 100.0

A positive percentage arises when assets exceed liabilities denominated in that currency while a negative
percentage arises when liabilities exceed assets.

The translation gains and losses of functional currencies are recognised as a separate component of equity where
as the gains and losses arising from the translation of non-functional currencies are recorded in the income
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statement.

Included within this currency analysis are net non-monetary assets which equate to 2.8% of the Group's net
assets.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that obligations cannot be met as they become due as a consequence of not being
able to readily realise assets to meet these obligations.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group's holding company had in place a $30.0 million bank term loan which was
due for repayment on 18 July 2009. This loan carried an interest margin of 200 basis points over LIBOR and was
repaid on 14 January 2008. Under the terms of the Group's bank credit agreement there were two financial
covenants which required that the Group maintained a minimum adjusted consolidated tangible net worth and a
minimum debt-to-total-capitalisation ratio. If the Group were to breach either one of these covenants, the lenders
would have had the right to demand early repayment of the loan in advance of the scheduled repayment date of
18 July 2009.

in December 2004 and January 2005, the Group issued a total of $120.0 million of hybrid trust preferred
securities. These securities were issued through trusts established by Alea Holdings US Company a subsidiary of
the Group holding company. The margin on these securities was unaffected by the credit rating downgrades and
remains at LIBOR plus 285 basis points. The securities have a fixed maturity of 30 years, are callable after five
years, and allow for a deferral of quarterly coupons for up to five years.

The following table analyses the contractual maturity dates of the undiscounted liabilities carried on the (Group's
balance sheet.

" As at 31 December 2007 Undliscounted
on Oneto Threeto  Over five Total Discount on Tetal
demand three five years years  undiscounted Insurance discounied
and within years liabllitles contract liabilitles
one year Itabilities
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 374,225 417,139 183,463 642,605 1,617,432 {67,541) 1,549,691
Borrowings - 30,000 - 117,785 147,785 . 147,785
Provisions 1,955 543 339 - 2,837 - 2,537
Other liabilities and charges 29,119 4,116 - - 33,235 - 33,235
Trade and other payables 65,707 42,766 35,489 47,779 191,741 - 191,744
Current income tax liabilities 2,761 . - - 2,781 - 2,i61
Total liabilities 473,767 494 564 219,291 808,169 1,985,791 (67,541) 1,928,050
" As at 31 December 2006 Undiscounted
On One to Three to Over five Total Discount on Total
demand three five years  undiscounted insurance  discounted
and years years liabilities contract lizabilities
within liabilities
one year
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 355,535 454 445 232,688 1,004,701 2,047,369 {105,855) 1,941,514
Borrowings 200,000 - - 117,267 317,267 - 317,267
Provisions 3,433 1,197 543 68 5,241 - 5,241
Other liabilities and charges 38,545 2,409 - - 40,954 - 40,959
Trade and other payables 54,379 89,119 43,569 168,139 355,606 - 355,803
Current income tax liahilities 1,009 - - - 1,009 - 1,009
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Total liabilities 652,901 547.170 277,200 1,280,175 2,767,446 (105,855) 2,661,591

Capital risk management

The total amount of capital managed by the Group is $537.4 million (2006: $593.4 million). The Group considers
its managed capital to consist of net tangible assets of $419.6 million (2006: $475.7 million) and the trust
preferred securities of $117.8 million (2006: $117.7 million).

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Group's capital structure on a regular basis with the aim of
selecting a debt-to-equity ratio that maximises return to shareholders. As at 31 December 2007 the debt-to-equity
ratio was 26% (2006: 40%).

The main aim of the Group's capital management strategy is to free-up excess capital which can be reinvested in
the business or returned to shareholders consistent with holding sufficient capital in each insurance operating
entity to meet regulatory requirements. The Group has been in run-off since the fourth quarter 2005 and has
conducted its operations in accerdance with this strategy.

There have been no changes in the Group's capital management policies since the previous period.

As at 31 December 2007 the Group was required to hold sufficient capital to meet the conditions of the bank loan
covenant in respect of the $30.0 million term loan. Subsequent to 31 December 2007 the Group repaid this term
lean and is no longer subject to this capital requirement,

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements in respect of all entities that previously wrote
insurance and reinsurance business. These requirements, which have been complied with during the year, are
enforced within the individual locations and are detailed below.

Alea London Limited is regulated by the UK Financial Services Authority (*FSA”). It is required by the FSA to
submit an annual statement of solvency and to hold capital resources in excess of its capital resources
requirement.

Alea North America Insurance Company is regulated by the New York Insurance Department ("NYID"). It is
required by the NYID to submit an annual risk based capital statement and to hold total adjusted capital in excess
of the Company Action Level which is 200% of its Authorized Control Level Risk-Based Capital.

Alea (Bermuda) Limited is regulated by the Bermuda Monetary Authority (“BMA”). It is required by the BMA tfo
submit an annual statutory financial return and to hold statutory capital and surplus in excess of its minimum
solvency margin,

Alea Europe is regulated by the Swiss Federal Office of Private Insurance ("FOPI"). A Swiss reinsurer must
maintain available own funds at the leve! of the required solvency margin, which is calculated by reference to the
business volume (Solvency 1). Additionally, the reinsurer must maintain its target capital which is defined as the
sum of the expected shortfall of change in risk-bearing capital within one year at the 99% confidence level plus
the market value margin, as required by the Swiss Solvency Test (Solvency 2).

The Group has embedded its capital management processes into its normal planning, reporting and decision
making activities.

5 Net realised losses on sale of renewal rights

Alea London Alea North Alea Europe Total
Limited America Limited
Insurance
Company
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Year ended 31 December 2007 - (1,880} 157 (1,723)
Year ended 31 December 2006 (800} (5,164) 944 (5,020)
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The Group completed three renewal rights transactions in the fourth quarter of 2005. These were accounted for
as net realised gains on sale of renewal rights of $61.1 million, which was recognised in the year ended 31
December 2005, and represented the Directors’ valuation at fair value of the business sold. In determining the fair
market value of renewal rights sales, the Board considered the prior production and growth of the businesses
sold, external projections and a recent assessment of the businesses sold. The fair market value of the ranewal
rights is regularly evaluated by the Board based on available data.

In the year ended 31 December 2007 a charge of $1.7 million was recognised in respect of the renewal rights
transactions (year ended 31 December 2006 charge of $5.0 million). These amounts reflect the necessary
changes to the fair value which is based on the latest financial data available. These amounts reflect the
discounted estimated future cash flows arising from specified percentages of applicable commissionable
premiums written over the applicable period in accordance with sale contracts.

The gains were calculated as the fair value of consideration receivable ($54.4 million). The Group has received
payments to 31 December 2007 of $22.6 million (31 December 2006: $20.9 million). The remaining balance of
$31.8 million (31 December 2006: $35.2 million) is included within loans and receivables including insurance
receivables and consists of $29.6 million owed by AmTrust and $2.2 million owed by Canopius. The non-current
portion of the receivable at 31 December 2007 is $29.6 million (31 December 2006: $33.7 million).

These amounts represent the Directors’ best estimates of the risk adjusted future receipts discounted ai. 4.5%.
These receipts are dependent upon the future levels of business generated on renewal in relation to the rights
sold over differing time periods as specified in the sale contracts. A 10% deviation of the projected renewals
would result in a change in receivable of $3.92 million.

The directors consider that the receivable is collectable based upon an assessment of credit rating of AmTrust
and Canopius.

6 Restructuring costs

In 2005, the Group announced its intention to run-off all remaining property and casualty business. Those fixed
assets not subject to renewal rights agreements and not required for the run-off operations have been written
down to their residual value. Redundancy costs have been incurred in Connecticut. A restructuring provision has
been established for employees in London, Basel and Zug. This provision included estimated expenses for future
redundancy payments for employees who cannot be redeployed in the new structure. The provision also
contained estimated expenses with regards to onerous contracts. Onerous contracts are operating lezses in
respect of any premises that are expected to be vacated as part of the restructuring. The provision was
established based on a run-off plan approved by the Board of Directors. Other costs are included in the claims
handling provisions.

Year ended 31 December 2007
AleaUK  AleaUS Alea Europe Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision
established based an run-off plan 1,245 326 ) 1,571
Total restructuring costs 1,245 326 - 1,571

Year ended 31 December 2006
AleaUK AleaUS Alea Europe Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision
. 1 4,135 2,285 - 6,430
established based on run-off plan

Reversal of estimated restructuring provision due to

- - (2,843) (2,843)
redundancies in other entities
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(2,500)

Total restructuring costs

4135  (205)

(2,843)

1,087

In order to execute the run-off plan, the Group reassessed where centres of competency should be ocated

geographically. This resulted in revisions being made to the locations of where staff were retained and
consequently additional severance payments were incurred by Alea London and Alea North America whilst Alea
Europe was able to reverse an element of the restructuring provision previously established.

Restructuring costs also include a credit of $2.5 million which results from Alea North America's sublease of its

empty offices in Wilton and a resulting reversal of part of the previously recognised provision for onerous

contracts.

7 Segmental information

Primary segment information - operating results by operating segment

The Group managed and conducted its business through four principal operating segments represeating
London market business, North American business including alternative risk transfer and reinsurance,
Continental European reinsurance and financial services - the central investment operation.

The operating result of each of these operating segments before the impact of intra-group quota share
arrangements is shown below.

Year ended 31 December Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
2007 London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross Premiums Written 2,690 (5,801) 15,794 - - 12,683
Revenue
Net insurance premium
revenue 9,003 {(4,189) 17,545 - - 22,359
Fee income - 138 1,811 - - 1,949
Investment income - - - 73,089 - 73,089
Net realised losses on financial
assets - - - (1,310} - (1,310)
Net realised gains on sale of
subsidiary - - - - - -
Net realised losses on sale of
renewal rights - {1,880) 157 - - (1,723)
Total revenue 9,003 (5,931) 19,513 71,779 - 94,364
Expenses
Net insurance claims (15,264) (41,741) (22,151) - - (79,156)
Acquisition costs (4,910) (2.070) {3,299) - - (10,279)
Other operating expenses (14,624) {25,186} {13,544) - (6,388) (69,742)
Restructuring costs {1,245) (326) - - - (1,571)
Total expenses {36,043) {69,323) (38,994) - {6,388) (150,748)
Results of t
a:tf“,‘iti " : operating (27,040)  (75,254)  (19,481) 74,779 (6,388)  {56,384)
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Finance costs - - - (21,696) - {21,696)
(Loss)fprofit before income (27.040)  (75.254)  {19,481) 50,083 (6,388)  (78,080)
Income tax expense - - - - (100} (100}
{Loss)/profit for the period (27,040) {75,254) {19,481) 50,083 (6,488) (78,180)
Year ended 31 December Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
20086 London North Europe Financial allocated

America Services

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross Premiums Written 21,247 (102,368) 6,202 - - (74,919}
Revenue
Net insurance premium
revenue 129,312 61,973 24 631 - - 215,918
Fee income 502 2,641 - - - 3,143
Investment income - - - 94,821 - 94 821
Net realised losses on financial
assets - - - (2,500) - (2,500)
Net realised gains on sale of
subsidiary - 4336 - - - 4,336
Net realised (losses)/gains on
sale of renewal rights (800) (5,164) 944 - - (5,020)
Total revenue 129,014 63,786 25,575 92,321 - 310,696
Expenses
Net insurance claims (85,795) (58,285) {12,612) - - {156,692)
Acquisition costs (38,292) (23,456) (7,534) - - {69,292)
Other operating expenses (18,288) (29,148) (15,032) - (4,087) {66,555}
Restructuring (costs)/releases (4,135) 205 2,843 - - (1,087)
Total expenses (146,510) (110,694} (32,335) - (4,087) (293,626)
Results of operating
activities (17,496) (46,908) (6,760) 92,321 (4,087) 17,070
Finance costs - - - (24,407) - (24,407)
{Loss)iprofit before income (17.496)  (46,908) (6,760) 67,914 4,087) (7,337
Income tax credit - - - - 6,502 6,502
(Loss)/profit for the period (17,496) (46,908) {6,760) 67,914 2,415 {835)

Other segment charges included in the income statement are as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2007 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non -
London North Europe  Financial allocated Total
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
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Depreciation (note 18) 1,268 976 290 - 2,534
Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision _ } _
established based on run-off plan (note 6) 1,245 326 1.571
Total restructuring costs 1,245 326 - - - 1,571
Year ended 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Non -

London North Europe  Financial allocated  Total

America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Depreciation (note 18) 1,912 1,792 438 - ) 4,142
Redundancy costs incurred in excess of the provision _ } }
established based on run-off plan (note 6) 4135 2285 6.430
Reversal of estimated restructuring provision due to ) R . _ .
redundancies in other entities (note 6) (2.843) (2.842)
Estimated restructuring costs (note 6) - (2,500) - - - (2,5009)
Total restructuring costs 4135 {205} {2,843) - - 1,087

The Group had various intra-group quota share arrangements between the following legal companies Alea
London Limited, Alea (Bermuda} Ltd, Alea North America Insurance Company, Alea North America Specialty
Insurance Company (collectively Alea US) and Alea Europe Ltd. The impact of intra-group quota share
arrangements on operating result with regard to these lega! entities are shown and explained below.

For the year ended 31 December 2007 intra-group queta share arrangements comprise a 50% quota share of
certain 2000 and prior underwriting year business from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda and a 70% quota share of

Alea North America Insurance Company to Alea Bermuda.

For the year ended 31 December 2006 intra group quota share arrangements comprise a 50% quota share of
certain 2000 and prior underwriting year business from Alea Europe to Alea Bermuda and a 70% quota share of
Alea US to Alea Bermuda. A 35% quota share of Alea London business to Alea Europe was commuted as at 30

September 2006.

The effects of all of these arrangements are detailed below:

Year ended 31 December 2007 Alea Alea Alea Alea Total
Londen Bermuda us Europe
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'001}
Net insurance premium revenue 9,003 760 (4,949) 17,545 22 359
Intercompany reinsurance - 16,265 (16,827) 562 -
Net insurance premium revenue
after intercompany reinsurance 8,003 17,025 (21,776) 18,107 22,359
Underwriting result !
Before intercompany reinsurance (27,040) (30,520) (48,242) {19,638) {126,440)
After intercompany reinsurance (28,738) (56,949) (30,275) (10,478) {126,440)
Year ended 31 December 2006 Alea Alea Alea Alea Total
London Bermuda us Europe
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
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Net insurance premium revenue 129,312 4,099 57,874 24 631 215915
Intercompany reinsurance (31,313) 39,345 (39,534) 31,502 -

Net insurance premium revenue

after intercompany reinsurance 97,999 43,444 18,340 56,133 215,915

Underwriting result ! _
Before intercompany reinsurance {16,697} (21,548) {28,618) (7,704} (74,567)
After intercompany reinsurance {11,886) (23,968) {37,185) (1,528) {74,567)

1

Results of operating activities excluding investment income, net realised gains on financial assets, net realised

gains on sale of subsidiary and intangible assets and net realised gains on sale of renewal rights.

Primary segment information - balance sheet by operating segment

The Group managed and conducted its business through four principal operating segments representing L.ondon
market business, North American business including alternative risk transfer and reinsurance, Continental
European reinsurance and financial services - the central investment operation. The balance sheet of each of
these operating segments before the impact of intra-group quota share arrangements is shown below:

As at 31 December

2007 Alea Alea Alea Alea Neon - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment 610 3,581 296 - - 4,487
Intangible assets - 8,479 - - - 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs 47 - 2,276 - - 2,323
Financial assets

Equity securities

- available for sale - - - 165 - 165

Debt securities

- available for sale - - - 1,365,040 - 1,365,040
Loans and receivables
including insurance 41,223 112,847 17.812 101,825 - 273,707
receivables
Deferred tax assets - - - - 1,034 1,034
Reinsurance contracts 158,294 104,420 284,087 - - 546,801
Cash and cash
equivalents - - - 154,253 - 154,253
Total assets 200,174 229,327 304,471 1,621,283 1,034 2,356,289
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 452 322 445,512 642,057 - - 1,549,891
Borrowings - - - 147,785 - 147,785
Provisions - 1,154 1,683 - - 2,837
Other liabilities and
charges 8,002 21,515 3,628 - - 33,235
Trade and other payables 68,738 72,464 50,539 - - 161,741
Current income tax
liabilities - - - - 2,761 2,761
Total liabilities 539,152 540,645 697,907 147,785 2,761 1,928,250
Net assets 428,039
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EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity
holders
Share capital 1,738
Other reserves 708,455
Retained loss (283,154)
Total equity 428,039
Sooat 31 December Alea Alea Alea Atea Non - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

ASSETS
Property, plant and ; )
equipment 1,798 4,221 379 6,398
Intangible assets - 8,479 - - - 8,479
Deferred acquisition costs 420 37 3123 - - 3,506
Financial assets

Equity securities

- available for sale - - - 198 - 198

Debt securities

- available for sale - - - 1,664,341 - 1,664,341
Loans and receivables
including insurance 85,497 103,258 113,965 138,241 - 440,961
receivables
Deferred tax assets - - - - 1,154 1,154
Reinsurance contracts 315,180 256,178 292 117 - - 863,475
Cash and cash
equivalents - - - 157,220 - 157,220
Total assets 402,895 372,099 409,584 1,960,000 1,154 3,145,732
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 623,259 634,340 683,915 - - 1,941,514
Borrowings - - - 317,267 - 317,267
Provisions 2,139 1,425 1,677 - - 5,241
Other liabilities and
charges 5,795 31,677 3,482 - - 40,954
Trade and other payables 118,984 90,631 145,991 - - 355,606
Current income tax
liabilities - - - - 1,009 1,009
Total liabilities 750,177 758,073 835,065 317,267 1,009 2,661,501
Net agsets 484,141
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity
holders
Share capital 1,738
Other reserves 687,377
Retained loss {204,974}
Total equity 484,141
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The capital expenditures (see also note 18) are as follows:

Alea Alea Alea Alea Non - Total
London North Europe Financial allocated
America Services
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Year ended 31 December 2007 54 337 256 - - 647
Year ended 31 December 2006 473 263 - - - 733

Secondary segment information - geographical analysis
The following provides an analysis of gross premiums written by location of insured and by [ocation of legal entity
accepting the risk, and of (loss)/profit before tax by legal entity accepting risk.

Year ended Year encled
31 December 31 December
Geographical analysis of gross premiums written by location of insured 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Europe 8,495 (257)
Africa 18 (28)
Near & Middle East 28 (108)
Far East 17 181
Australia & Oceania 172 {96)
North America 3,914 (76,329)
Latin America 39 1,728
12,683 (74,9'@

Geographical analysis by location of legal entity

Gross premiums written (Loss)/profit before tax

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decemher
2007 2006 2007 2006
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bermuda 613 1,735 (43,011) (8,176)
Jersey - 74 - (1,606)
United Kingdom 2,593 20,973 (9,272) 5,958
United States {6,415) (104,102) (28,214) (24,570)
Switzerland 15,892 6,401 2,417 21,057
12,683 (74,919) (78,080) (7,327)

Geographical analysis by location of legal entity
Carrying value of assets Additions to property, plant
and equipment

As at As at Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
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Bermuda 796,896 1,135,396 20
Jersey “ - - -
United Kingdom 512,483 659,344 54 473
United States 408,889 578,450 317 263
Switzerland 638,021 772,542 256 -
2,356,289 3,145,732 647 736
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2007 2005
Operating equity and shareholders' equity interests $'000 $'000
Alea Europe Ltd 239,330 230,660
Alea (Bermuda) Ltd ' 134,703 226,651
Alea US 230,359 241,491
Amounts held in Holding Companies (26,054) 103,703
Amounts held in non-insurance subsidiaries (2,514) (1,097)
Note provided by Alea Europe Ltd to Alea US - -
575,824 801,408
Amounts owed to credit institutions {30,000) (199,574)
Trust preferred securities (117,785} (117 693}
Shareholders' funds attributable to equity interests 428,039 484.141_
! Alea London Limited is wholly owned by Alea (Bermuda) Ltd has net assets as follows;
As at As at:
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Alea London Limited 81,827 B7,954
8 Investment income
Year ended Year ended
31 December
31 December 2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Financial assets - available for sale:
- Interest income from debt securities 67,070 86,53
Cash and cash equivalents interest income 6,019 B,2¢4
73,089 94,821
9 Net realised losses on financial assets
Year ended Year ended

31 December
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31 December 2007 2306
$'000 $'000
Realised gains on financial assets - available for sale 281 4,700
Realised losses on financial assets - available for sale {1,591) (7.220)
{1,310) (2,500)

10 Sale of subsidiary

Alea North America Specialty Insurance Company

Alea North America Insurance Company (“ANAIC”) sold its Delaware excess and surplus lines carrier, Alea North
America Specialty Insurance Company (“ANASIC’) to Insurance Corporation of Hannover, a member company of
Praetorian Financial Group, Inc. on 29 September 2006. ANAIC received a cash payment of $34.7 million
representing $4 million plus the statutory policyholders’' surplus of ANASIC as at date of sale. The Group
recognised in its IFRS accounts a net realised gain on the sale of $4.3 million in 2006.

On the date of the sale, the Group's Alea {Bermuda) Ltd affiliate assumed 100% of all business wrilten by
ANASIC prior to the closing date. The obligations under the agreements are supported by a guarantee of the

Company.
As at As at
31 December 2007 29 September 200€
$'000 $’000'_
ASSETS
Deferred acquisition costs - 45
Financial assets
Debt securities
- available for sale - 25,532
Loans and receivables including insurance receivables - 2,853
Reinsurance contracts - 9,487
Cash and cash equivalents - 4,477
Total assets - 42,394
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts - 11,769
Other liabilities and charges - 177
Trade and other payables - 58
Total liabilities - 12,004
Net Assets - 30,390
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary - 4,336
Total net consideration - 34,726

The total consideration was satisfied in cash.

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
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Cash consideration - 34,726
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of - {4,477)
Total net cash inflow on disposal - 30,249

11 Movement in prior year provision for insurance claims, net of reinsurance

The table below presents amounts included in incurred claims arising from the movement in the prior year
provision for claims outstanding net of reinsurance, An increase is an adverse run-off deviation and a decrease is
a positive run-off deviation to the provision for claims outstanding, net of reinsurance held at the previous balance
sheet date.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 3 Dece?:;;
Idr!creasel(decrease) in claims outstanding net of reinsurance before $'000 $000
iscount ~
Underwriting years 1999 and prior 608 (3,242)
Underwriting year 2000 2,475 1,465
Underwriting year 2001 6,298 5,16+
Underwriting year 2002 10,072 5770
Underwriting year 2003 12,546 {1,465)
Underwriting year 2004 (13,677) (26,846)
Underwriting year 2005 4,777 2,200
23,099 (16,945)
Claims outstanding net of reinsurance at prior year end before discount 1,171,165 1,612,450
Discount {95,533) {(116,679)
1,075,632 1,495,771
12 Results of operating activities
Loss from operations has been arrived after charging:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December
2006
$'000 $°000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,534 4,142
Staff costs (see note 13) 27,579 37,757
Auditors’ remuneration (see below) 2,369 3,283
A more detailed analysis of auditors’ remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December
2008
$°000 $°000
Audit services 2,193 2,523
Tax services 46 18

3/10/2008
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Actuarial and other consulting 130 742
Total auditors’ remuneration 2,369 3,283
13 Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December
2005
Underwriting - 1.4
Finance 22 45
Information Technology 14 19
Claims 50 48
Technical Accounts 15 22
Management and administration 18 30
119 1 75%_
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Year ended Year endec!
31 December 2007 31 December
200¢
$'000 $'000
Wages and salaries ' 24,401 32,524
Social security costs 1,562 2,608
Other pension costs (see note 38) 1,616 2,625
27,579 37,757

! Severance payments of $2.0 million made in the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006; $12.2 million) are
excluded in the table above. Of this $2.0 million, $0.4 million (2006: $8.6 million) was provided .n the
restructuring provision established at 31 December 2005 (see note 27). The remaining $1.6 million has been

charged through the income statement in 2007 (see note 8).

14 Finance costs

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December

2006

$'000 $'000

Interest on borrowings 18,184 22,990

Other investment expenses 2,932 3,288

E[xchange losses/(gains) on non-functional currencies and transactions 580 (1.871)
osses

21,696 24,407
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15 Net gains or losses on borrowings

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December
2006
$'000 $'000

Capitalised debt raising expenses charged to income
statement 518 6335
518 636

16 Income tax expensel/(credit)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
Current tax expense/(credit):

UK corporation tax {5} 326
Foreign tax 1,002 (4,934,
Total current tax 997 (4,608)
Deferred tax (note 23): (897) {1,894)
Total income tax expensef{credit) 100 (6,502)

UK corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2006: 30%) of the estimated assessable UK profit for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The tax expense for the periods presented varied from the stated rate of UK corporation tax as explained be ow:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $'000

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (78,080) (7,337}
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of UK

corporation tax at 30% (2006: 30%) {23,424) (2,201)

Factors affecting tax expense/{credit):

Adjustment in respect of foreign tax rates 11,426 611

Adjustment in respect of prior periods 130 (884)

Overseas and other taxes 670 973
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Change in UK corporation tax rate used to provide deferred tax asset 79
Deferred tax asset in respect of current year losses not recognised 9,936

Utilisation of tax losses in respect of which no deferred tax assets
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were provided (600) (4,276)
Other permanent differences 1,883 ('25)
Tax expensel/(credit) for the year 100 (6,502)

In addition to the amount expensed to the income statement, deferred tax of $1.0 million has been expensed to

equity in the year (2006: expense of Nil).

17 Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

Year ended Year endad
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Eamnings $ $
Eamnings for the purposes of basi¢c eamings per share
being net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company (78,179,546) (835.20%)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: - -
Sﬁ;l:;ngs for the purposes of diluted earnings per (78,179,546} (835,201)
Number of shares Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the 173,788,126 173,738,502
purposes of basic earnings per share v '
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
- Share options - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 173,788,126 173,738,502
18 Property, plant and equipment
Computer Fixtures and Other Tolal
equipment and office equipment
software
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 January 2006 26,117 7,793 1,724 35654
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Additions 705 31 - 736
Exchange difference 2,294 255 120 2,669
Disposals (6,263) (3,481) (131) (9,375)
At 31 December 2006 22,853 4,598 1,713 29 164
Additions 374 220 53 647
Exchange difference 383 23 133 539
Disposals (830) (448) (2) (1,2280)
At 31 December 2007 22,780 4,393 1,897 29,070
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2006 (18,635) {5,525) {1,566) (25,726)
Charge for the year (3,778} (336) (28) (4,142)
Exchange differences {(1,957) (230) (160) {2,247)
Eliminated on disposals 5,780 3,522 147 9,44%
At 31 December 2006 (18,590) (2,569) (1,607) (22,766)
Charge for the year (2,017) (392) (125) {2,534)
Exchange differences (357) {12) (131) (500)
Eliminated on disposals 823 394 - 1217
At 31 December 2007 (20,141) (2,579) {1,863) (24,583)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 2,639 1,814 34 4,487
At 31 December 2006 4,263 2,029 1086 6,298
19 Intangible assets
Licences
$'000
Cost
At 1 January 2006 9,968
Additions -
At 31 December 2006 9,963
Additions -
At 31 December 2007 9,968
Amortisation
At 1 January 2006 (1,489)
Impairment of asset -
At 31 December 2006 (1.489)
Impairment of asset -
At 31 December 2007 (1,489)
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Carrying amount

At 31 December 2007 8,479
At 31 December 2006 8,479

Capitalised licences represent the cost of licences acquired to conduct business in the United States. The
Directors consider these licences to have indefinite useful lives. The licences are tested for impairment at each
balance sheet date. At 31 December 2007 the impairment review indicated that the carrying value of the
licenses reflects the recoverable amount and no impairment write down is necessary (31 December 2003: no
impairment write down was necessary).

20 Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition costs

$'000
At 1 January 2006 107,000
Change in year {103,718)
Exchange difference 22¢.
At 31 December 2006 3,506
Change in year (1,351)
Exchange difference 16€
At 31 December 2007 2,323
At 31 December 2007
Current assets 1,992
Non-current assets 331
2,323
At 31 December 2006
Current assets 283
Non-current assets 3,223
3,508
21 Financial assets
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 20086
$'000 $'000
Available-for-sale investments
- Equity securities 165 198
- Debt securities 1,365,040 1,664,341
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The investments included above represent investments in listed equity securities and listed debt securities. The fair values of

these investments are based on quoted market prices.

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Summary by maturity — Debt securities 000 % $'000 o
Less than 1 year 598,506 43.8 661,770 398
1 year up 10 3 years 317,638 23.3 354,899 21.3
3years up to 5 years 113,916 8.3 228,385 13.7
5 years up to 10 years 102,707 7.5 136,633 8.2
More than 10 years 232,273 171 282,654 17.0
1,365,040 100.0 1,664,341  100.0
22 Loans and receivables including insurance receivables
As at Asi at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
Deposits with ceding undertakings 91,177 118,558
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 1,496 21,989
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 101,689 143,993
Amounts due from reinsurance operations not transferring significant risk - 66,293
Accrued income (1) 42,805 49,282
Other prepayments 5,108 2,83
Other debtors 31,432 38,315
Total loans and receivables including insurance receivables 273,707 440,961
Current asset 49,182 63,710
Non-current asset 224,525 377,251
273,707 440,961

balance sheet date as disclosed in note 5.

Loans and receivables including insurance receivables are recorded on the balance sheet at amortised cost.

23 Deferred income tax

$31.8 million (31 December 2006: $35.2 million) of the renewal rights sales are recorded as accrued income at the

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the

current and prior reporting period:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Unrealised Depreciation us
gains on in advance of subsidiary
investments capital insurance
allowances transaction

timing

differences

and losses

Bonus and

pension

accruals not

currently

deductible and
other timing
differences

Total
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$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
At 1 January 2006 ) - 989 (1,878) 8 (881}
Credittexpense) ko the incame . 27 1,878 (1) 1,894
Exchange differences - 138 - 3 141
At 1 January 2007 - 1,154 - - 1,154
Expense to equity (1,030) - - - (1,030)
g;e‘gli"t’l‘(eenxtpense) to the income _ (132) 1,030 } 8es
Exchange differences - 12 - - 12
As at 31 December 2007 (1.030) 1,034 1,030 - 1.034_

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December

2005

$°000 $'001)

Deferred tax assets 1,034 1,154
Deferred tax liabilities - -

1,034 1,154

At the balance sheet date the Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of $66.5 million (31 December 2006:
$47.8 million) in respect of tax losses carried forward. The assets have not been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of $266.7 million (31 December 2006: $182.6 million)
available for offset against future profits. Of the losses at 31 December 2007 $62.6 million (31 December 2006:
$24.6 million) relate to the US, $151.0 million (31 December 2006: $140.5 million) relate to the UK and $53.1
million (31 December 20086: $17.5 million) relate to Switzerland.

US losses expire as follows: $21.7 million in 2026 and $40.9 million in 2027.

In the UK, tax losses are in part carried forward as disclaimed technical reserves. UK losses have no expiry date.
Swiss losses of $53.1 million expire in 2011,

The deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2007 and as at 31 December 2006 are non-current assets.
The deferred {ax liabilities as at 31 December 2007 and as at 31 December 2006 are non-current liabilities.

The deferred income tax expensed to equity during the year is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $'000

Revaluation reser\rte'| 1,030 -
Hedging and translation reserve? - -
1,030 -
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The revaluation reserve is a component of shareholders’ equity that is used to record the difference betwe:
the market value of available for sale investments carried on the balance sheet and the amortised cost of tho:
assets. Unrealised gains and losses arising when the market value is compared with the amortised ¢ast of tl
assets are taken to this reserve,

Movements in the unrealised gains and losses arising from the translation of the Group's assets and liabiliti
denominated in functional currencies of the Group are shown in the hedging and translation reserve. TI
hedging and translation reserve is a component of shareholders’ equity.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:

As at As at

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

$'000 $'000

Cash at bank and in hand 31,589 69,738
Short-term deposits with credit institutions 122,664 87,482
Total ¢cash and cash equivalents 154,253 157,22_0

Cash and cash equivalents yielded an effective rate of interest of 4.3% in 2007 (2006: 5.2%).

25 Insurance and reinsurance contracts

Insurance and reinsurance contracts are comprised of the following:

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
Gross claims outstanding
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 1,605,617 2,026,102
Discount (67,541) (105,855)
1,538,076 1,920,247
Claims handling provisions 11,815 17,823
Total gross claims outstanding 1,549,891 1,938,070
Provision for unearned premiums on insurance contracts - 3,444
Total insurance contracts 1,549,891 1,941,514
Aggregate excess reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 41,162 299,544
Discount - (7,657)
Net aggregate excess reinsurance 41,162 291,887
Other reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 508,651 573,218
Discount (3,012) (2,665}
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Net other reinsurance 505,639 570,51
Total reinsurance
Provision for claims outstanding, reported and not reported 549,813 872,760
Discount {3,012) (10,322
Total reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding 546,801 862,428
Provision for uneamed premiums on reinsurance contracts - 1,037
Total reinsurance contracts 546,801 863,475
Undiscounted claims outstanding, net of reinsurance 1,067,619 1,171,165
Discount {64,529) (95,53%)
Claims outstanding net of reinsurance 1,003,090 1,075,632
As at As zt
31 December 2007 31 December 2003
Security held for aggregate excess reinsurance $'000 $'00)
Deposits received from reinsurers 41,162 46,1149
Trust fund and LOC collateral available against aggregate excess contracts - 240,182
Total collateral available against aggregate excess reinsurance recoverable 41,162 286,301
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $°000
Current assets 72,669 211,817
Non-current assets 474,132 651,658
Total reinsurance contracts 546,801 863,475
Current liabilities 424,653 697,937
Non-current liabilities 4,125,238 1,243,577
Total insurance contracts 1,549,891 1,941,514

Basis for establishing provision for claims outstanding

Loss reserves for reinsurance business are established based on claims data reported to the Group by ceding
companies supplemented with relevant industry benchmark loss development patterns used to projest the
ultimate incurred loss. Ultimate incurred loss indications are calculated by the Group's actuaries using szveral
standard actuarial methodologies including paid and incurred loss development and the Bornhuetter-Ferjuson
incurred and paid loss methods.

The Group's actuaries utilise several assumptions in applying each methodology, including loss development
factors, expected loss ratios based on pricing analysis, and actual reported claim frequency and severity. These
reviews and documentation are completed in accordance with professional actuarial standards appropriate to the
jurisdictions where the business is written. The selected assumptions reflect the actuaries’ judgement baszd on
historical data and experience combined with information concerning current underwriting, economic, judicial,
regulatory and other influences on ultimate claim settlements.

Based on the actuarial indications, the Group selects and records a single point estimate separately for each line
of business for each underwriting year. The single point reserve estimate is management's best estimate which
the Group considers to be one that has an equal likelihood of developing a redundancy or deficiency as the loss
experience matures. On a quarterly basis the Group analyses and records its loss reserve estimates across: over
400 detailed lines of business which reflect class of business, geographic location, insurance versus reinsurance,
proportional versus non-proportional, and treaty versus facultative exposures. In addition, a limited number of the
Group’s largest contracts are reviewed individually.
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During the loss settlement period, additicnal facts regarding claims are reported. As this occurs it rnay be
necessary to increase or decrease the unpaid losses and loss expense reserves. The actual final liability may be
significantly different to prior estimates. The Group reviews additional reported claim information on a ronthly
basis. Actual claim experience is compared to that expected from the most recent actuarial reserve review to
highlight significant variances. A complete actuarial analysis by detailed line of business including selection of
single point estimates is completed semi-annually and is reviewed by the Group’s management.

Underwriting year table

‘999;,’;‘: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Tot
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $0C
Gross
Estimate of cumulative claims:
At end of underwriting
year 3,022,313 367,605 386,762 590,359 821,724 1,092,870 630,215
One year later 4,564 137 452,324 396,996 612,137 816,546 990,260 610,599
Two years later 4,710,816 485,269 417,049 611,228 794,346 883,970 616,375
Three years later 4,755,187 507,747 441,839 654,210 786,147 874,949
Four years later 4,828,048 539,694 440,855 660,908 790,476
Five years later 4,874,927 550,212 459,255 655,037
Six years {ater 4,883,595 563,532 467,672
Seven years later 4,893,658 560,023
Eight years later 4,874,618
Estimate of cumulative
claims as at 31
December 2007 4,874,618 560,023 467,672 655,037 790,476 874,949 616,375 8,839,1¢
Cumulative
payments at (4,623,090) (476,632) (391,183) (552,65Q) (578,367} (600,775) {385,598) {7.,608,25:
31 December 2007
251,528 83,391 76,489 102,387 212,109 274,174 230,777 1,230,8¢
Unearned element of
reserves at 31 - - - - (17} - (75) {9
December 2007
Earned non-life
reserves before effect
of discounting as at 251,528 83,391 76,489 102,387 212,092 274174 230,702 1,230,7¢
31 December 2007
Life and finite
reserves as at 31 374,88
December 2007
Claims handling
provisions as at 31 1.81
December 2007 !
Present value of reserves
before discount recognised 1.617 4
in the balance sheet as at re i
31 December 2007
1999 and
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prior 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Tot
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'ot

Reinsurance recoverable
Estimate of cumulative claims:
At end of underwriting year 557,558 87.617 140,151 176,731 165,184 177,565 144472
One year later 1,544,260 163,700 173,153 196,084 184,701 145792 132,953
Two years later 1,662,449 156,068 177,605 211,944 190,173 137,365 128,042
Three years later 1,646,776 149,374 152,152 212,974 182,641 147,960
Four years later 1,660,199 136,623 146,574 189,845 173,223
Five years later 1,684,626 130,220 157,163 181,349
Six years later 1,667,762 130,984 157,466
Seven years later 1,669,539 128,163
Eight years later 1,652,959
Estimate of cumulative
recoveries 1,652,959 128,163 157,466 181,349 173,223 147,960 128,042  2,569,1¢
at 31 December 2007 EE ' ! ' ! ' ' e
Cum_ulative recoveries
faceved at 31 December (1538202)  (110.301) (147,733) (173738) (135848) (07.220) (93,305) (2,296,43
114,667 17,862 9,733 7,611 37,375 50,740 34,737 272,72
Unearned element of
reinsurance recoverable at 31 _ - } }
December 2007 ) ) i}
Eamed net nonife
reinsurance recoverable
before effect of discounting 114,667 17,862 9,733 7,611 37,375 50,740 34,737 272,72
as at 31 December 2007
Life and finite reinsurance
recoverable as at 31
December 2007 277.0¢
Present value of reinsurance
recoverable before discount
recoghised in the balance 549 81
sheet as at 31 December 4
2007
1999 and
prior 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Net
Estimate of cumulative claims:
At end of underwriting year 2,464,755 279,988 246,611 413,628 656,540 915,305 485,743
One year later 3,019,877 288,624 223843 416,053 631,845 844,468 477,646
Two years later 3,048,357 329,201 239,444 399,284 604,173 746,605 488,333
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Three years later 3,108,411 358,373 289,687 441,236 603,506 726,989
Four years later 3,168,749 403,071 294,281 461,063 617,253
Five years later 3,190,301 419,992 302,092 473,688
Six years later 3,215,833 432,548 310,206
Seven years later 3,224,119 431,860
Eight years later 3,221,659
Estimate of net cumulative
claims at 31 December 2007 3,221,659 431,860 310,206 473,688 617,253 726,989 488,333 6,269,988
Net cumulative
payments at 31 (3,084,798) (366,331} (243,450) (378,912) (442,519) (503,565) (292,293) (5,311,858)
December 2007
136,861 65,529 66,756 94,776 174,734 223,434 196,040 958,130
Unearned element of
rve 1 Decemb:
;%?7 s at 31 December _ R R a7 B 75 (©2)
Earned net non-life reserves
before effect of discounting 136,861 65529 66756 94,776 174,717 223434 195965 958,038

as at 31 December 2007

Net life and finite reserves as

at 31 December 2007 97,766
Claims handling provisions

as at 31 December 2007 11,815
Present value of net

reserves before discount

recognised in the balance 1,067,619

sheet as at 31 December
2007

(1) In June 2000 the Group added a UK insurance and reinsurance license through the acquisition of The tmperial Fire And Marine Company Limited {'Imperial'’)
(now called Alea London Limited). In acquiring this entity, the Group assumed insurance and reinsurance liabilities relating to 1999 and prior underwriting years
written by Imperial. This explains the significant increase in cumulative claims in respect of 1998 and prior underwriting years that occurs in the table above
between 31 December 1999 and 31 December 2000. The increase in gross cumulative claims in respect of 1999 and prior as a result of the acquisition was

$1,620.2 mitlion and the increase in ceded cumulative claims was $897.7 million.

(2) The underwriting year development table above includes all cumulative claims in respect of underwriting years 1987 to 2005. It also includes 1988 and priot
underwriting year claims paid in calendar years 1999 to 2006, and the reserves in respect of 1886 and prior at each balance sheet date from 1999 to 2006.

(3) The insurance and reinsurance claims outstanding carried in the balance sheet of the Group include gross and ceded amounts in respect of Canadian
structured settlement life business. The gross and ceded amounts match exactly, to leave no net liability. As these balances relate to life business they arz
excluded from the underwriting year development table. Consequently, in order to achieve reconciliation to the balance sheet gross and ceded claims outstanding,
they are added back in the table above. The amount as at 31 December 2007 was $277.1 million {2006: $246.2 million).

26 Borrowings

The borrowings are repayable as follows: As at As al
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'000
On demand or within one year - 200,000
In the second year 30,000 -
In the third to fifth years inclusive - -
After five years 120,000 120,000
Total borrowings 150,000 320,000
Less: Capitalised debt raising expenses (2,215) (2,733)
Total borrowings net of capitalised expenses 147,785 317,267
Analysis of borrowings;
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $000
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Amounts owed to credit institutions 30,000 200,000
Trust preferred securities 120,000 120,000
Total borrowings 150,000 320,000

All borrowings are recorded at fair value. The directors consider the carrying values disclosed above to be a
reasonable approximation of the fair value at the year end.

Conditions attaching to amounts owed to credit institutions as at 1 January 2007

The three-year bank term loan of $200.0 million (of which $150.0 million had been drawn down) and thz $50.0
million revolver carried an interest margin of 120 basis points, which was adjustable based upon the Standard and
Poor's debt ratings for Alea. The $50.0 million revolver facility was additionally subject to a commitment fee of
40% of the applicable margin.

These borrowings fell due for repayment in September 2007. On 19 April 2007, the Group repaid $25.0 million of
the term loan and all of $50.0 million revolver using its cash reserves, leaving an outstanding amount of $125.0
million.

Conditions attaching to the term loan agreed 6 July 2007

The Group drew down the maximum aggregate commitment under this new term loan agreement of $90.0 million.
This was due for repayment in three equa! instalments of $30.0 million on 16 October 2007, 14 January 2008 and
18 July 2009. However, the Group made an optional prepayment of $60.0 million on 18 July 2007. The remaining
loan of $30.0 million was repaid on 14 January 2008. It carried an interest margin of 200 basis points over LIBOR.

Trust preferred securities

In December 2004, the Group issued $100.0 million of trust preferred securities and had in place a commitmenl
for an additional $20.0 million of trust preferred securities issued in January 2005. These securities (issued from
three Delaware trusts established by Alea Holdings US Company, of which one trust was established in .January
2005) provide for a preferred dividend at a rate of three month LIBOR plus 285 basis points. These sexcurities
allow for the postponement of preferred dividends under certain circumstances for up to five years. These
securities carry no financial covenants and no cross default covenants, have a fixed maturity of 30 years, and are
callable after five years.

27 Provisions

Restructuring

Provision
$000

At 1 January 2006 17,562
Wtilisation of provision due to onerous contracts (2,052)
Reversal of provision due to onerous contracts ! (2,500)
Utilisation of provision due to severance payments (8,633)
Exchange difference BEi9
At 31 December 2006 5,241
Utilisation of provision due to onerous contracts (2,448)
Utilisation of provision due to severance payments (425)
Severance participation received due to sale of renewal rights 310
Exchange difference 160
At 31 December 2007 2,857

As a result of Alea North America's sublease of its empty offices in Wilton a reversal of the praviously
recognised provision for onerous contracts has been made. The reversal is part of the restructuring costs
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presented in the income statement.

For further details regarding the restructuring costs see note 6.

At 31 December 2007
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Current liabilities 1,955
Non-current liabilities 882
2,837
At 31 December 2006
Current liabilities 3,433
Non-current liabiiities 1,803
5241
28 Other liabilities and charges
Deferred Other accruals and Total
reinsurance deferred income '
commission
$°000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2006 3,362 33,783 37,145
Change in the period (516) 4,782 4,266
Exchange difference - (457) (457)
At 31 December 2006 2,846 38,108 40,954
Change in the period (1,405) (6,550) (7,95%)
Exchange difference - 236 236
At 31 December 2007 1,441 31,794 33,235
' Includes regulatory levies of $4.7 million for Alea US (2006; $7.9 million).
At 31 December 2007
Current liabilities 29,119
Non-current liabilities 4116
33,235
At 31 December 2006
Current liahilities 38,545
Non-current liabilities 2,409
40,954
29 Trade and other payables
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'00
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Insurance balance payable 9,340 7,109
Reinsurance balance payable 105,220 177,726
Deposits received from reinsurers 33,530 52,347
Reserves withheld creditors 42,048 47,004
Liabilities from reinsurance operations not transferring significant risk 230 67,342
Other taxes and social securities 1,373 3,578
Total trade and other payables 191,741 355,606
Current liabilities 65,707 54,380
Non-current liabilities 126,034 301,:226

191,741 355,606

30 Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share Share Capital Revaluation Hedging Retained Share Total
capital  premium reserve 1 and eamings based
reserve translation payment
2 reserve
reserves
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

As at 1 January 2006 1,738 629,668 75,381 (23,697) 5,305 (204,974) 720 484,141
Loss of the perlod - - (78,180) - (78,180)
Revaluation on available for sale
investments - gross - 14,342 - - - 14,342
Revaluation on available for sale _ . - .
investments - tax {1,030) {1,030}
Movement in share based
payment reserve - - - - - 146 146
Translation gains - gross - - 8,620 - - 8,610
Translation gains - tax - - - - . -

As at 31 December 2007 1,738 629,668 75,381 {10,385) 13,925 {283,154} 866 428,009

Attributabte to equlty holders of the Company
Share Share Capital Revaluation Hedging  Retalned Share Tolal
capital  premium reserve 1 and eamings based
reserve translation payment
2 reserve
reserves
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

As at 1 January 2006 1,737 629,311 75,381 (12,671) {176) {204,139) 986 490,439
Issuance of shares 1 357 - - - - {358) -
Loss of the period - - - - - (835) - {835)
Revaluation on available for sale
Investments - gross N ° (11,026) ° (11,025)
Revaluation on available for sale . R . .

Investments - tax )

Movement in share based

payment reserve ) - ° N 92 bz
Translation gains - gross - - - 5,481 - 5,431
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Translation gains - tax

As at 31 December 2006 1,738 620,668 75,381 (23,697) 5,305 {204,974) 720 484,141

The revaluation reserve is a component of shareholders' equity that is used to record the difference between the market value of
available for sale investments carried on the balance sheet and the amortised cost of those assets. Unrealised gains and losses arising
when the market value is compared with the amortised cost of the assets are taken to this reserve.

Movements in the unrealised gains and losses arising from the translation of the Group's assets and liabilities denominated in {unctional
currencies of the Group are shown in the hedging and translation reserve,

31 Share capital

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Number Number
'000s $'000 '000s $'000
Authorised:
Common shares of $0.01 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,0C0
Total authorised 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,0C0
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
Common shares of $0.01 173,788 1,738 173,788 1,758
Total allotted, called up share capital and fully paid 173,788 1,738 173,788 1,758

32 Stock options and restricted shares

Bermuda Plan

Alea Group Holdings AG (a former Group company which was merged with Alea Europe Ltd in 2005) had in place
a stock purchase and option plan for key employees and advisors known as the 1998 Amended and Festated
Stock Option Plan for Key Employees and Subsidiaries (the “Swiss Plan"). The Company adopted a 2002 Stock
Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries, as amended (the “Bermuda
Plan”), in connecticn with the re-domiciling of the ultimate parent company of the Group to Bermuda and all
awards under the Swiss Plan are now governed by the terms of the Bermuda Plan. The terms of the Bermuda
Plan are substantially similar to the terms of the Swiss Plan. All Alea Group Holdings AG non-voting participation
shares and options were exchanged for common shares and options in connection with an equity exchange offer
that was completed on 3 April 2002. In total, 15,000,000 common shares are authorised for use urnder the
Bermuda Plan.

The exercise price of the options will be the fair market value of the common shares on the grant date. Generally,
the options vest rateably over a five-year period except in the case of performance options where vesting is
affected by attainment of certain pre-approved financial targets. The exercisability of the options accelerates upon
a change of control of the Group. Options expire and are no longer exercisable on the tenth anniversary or in
certain circumstances at the end of the three month period following such tenth anniversary of the grant date. The
expiration of the options can accelerate due to termination of employment. Certain options granted contain
shortened expiration and vesting periods.

The terms of the Company's common shares and the exercise price of the options to acquire company common
shares on the purchase/grant date were determined by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
terms of the Bermuda Plan. The Bermuda Plan was terminated as to future grants with effect from 19 November
2003.

Executive Plan

The Company's shareholders have adopted the Alea Executive Option and Stock Plan and the Alea Sharesave
Plan ("Executive Plan"). The Executive Plan provides for the grant of ime and performance options, restricted
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stock units and share savings for employees. The exercise price of options granted shall not be less than the
middie market quotation for the Company's shares on the dealing day preceding the date of grant. The number of
common shares granted in any period under ail of the Company's employee share schemes {(excluding shares
issuable on exercise of options granted prior to 19 November 2003) may not exceed 10% of the Company's
issued ordinary share capital. Generally, the vesting period of an option granted under the Executive Plan is
subject to the discretion of the Board (or a committee thereof) provided that vesting for certain tax qualified
options may not be earlier than 3 years or more than 10 years after the date of grant and unless any reslevant
performance conditions have been satisfied.

Other

The company has issued to Fisher Capital Corp. LLC certain options to acquire common shares, which are fully
vested and are exercisable within 15 years of the date of grant. In connection with a consulting agreement, the
company has issued restricted shares which are fully vested to Richard Delaney, a former director. These shares
and options were not granted pursuant to either Plan.

Transactions involving common share options are disclosed in note 33.

33 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share option plan

The Group plans provide for a grant price equal to the average quoted market price of the Group shares on the
date of grant. The vesting period is generally 5 years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10
years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options are typically contractually forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group subject to certain exercise periods that apply to vested options and to certain options granted
in 2005 pursuant to the Executive Plan.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise price Number of exercise
options in$ options price in $
)C;;;tlrons outstanding at beginning of 4,688,676 3.68 0,383,428 365
Options granted during the year - - - -
Options forfeited during the year (1,664,942) 3.78 (4,694,752) 3.95
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options which expired during the _ )
year ) N
Options outstanding at end of year 3,023,734 3.62 4,688,676 3.68
Options exercisable at end of year 2,509,850 3.56 3,153,856 3.59

No options were exercised during the year. The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had a weighted
average exercise price of $3.62 (2006 $3.68), and the weighted average remaining contractual lives of those
options are as follows.

Year ended Year ended
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31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Weighted Woeighted
Average Number of Average Number of
ox erclz:ngi?::: Remalning share options Range of “e:f::: Remaining  share options
p Contractual outstanding p Contractual outstaniing
Life Life
Cptions outstanding at end of year
divided into meaningfu! ranges
Share options issued in respect of
Alea Group Holdings AG after $3.22 -$3.22 0.97 60,880 $3.22 -$3.22 2.04 142 660
repricing
Alea Group Hoeldings (Bermuda) Ltd )
options granted pre - IPD $3.22 -$4.30 3.09 2,266,844 $3.22 54.30 4.27 2,840,480
Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd
options granted post - IPO $3.21 -$4.31 6.81 696,010 5321 -$4.31 7.95 1,705,536
All options $3.21 $4.31 3.91 3,023,734 $3.21 54 5.54 4,688,676

No options were granted during the twelve months ended 31 December 2007 (2006: No options granted).

The Group recognised the following total expenses and repurchases in respect of equity-settled share based
payment transactions:

Year ended Year endad
31 December 2007 31 December 2026
‘000 ‘020
Total expense recognised for the year arising from share-based payment
transactions that were recognised immediately as an expense - (all are equity 187 (€6)
settled)
RSU expense charged in year {41) 178
Cash repurchases of vested options held by leavers - -
146 a2
34 Cash used in operations
Year ended Year ended
31 December
2007 31 December 2006
$'000 $'C00
Loss for the year (78,180) {8:35)
Adjustments for;
- tax expense/(credit) 100 (6,502)
- depreciation 2,534 4,142
Net cash flows for the period transferred to investing activities (55,380) (85,4:29)
(Proft}floss on sale of property, plant and equipment (16) 305
Net realised gains on sale of subsidiary - (4,3386)
Debt interest expense 48,184 22,490
(Profit)loss on foreign exchange (4,388) 1,500
Change in operating assets and liabilities {excluding the effect of acquisitions and
exchange differences on consolidation)
Net decrease in insurance liabilities {444,459) {979,438)
Net decrease in reinsurance assets 332,392 212,680
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Net decrease in loans and receivables 179,495 364,811
Net decrease in other operating liabilities (191,192) (116,968)
Net movemnent in share based payment reserve 146 91
Cash used in operations {240,764) (586,993)

35 Contingent liabilities

Structured settlements

The Group, through the Canadian branch of Alea Europe Ltd, has assumed ownership of certain structured
settlements and has purchased annuities from life assurers to provide fixed and recurring payments to those
underlying claimants. As a result of these arrangements, the Group is exposed to a credit risk to the extnt that
any of these insurers are unable to meet their obligations under the structured settlements. This risk is viewed by
the Directors as being remote as the annuities are fully funded and the Group has only purchased annuitizs from
Canadian insurers with a financial stability of AA or higher (Standard & Poor's). The Canadian branch is in run-off
and the branch discontinued accepting assignments of annuities in August 2001.

In the event of all the relevant life insurers being unable to meet their obligations under the structured settlements,
at 31 December 2007, the total exposure, net of amounts that may be recoverable from the Compensation
Corporation of Canada (a Canadian industry-backed compensation scheme), is estimated to be 41.5 million
Canadian Dollars (341.6 million} and the maximum in relation to any one insurer 18.6 million Canadian Dollars
($18.7 million).

Subpoenas and requests for information/regulatory matters

The US domiciled insurance members of the Group received certain subpoenas and information requests with
respect to the ongoing investigations by various regulators and governmental authorities relating to indus’ry-wide
investigations into US producer compensation practices and arrangements. In November 2004, Alea North
America Insurance Company (“ANAIC") received a subpoena from the Attorney General of New Ycork and,
together with Alea North America Speciality Insurance Company ("ANASIC”"), received inquiries from the
insurance departments of Delaware and North Carclina. No allegations of wrongdoing have been made against
ANAIC, ANASIC nor any of their employees, nor does the Group have reason to believe that any of them are
specific targets of any investigation.

The Group has cooperated fully with these inguiries. After concluding their internal investigations in connection
with these matters, these member companies have reported to these regulatory authorities that they have
identified no transactions or information causing concern, nor are they aware of any improper conduct.

Certain members of the Group have received subpoenas and information requests with respect io finite
reinsurance from the US Securities and Exchange Commission, the FSA, the Australian Prudential Rejulatory
Authority and the Florida and Delaware state insurance authorities.

The Group has cocperated or is cooperating fully with each authority from which it has received an inquiry and is
aware of no improper conduct.

These industry-wide investigations, including certain of the investigations to which the Group is a party, are
ongoing and it is not possible to predict the impact that these investigations, or any enquiries specifiz to the
Group, may have on the Group's current or future business and financial results. Moreover, there cay be no
assurance that further investigations will not be initiated or reopened in the future.

In connection with a periodic market conduct examination, the California Department of Insurance has disputed
certain fees collected from policyholders by two agents of one of the Group’s subsidiaries. The Group disagrees
with the Department's position, but is cooperating to audit these fee arrangements. The agreements with the
agents involved have been terminated. It is not possible to predict the impact of this dispute on the Group's
financial results.

Company contingent liabilities
In 2002 the Company entered into a top down guarantee with each of the Group’s rated insurance gperating
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entities. These guarantees were in addition to the pre-existing guarantees already in place between certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Suhject to applicable corporate and regulatory requirements, the top down guarantees
required that the Company make funds available to the insurance operating entities to allow the entities to fulfil
their insurance or reinsurance obligations to the client/customer incurred while the guarantee remained in effect.
The Group terminated all top down and other intra-Group guarantees effective 30 November 2006.

36 Exposure to specific credit risk

Exposure to Lumbermens

In connection with the Group's acquisition of the Equus Re reinsurance division of Lumbermens on 3 December
1999, Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens entered into a 100% quota share reinsurance of the Lumbermens
business written by Equus Re through 3 December 1999 (namely, business written by Equus Re prior to the
Group's acquisition of the Equus Re operations). Lumbermens, in turn, provides stop loss reinsurance o Alea
(Bermuda) Lid for losses in excess of a 75% paid loss ratio on the same business incepting prior to 1 QOctober
1999 (the “Protected Business™). In addition to the Protected Business, the parties agreed that the Group would
write new and renewal business on behalf of Lumbermens (as the reinsurer) up to 31 December 2001 which
business is ceded by a 100% quota share reinsurance to Alea (Bermuda) Ltd (the “Fronted Business’).
Concurrent with these arrangements, Lumbermens retained Alea North America Company ("ANAC™} as its agent
to adjust and pay claims and collect premiums for both the Protected Business and the Fronted Business.

The respective obligations of Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens noted above are subject to contractual mutual
offset provisions under the reinsurance agreements and as permitted under lllinois law. Further, in respect of the
Protected Business, Lumbermens is contractually required to fund losses on its own behalf once the 75% paid
loss ratio is met. The Group's balance sheet therefore, records (i) no net balance due from Lumbermens under
the Protected Business, as the 75% paid loss ratio was met in late December 2003 (specifically, $64.35 million
due to and from Lumbermens), and (ii) as at 31 December 2007, an aggregate balance due to Lumbermens
under the Fronted Business and in respect of business written by Equus Re between 1 October 1988 and 3
December 1999 of $39.2 million, after taking credit for amounts treated as paid for accounting purposes.

As is required for credit for reinsurance purposes when cessions are made to non-US licensed reinsurers, Alea
(Bermuda) Ltd must collateralise its obligations to Lumbermens. Pursuant to contract, the amount of posted
collateral is required to equal 120% of the estimated loss reserves, which based on the above year-end balance
due from Alea (Bermuda} Ltd would be approximately $47.0 million.

Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens continue to disagree over the level of reserves requiring collateralisation.
However, following commutations completed in 2007 with Lumbermens with respect to certain ceding companies
and a further release of collateral at the request by Alea (Bermuda) Ltd, on 31 December 2007, the posted
collateral was reduced to $99.4 million (31 December 2006 $134.6 million). Either parlty may require an
independent actuarial estimate of applicable reserves to resolve their differences with regard to the required
collateral calculation. Neither party has required another independent reserve estimate since the last
independent reserve estimate dated as of 30 September 2004.

Lumbermens risk based capital level allows the lllinois Department of Insurance to assume control of
Lumbermens at its discretion. The mutual obligations of Alea (Bermuda) Ltd and Lumbermens describec above
are subject to contractual mutual offset provisions under the agreements and as permitted under lllinois law.
Accordingly, having taken legal advice, the Group believes that the Group should not be exposed to rnaterial
credit risk resulting from these arrangements with Lumbermens. However, no assurance can be given that a court
would upheld these mutual offset provisions and contractual rights.

37 Related party transactions

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P./Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C.
At 30 June 2007, certain parties related to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. owned in excess of 40% of the
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Company’s issued shares. In connection with that ownership, the Company had in place certain relationship,
management rights, shareholder and advisory fee agreements, as amended with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.,
L.P., KKR 1896 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership, KKR Partners (International), Limited Partnership and
Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.C. These agreements were further described in the Company's Listing Particulars dated
14 November 2003 and provided for annual advisory fees of $750,000 payable to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co.,
L.P., an affiliate of KKR 1996 Fund (Overseas), Limited Partnership, a shareholder and KKR FPartners
(International), Limited Partnership, also a shareholder and $350,000 payable to Fisher Capital Corp. L.L.CC., also
a shareholder. In connection with negotiations pertaining to acquisition of control of the Company by FIN
Acquisition Limited, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. and Fisher Capital Corp. LLC agreed to waive payment
of these fees for the period commencing 1 April 2007. These agreements were terminated effective 5 July 2007
in connection with the acquisition of control of the Company by FIN Acquisition Limited. As at 31 December 2007,
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. and Fisher Capital Corp. LLC had received $187,500 and $87,500 in
advisory fees, respectively. As at 31 December 2007 the balance due under these arrangements was $Nil (31
December 2006: $Nil). Certain of the Company's former Directors held interests in these entities as described in
the Directors’ Report included within the Annual Report 2006,

Fortress Investment Group

At 31 December 2007, certain parties related to Fortress Investment Group owned 72.40% of the Company's
issued shares. Effective 1 October 2007 the Company put in place an advisory fee agreement with FIG LLC, a
Fortress affiliate (*Fortress™), under which the Company has agreed to pay Fortress $1,000,000 per year, payable
quarterly in arrears, for advisory services. At 31 December 2007, Fortress had received $Nil. As at 31 December
2007 the balance due under these arrangements was $250,000. The Fortress Directors’ beneficial interests in
common shares of the Company as at 31 December 2007 were as follows:

Name of Director Number of common shares
Robert | Kauffman' 125,826,832
Randal A Nardone' 125,826,832

Robert Kauffman and Randal Nardone are members of the Joint Investment Committee formed pursuant to the terms of a Joint
Investment Commitiee Agreement (“JICA”) by and among FIG Corp., Fortress Investment Group LLC (the direct pare1t of FIG
Cormp. “Fortress"), Fortress Operating Entity | LP, Fortress Operating Entity Il LP, Messrs Kauffman, Nardone, Peter L. Eiriger Jr.,
Wesley R. Edens and Michael R. Novogratz. Under the terms of the JICA, each other party to the Joint Investment Committee
Agreement has delegated all power te control, to direct or to cause the direction of the management and policies of the Company
to Messrs Kauffman, Nardone and Edens. As such Messrs Kauffman and Nardone are interested in the 125,826,832 common
shares owned by FIN Acquisition Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Fortress.

In connection with services involving potential acquisition opportunities in the property and casualty insurance
sector that may be performed by Mark Cloutier and Kirk Lusk, these executive directors of the Company entered
into a consultancy agreement effective 1 October 2007 with Fortress Capital Finance Il (A) LLC, a Fortress
affiliate, whereby each would be paid $2,000 per day spent on such activities plus a discretionary bonus. At 31
December 2007, $Nil had been paid or accrued under this arrangement.

Loans to officers
Loans to officers were offered in connection with their purchase of Company shares and are interest beaing, full
recourse and made on consistent terms as those to other employees.

As at 31 December 2007 the Group had received repayment of all loans made to key management persorinel and
had loans to key management personnel, in aggregate principal amounts of $Nil (31 December 2006: $1.40,000).
The number of key management personnel that had outstanding loans at 31 December 2007 was $Nil (31
December 2006: 2). Key management personnel are as described below.

Appleby Hunter Bailhache

Timothy C Faries, a Director of the Company until 5 July 2007, is a partner and the Insurance Team Practice
Leader at Appleby Hunter Bailhache, Barristers & Attorneys, in Bermuda. In 2007, from 1 January to 5 July the
Company paid $81,866 (2006: $49,338 from 1 January to 31 December) in respect of fees for legal and corporate
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administrative services provided by Appleby Hunter Bailhache. Mr Faries resigned as a director on 5 July 2007.
As at 31 December 2007 the amount outstanding was $Nil {31 December 2006: $373).

Key management personnel

The Group considers its key management personnel to include its Directors and those members of manajement
reporting directly to its Executive Directors that have executive management responsibility for Group-wide
operations.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and those members of management reporting directly to its Executive Directors
that have executive management responsibility for Group-wide operations, who are the key management
personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures. For the period ended 31 December 2007 this included 14 individuals (2008: 13).

Yearended  Year ended 1

31 December 2007 December 2006

$ $

Short-term employee benefits 6,512,367 3,190,672
Post-employment benefits 62,250 41,571
Other long-term benefits Nil 114,783
Termination benefits 127,244 2,244,314
Share-based payment Nil 171,820
Total 6,701,861 5,763,170

Key management personnel employment and retention contracts

Members of the Group have entered intc employment and retention contracts with Executive Directors and/or
certain members of key management, in each case taking into account the practices in the jurisdiction where the
Group operates. Compensation and termination benefits in the table above include amounts paid in 2006 and
2007 to Executive Directors and certain members of key management under such contracts, to the extent not
reported in earlier periods.

Share and loan transactions with members of key management
Kirk Lusk

Mr Lusk was granted a $49,998 loan in connection with the common share purchase program, bearing
interest at 4.1625% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31 August, commencing in 2005. The
Board approved a deferral of principal repayment on Mr Lusk’s loan in 2005. In October 2006, Mr Lusk
paid the 2006 principal instalment of $10,000 on this loan plus accrued interest of $2,118 thrcugh the
instalment payment date. In September 2007, Mr Lusk repaid the full principal balance of his Iban and
accrued interest with the proceeds of the tender of his shares to FIN Acquisition Limited.

Share and loan transactions with members of key management
Thomas Weidman

Mr Weidman was granted a $99,999 loan in connection with the share purchase program, bearing interest
at 3.7665% and repayable in instalments of 20% each 31 August commencing in 2006. The Board
approved a deferral of principal and interest on Mr Weidman’s loan in 2006. Mr Weidman fully repaid the
principal balance of his loan plus accrued interest in July 2007 with the proceeds of the sale of his shares
of the Company. |n accordance with the terms of his RSU award, Mr Weidman was issued 5,543 RSU
shares on 21 September 2006. In connection with his separation arrangements, on 31 March 2007, Mr
Weidman forfeited his remaining 19,629 RSU shares.
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Mark Ricciardelli

Mr M Ricciardelli received a loan of $375,000 in connection with his purchase of pledged shares at a cost
of $750,000 in March 2004 bearing interest at 1 year LIBOR set on the funding date and reset annually
on each anniversary thereof.

In connection with Mr M Ricciardelli's separation arrangements, on 29 June 2006, the Company agreed
that it would vest all restricted stock units not already vested and deliver the underlying shares (totalling
70,918 shares) to Mr M Ricciardelli for sale. A portion of the proceeds of the sale of such shares,
together with the simultaneous sale of shares purchased in 2004 by Mr M Ricciardelli (164,821 shares)
were used to satisfy the balance of Mr Ricciardelli's loan of $300,000 plus accrued interest of $13,360
through 31 August 2006, his last day of employment.

38 Retirement benefit scheme

Defined contribution schemes

The employees of the Group are covered by defined contribution schemes the costs of which are charged to the
income staterment when incurred. The total cost of retirement benefits for the Group in the year ended 31
December 2007 was $1.6 million (31 December 2006: $2.6 miillion).

39 Operating leases

At the following balance sheet dates, the Group was committed to paying total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating teases in each of the following periods:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Land and Land and
buildings Other Total buildings Other Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

- within one year 2,883 52 2,935 4,048 111 4,159
- between two and five years 5,758 2 5,760 5,661 29 5,580
- over five years - - - 189 ) 189

8,641 54 B,695 9,798 140 9,928

The total of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at 31
December 2007 was $3.6 million (31 December 2006: $4.7 million).

The gross amount incurred under operating leases during the period ended 31 December 2007 was $5.2 million
(31 December 2006: $4.9 million) before deducting income receivable from subleases of $1.0 milhon (31
December 2006: $1.0 million).

40 Events after the balance sheet date

On 11 January 2008 the Group announced that it had reached agreement to fully and finally commute all
exposure under an excess of loss reinsurance treaty effective 31 December 2007. Consequently, the Group has
recorded an expense of $8.8 million in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 in respect of
this agreement. As the agreement was announced subsequent to the balance sheet date, reinsurance
recoverables totalling $41.2 million in respect of this contract are still shown as a reinsurance contract asset in the
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balance sheet, with a corresponding amount shown under reserves withheld creditors. These corresponding
balances of $41.2 million will be eliminated in the first quarter of 2008.

41 Group subsidiaries

The consolidated financial information presents the financial record of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2007 and 31 December 2006. A list of all investments in Group subsidiaries, including the name and
country of incorporation is given below. All companies listed are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group and are
fully consolidated into the Group accounts.

The ultimate parent company of the Group is Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Place of incorporation Proportion of Proportion of

{or registration) and ownership voting powel
Name of subsidiary operation interest in % held in %
Alea Europe Ltd Switzerland 100 100
Alea {Bermuday) Ltd Bermuda 100 100
Alea Holdings US Company USA 100 100
Alea North America Insurance Company USA 100 100
Alea North America Company USA 100 100
Alea Holdings UK Limited England and Wales 100 100
Alea London Limited England and Wales 100 100
Alea Services UK Limited England and Wales 100 100
Alea Services AG | Switzerland 100 100
AHUSCO Statutory Trust | USA 100 100
AHUSCO Statutory Trust Il USA 100 100
AHUSCO Statutory Trust Ili USA 100 100
Alea Syndicate Management Limited England and Wales 100 100
Alea Corporate Member Limited England and Wales 100 100

T IRM International Reinsurance Management AG changed its name to Alea Services AG on 14 December

2006.

In 2006 the following five entities were liquidated: Alea Jersey Limited, Alea Global Risk Limited, Alea Holdings
Guernsey Limited, Alea Financial UK Limited and Alea Technology Limited. Alea North America Specialty
Insurance Company was sold on 29 September 2006 as disclosed in note 10.

#Hit#
END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item {including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persorns and
countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified

countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange ple. Ali rights reserved
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Market News Page 1 of 2
. File No. 82-34885

Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section Eﬂ &
Company Alea Group Holdings(Bermuda) Ltd

TIDM ALEA

Headline Annual Financial Report

Released 15:32 14-Mar-08

Number 1737Q

RNS Number:1737Q
BAlea Group Heldings {Bermuda) Ltd
14 March 2008

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.
14 March 2008

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd Annual Financial Report for
Full Year 2007 Results

The Company's Annual Financial Report is now available at the Company's website,
www.aleagroup.com.

A copy of the document has been submitted to the UK Listing Authority, and will
shertly be available for inspection at the UK Listing Authority's Document
Viewing Facility, which is situated at:

Financial Services Authority
25 The North Colonnade

Canary Wharf

London E14 5HS

Telephone no. (0)20 7066 1000

The printed copies of the Annual Financial Report are expected to be mailed to
shareholders on 26 March 2008.

For further information, please contact:
Financial Dynamics: +44 20 7269 7114

Nick Henderson
Robert Bailhache

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 3/14/2008
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London Stock Exchange ple is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons and
| countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
| countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.
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Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section ﬁﬂ =
Company Alea Group Holdings(Bermuda) Ltd

TIDM ALEA

Headline Annual Financial Report

Released 11:20 26-Mar-08

Number 7908Q

RNS Number:79%08Q
Alea Group Holdings(Bermuda) Ltd
26 March 2008

Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd.

26 March 2008

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd. 2007 Annual Financial Report/Documents
Available for Inspection.

The following documents were mailed to shareholders on 26 March 2008 and have
been submitted to the UK Listing Authority, and are now available for inspection
at the UK Listing Authority's Document Viewing Facility:

{1) Annual Financial Report of Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.
for the financial year ended 31 December 2007;

{2) Circular containing Notice of Annual General Meeting; and

(3) Form of Proxy for Annual General Meeting.

The Document Viewing Facility is situated at:

The Financial Services RAuthority
25 The North Coclonnade

Canary Wharf

London E14 5HS

Telephone no. +44 (0)20 7066 1000
The Annual Financial Report, the Circular Containing Notice of Annual General

Meeting and the Form of Proxy are also available at the Company's website,
www,.aleagroup.com/

For further information, please contact:

Mark Cloutier
+1 441 296 9150

Financial Dynamics
Nick Henderson
Robert Bailhache
+44 20 7269 7114

http://www londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 3/28/2008
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This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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TIDM ALEA

Headline Total Voting Rights & Capital

Released 07:00 31-Mar-C8

Number 9525Q

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.
31 March 2008

Total Voting Rights and Capital

In conformity with the Transparency Directive’s transitional provision 8, we would like to notify the market of the
following:

As at 31 March 2008, the issued share capital and voting rights of Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd. consists
of 173,769,226 common shares of US $0.01 each with voting rights attached (one vote per common share).

There are nil shares held in Treasury.
Therefore the total number of voting rights in Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd. is 173,769,226.

The above figure of 173,769,226 may be used by shareholders as the denominator for the calculations by which
they will determine if they are required to notify their interest in, or a change in their interest in, Alea Group
Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd. under the FSA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules.

For further information, please contact:

Mark Cloutier
+1 441 296 9150

Financial Dynamics
Robert Bailhache
Nick Henderson

+44 20 7269 7114

Certain statements made in this press release that are not based on current or historical facts are forward-looking
in nature including, without limitation, statements containing words "believes," "anticipates," "plans,” "projects,”
“intends," "expects,” "estimates," "predicts," and words of similar import. All statements other than statements of
historical facts including, without limitation, those regarding the Group's financial position, business strategy, plans
and objectives of management for future operations (including development plans and objectives relating to the
Group's products and services) are forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that could cause the actual results, performance or
achievements of the Group to be materially different from future results, performance or achievements expressed
or implied by such forward-looking statements. In particular, forecasting of reserves for future losses is based on
historical experience and future assumptions. As a result, they are inherently subjective and may fiuctuate based
on actual future experience and changes to current or future trends in the legal, social or economic environment.
Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding the Group's present aind future
business strategies and the environment in which the Group will operate in the future. These forward-lcoking
statements speak only as at the date of this press release or other information concerned. Alea Group Holdings

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1...  3/31/2008
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(Bermuda) Ltd expressly disclaims any obligations or undertaking (other than reporting obligations imposed on us
in relation to our listing on the London Stock Exchange) to disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-
looking statements contained herein to reflect any changes in the Group's expectations with regard thereto or any
change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based. References in this
paragraph to the Group are to Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd. and its subsidiaries from time to time.

END

E:lose

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item {including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons and
countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified

countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2008 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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TIDM ALEA

Headline Director Resignation

Released 07:02 31-Mar-08

Number 1209R

RNS Number:1209R
Alea Group Holdings(Bermuda) Ltd
31 March 2008

31 March 2008
Alea Group Holdings {Bermuda) Ltd ("Alea" or the "Company")
Director Resignation

Hamilton, Bermuda

Alea announces that Mr Kirk Lusk has tendered his resignation from his positions
as Group Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer and as a director
of the Company and of each of its subsidiaries of which he is a director. Mr
Lusk's resignation has been accepted with effect from today, 31 March 2008. Mr
Carl Speck, currently deputy Group Chief Financial Officer, has been appointed
acting Group Chief Financial Qfficer with immediate effect.

LEx T &

For further information, please contact:

Financial Dynamics
Robert Bailhache
Nick Henderson

+44 20 7269 7114

This infermaticon is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.

1N

Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd.
{Incorporated and registered in Bermuda under registration number 31408}

Registered Office:
Canen's Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

26 March 2008
Dear Shareholder,
2008 Annual General Meeting

The Naotice of Meeting sets out the business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
Thursday, 19" June 2008 at 10 a.m. (Bermuda time) at the Gazebo Room, The Fairmont Hamilton
Princess Hotel, 76 Pitts Bay Road, Pembroke HM08 Bermuda. Also enclosed with this letter are the 2007
Annual Financial Report and a proxy card for voting at the Annual General Meeting.

Resolutions 1 to 6 set out in the Notice of Meeting are ordinary business.

Resolutions 3, 4, 5 and 6 —-- Reappointment of Directors

Resolution 3 proposes the reappointment of Kirk Lusk as Director, who is retiring by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. Kirk Lusk is an Executive Director and Group Chief Financial
Officer and Group Chief Operating Officer.

Resolutions 4, 5 and 6 propose the reappointment of Robert Kauffman, Randal Nardone and Gregory
Share as Directors, each of whom is retiring at the first Annual General Meeting following thair
appointment in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws. Robert Kauffman is the Non-Executive
Chairman of the Board, and Randal Nardone and Gregory Share are Non-Executive Directors.

Biographical and other details of the directors to be re-elected are set out in the Annual Financial Report.
Voting

Shareholders of the Company who are entered on the register of shareholders at 6 p.m. (Bermuda time)
on 13 June 2008 are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting and vote on the resolutions.

Votes may be cast in person at the meeting or by return of the proxy form. If you submit a proxy you will
still be entitled to attend the meeting and vote in person if you wish to. A proxy need not be a member.

The proxy card gives members the opportunity to register a vote “withheld”. A vote “withheld” is an
abstention. It is not a vote in law and will not be counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes “For”
and “Against” a resolution.

Proxies may be returned by post or electronically through www.proxyveting.com/alea as explained in the
accompanying notes to this notice and the form of proxy should be received no later than 10 a.m.
(Bermuda time} on 17 June 2008 which is 2 p.m. (London time) and 9 a.m. (New York time} on the same
date.

Yours faithfully,

Robert Kauffman
Chairman




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held at the
Gazebo Room, The Fairmont Hamilton Princess Hotel, 76 Pitts Bay Road, Pembroke HM08 Bermuda on
19 June 2008 at 10 a.m. (Bermuda time) for the following purposes and to consider and, if thought fit,
pass the following resolutions which will be proposed, in the case of resclutions 1 to 6, as ordinary
resolutions:

1. To receive the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2007, together with
the directors’ report and the auditors’ report on those statements.

2. To reappoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditors to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting
until the conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company at which accounts are laid and to
autherise the directors to fix their remuneration.

3. To reappoint Kirk Lusk as director.

4, To reappoint Robert Kauffman as director.
5. To reappoint Randal Nardene as director.
6. To reappoint Gregory Share as director.
By order of the Board

George P. Judd
Group Secretary
Dated 26 March 2008
Registered office:
Canon's Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12

Bermuda
NOTES
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint one or more
proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. The proxy need not be a member of the
Company.
2. To be effective, the form of appointment of a proxy must be:
21 in the case of an instrument in writing, delivered to Mellon Investor Services LLC at P O
Box 3862 S Hackensack NJ 07606-9562 together with any power of attorney or authority
under which it is executed {or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority) not
less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting; or
22 in the case of an appointment of a proxy on the internet, made and received at
www.proxyvoting.com/alea not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.
3. Any electronic communication sent by a shareholder to the Company or the registrar which is

found to contain a computer virus will not be accepted.

4, A form of proxy is enclosed with this notice. Completion and return of the form of proxy in writing
or on the interet will not preclude shareholders from attending and voting in person at the
meeting. A proxy form will be invalid unless it is lodged as specified in note 2.

5. Only those members entered on the register of members of the Company as at 6 p.m. {(Bermuda
time) on 13 June 2008 shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting in respect of the number
of shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to entries on the register of members
after 6 p.m. {Bermuda time} on 13 June 2008 shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any
person to attend or vote at the meeting.

8. Copies of all directors' service agreements will be available for inspection at the offices of Alea
London Limited, 18 Mansell Street, London E1 8AA during normal business hours on any day
(Saturday, Sunday and public holidays excepted) and at the place of the meeting 15 minutes prior
to and throughout the meeting.

7. The meeting is scheduled to begin at 10 a.m. (Bermuda time) on 19 June 2008, which is 2 p.m,
{London time) and 9 a.m. (New York time) on the same date.




ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING — PROAY FURNM B tadid

I'We,
of
being (a) member(s) of Alea Group Holdings (Bermuda) Ltd hereby appoint the Chairman of the
meeting {see note 2)

or

of
as my/our proxy to vote in my/our name(s) and on my/our behalf at the Annua! General Meeting o
the Company to be held on 19 June 2008 and at any adjournment thereof.

PLEASE COMPLETE IN BLOCK CAPITALS.
(Continued on the reverse side)

Address Change/Comments (Mark the corresponding box on the reverss sids)

A FOLD AND DETACH HERE A

Notes on completion of the form of proxy:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint one or more proxies to atter
and, on a poll, vote instead of him. The proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. A member who does not wish the Chairman of the meeting to be his proxy may appoint a proxy of his own
choice by inserting the proxy's name and address on the proxy form in the space provided.

3. If the proxy form is returned without an indication as to how the proxy must vote on a particular matter, the
proxy wilt exercise his discretion as to whether, and if so how, he votes.

4, Please note that the “Withheld" option is provided to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution. A
vote “Withheld” is not a vote in taw and will not be counted in the proportion of votes “For” and “Against” a
resolution.

5. Appointments by a corporation must be under seal or the hand of its duly authorised officer, attorney cr
other person authorised to sign in writing.

6. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder is sufficient but the vote of the person whos:a
name appears first in the register of members shall be accepted to the exclusion of other joint holders.

7. To be effective, the form of instrument appointing a proxy must be:

7.1 in the case of an instrument in writing, delivered to Mellon Investor Services LLC, Attn: Proxy Processing,
P.O. Box 3862, South Hackensack, NJ 07606-9562, United States of Amercia, together with any power of
attorney or authority under which it is executed (or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority) not
less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting; or

7.2 inthe case of an appointment of a proxy on the Internet, made and received at www.proxyvoting.com/alea
not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

A proxy form will be invalid unless it is lodged as specified in this note 7.

8. The time of the meeting is 10 a.m. (Bermuda time) on 19 June 2008 which is 2 p.m. {Londaon time} and
9 a.m. {New York time) on the same date.

9. Any alterations made to this proxy form should be initialled.

588€-28 "Ooh




The proxy is to vote in respect of the resolutions mentioned below as follows:

Please mark one box with an “X" for each resolution.

FOR AGAINST WITHHELD

Resolution 1 receive the
financial statements

FOR AGAINST WITHHELD

Resolution 2 reappointment
and remuneration of
auditors

FOR AGAINST WITHHELD

Resolution 3 reappoint Kirk
Lusk as Director

Signature(s)

Rasolution 4 reappoint
Robert Kauffman as Director

Resolution 5 reappoint
Randal Nardone as Director

Resolution & reappoint
Gregory Share as Director

FOR AGAINST WITHHELD

The proxy may vote as he thinks fit or
abstain from voting (i) in respect of the

resolutions for which no indicaion has

FOR ~ AGAINST WIHHELD paon given as to how the proxy must vote

and (if) on any other business or resclution
{including amendments to resolutions)

FOR  AGAINST WITHHELD which may properly come befors the

meeting or any adjoumment of it.

Date

NOTE: Pizass sco notes 5, 6, 7 and 9 on reverse side. Please sign as name eppasrs herson. When signing as attornsy, executor, adminkstrator, trustes or gusrdlan, please give fufl title as

Appointment of a proxy on the Internet authorizes your proxy to vote your shares in the same manner
as if you marked, signed and returned your proxy card.

INTERNET

Have your proxy card in

http://www.proxyvoting.com/alea
Use the Internet to vote your proxy. OR

when you access the web site.

hand

TELEPHONE
1-866-540-5760

Use any touch-tone telephone to
vote your proxy. Have your proxy
card in hand when you call.

If you appoint a proxy by Internet,
you do NOT need to mail back your proxy card.




File No. 82-34885

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE MADE PUBLIC ON AN ON-GOING BASIS

The following is a list which the Company agrees pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(ii) under the
Exchange Act to furnish to the SEC on an on-going basis promptly after such information is
made or required to be made public. If the information that the Company makes or is
required to be made public, files or distributes shall change from that listed below, the
Company will promptly following the end of the fiscal year in which such changes have
occurred furnish the SEC with a revised list reflecting such changes.

The following information is required to be (i) made public pursuant to the laws of Bermuda;
(ii) filed with the Financial Services Authority (“ FSA™), in its capacity as the United
Kingdom Listing Authority (“ UKLA”), or the London Stock Exchange (* LSE”) (and is
made public thereby); or (iii) distributed to holders of the Company’ s securities.

References to a Regulatory Information Service refer to the definition in the UKLA Listing
Rules. The definition comprises any of the following company news services:

e Business Wire Regulatory Disclosure provided by Business Wire;
+ FirstSight provided by Romeike

+ Announce provided by Hugin ASA

+ News Release Express provided by CCNMatthews UK Limited

¢« PR Newswire Disclosure provided by PR Newswire; and

+ RNS provided by the London Stock Exchange.

Type of Information or Report Required Date of Release Source of
Requirement

L. Memorandum of Association. | Filed with the Bermuda Bermuda Companies
Registrar of Companies Act 1981
(“ Registrar of Companies™) (* Companies Act
on incorporation. 1981").

2. Amendments to Memorandum | To the Registrar of Companies Act

of Association. Companies: (i) within 30 1981.

days if no application is made
to the Court within 21 days of
the passing of the resolution
approving the amendment; or
(i} within 21 days of the
passing of the resolution with
affidavit sworn by at least two
directors stating that the
Company does not know of
any person who could make

Information Required to be made Public
on an On-going Basis (Skadden update
3-28-08) Clean.doc




Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of
Requirement

an application to the Court.

To the FSA via a Regulatory
Information Service without
delay but at the latest on the
date of calling the general
meeting which is to vote on,
or be informed of, the
amendment.

UKLA Disclosure
and Transparency
Rules

Memorandum of Association
and Bye-laws (including
alterations to Memorandum or
Bye-laws).

To shareholders on request.

Companies Act
1981.

Directors’ Report, Auditors’
Report and Annual Accounts.

To a Regulatory Information
Service as soon as possible
after they have been approved
and, in any event, within 4
months of the Company’ s
fiscal year end.

Financial statements, or
optionatly when the shares of
a Company are listed on an
appointed exchange,
summarized financial
statements and auditors’
report must be provided to
persons entitled to receive
notice of general meetings,
not less than 5 days before the
date of the meeting at which
those documents will be
considered.

A copy of the summarized
financial statements must be
available at the Company’s
registered office.

UKLA Disclosure
and Transparency
Rules.

[Companies Act
1981]

Companies Act
1981.

Distribution of financial
statements and audit report
can be waived if all

Information Required to be made Public
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Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of
Requirement

shareholders and directors
agree.

5. Half Yearly Report.

To a Regulatory Information
Service as soon as possible
after Board of Directors
approval and within two
months of the end of the
period to which the statement
relates and also either to
shareholders or by way of
advertisement in a national
newspaper within two months
of the end of the period to
which the statement relates.

UKLA Listing
Rules.

6. Interim Management Statement

To a Regulatory Information
Service not earlier than ten
weeks after beginning and not
later than six weeks before the
end of the relevant half-year.

The Company may elect to
satisfy this requirement by
publishing a quarterly
financial report.

UKLA Disclosure
and Transparency
Rules.

1. Notices of general meetings
and proxy forms.

Notices of meetings must be
sent to shareholders 5 days in
advance of the meeting.

Companies Act
1981.

8. Notices and circulars
concerning the allocation and
payment of dividends and the
issue of new shares, including
information on any
arrangements for allotment,
subscription, cancellation or
conversion.

To the shareholders and
simultaneously to the FSA by
means of an announcement via
a Regulatory Information
Service.

UKLA Listing,
Disclosure and
Transparency Rules.

9. All resolutions passed by the
Company other than
resolutions concerning
ordinary business at an annual

To the UKLA and a
Repgulatory Information
Service as soon as possible

UKLA Listing
Rules.

Information Required to be made Public
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Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of
Requirement

general meeting.

after the relevant meeting.

10.

Alteration of authorized share
capital {or share premium).

A memorandum of increase
must be filed with the
Bermuda Registrar of
Companies within 30 days of
the effective date of any
increase in the authorized
share capital.

A notice of reduction must be
published in an appointed
newspaper not more than 30
days and not less than 15 days
before the effective date of
any reduction in the share
capital. Such notice, and
other prescribed documents,
must be filed with the
Bermuda Registrar of
Companies within 30 days of
the effective date of reduction.

A memorandum must be filed
with the Registrar of
Companies within 30 days of
any change in the currency
denomination of the share
capital or a cancellation of
unissued shares.

Companies Act
1981,

i1,

Board resolution allotting
securities or authorizing the
issue of securities to be
admitted to trading on the
LSE; or

If the resclution is not
available, written confirmation
from the Company that the
securities have been allotted.

To the LSE no later than
12:00 at least two business
days prior to the day on which
the Company is requesting the
LSE 1o consider the
application for admission to
trading.

To the LSE no later than 7:30
am on the day that admission
is expected to become
effective.

LSE Admission and
Disclosure
Standards.

Information Required to be made Public
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Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of

Requirement
12.  Notice of change to the board, | Register of Directors and Companies Act
including the appointment, Officers (contains only 1981.
removal, retirement or Chairman and Deputy
resignation of a director or any | Chairman and Secretary) must
change to any important be made available for public
functions or executive inspection at the Company’ s
responsibilities of a director. registered office and changes
to the register must be made
within 14 days of the date of
such change.
13, Notice of change of registered | To the Registrar of Companies Act
office. Companies on occurrence. 1981.
Change effective upon notice
being registered by the
Registrar of Companies.
14.  Change in the Company’ s Notice of change of name Companies Act
name, must be provided to 1981.
shareholders to convene a
special general meeting to
approve the name change and
a certified copy of the
resolution approving the name
change must be filed with the
Registrar of Companies.
15.  Prospectus {public offering of | Prior to offering shares to the | Companies Act

shares).

public (unless exempted), a
copy of a prospectus must be
filed with the Registrar of
Companies, at or prior to the
time of the prospectus or as
soon as reasonably practicable
thereafter.

If there is a continuous
offering and material changes
to the terms of the offer,
supplementary particulars
must be published and filed
with the Registrar of
Companies and a copy must

1981.

Information Required to be made Public
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Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of
Requirement

be provided to every
shareholder as soon as
reasonably practicable.

16.  Notice of change of location of | To the Registrar of Companies Act
Register of Members. Companies. Change is 1981.
effective afier giving written
notice to the Registrar.
17.  Register of Members. Must be made available for Companies Act
public inspection at the 1981.
Company’ s registered office.
18, Closure of the Register of Advertised prior to closure of | Companies Act
Members of the Company. share register (not to exceed 1981.
in the whole 30 days in a
year).
19.  General disclosures: Any To a Regulatory Information | UKLA Disclosure

inside information which
directly concerns the issuer,
which is information that
would be likely to be used by a
reasonable investor as part of
the basis of his investment
decisions and would therefore
be likely to have a significant
effect on the price of the
issuer's financial instruments
(the "reasonable investor
test"). In determining whether
information would be likely to
have a significant effect on the
price of financial instruments,
an issuer should be mindful
that there is no figure
{percentage change or
otherwise) that can be set for
any issuer when determining
what constitutes "a significant
effect on the price of the
financial instruments" as this
will vary from issuer to issuer.

Service as soon as possible.

and Transparency
Rules.

[nformation Required to be made Public
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Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of
Requirement

20.  Notification of any
announcement of the timetable
for any proposed action
affecting the rights of existing
holders of listed securities
traded on the LSE (and any
amendments to such timetable,
including any amendment to
the publication details of an
announcement) except in
respect of specialist securities.
A dividend timetable prepared
in accordance with the
guidelines of the LSE and the
Admission and Disclosure
Standards need not be notified.

To the LSE in advance of
such action (no later than 9:00
on the day before the
proposed announcement).

LSE Admission and
Disclosure
Standards,

21. All circulars, notices, reports,
announcements or other
documents to which the GKLA
Listing Rules apply issued by
the Company.

To the UKLA at the same
time as they are issued and to
Repgulatory Information
Service as soon as possible.

UKLA Listing
Rules.

22.  Any proposed alteration to
capital structure, including
listed debt securities, save that
an announcement of a new
issue may be delayed whilst a
marketing or an underwriting
is in the process.

To a Regulatory Information
Service as soon as possible
(except during marketing or
underwriting).

UKLA Listing
Rules.

23.  Notice if and when the
Company becomes aware that
the proportion of any class of
listed equity shares in the
hands of the public has fallen
below 25% of the total issued
share capital of that class or,
where applicable, such lower
percentage as the UKLA may
have agreed.

To the UKLA without delay.

UKLA Listing
Rules.

24.  Any change in the rights

To a Regulatory Information

UKLA Disclosure
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Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of
Requirement

attaching to any class of listed
securities or any shares into
which listed securities are
convertible or derivative
securities issued by the
Company giving access to the
shares of the Company.

Service as soon as possible.

and Transparency
Rules

25.  Any redemption of listed To a Regulatory Information | UKLA Listing
securities including details of | Service as soon as possible. Rules.
the number of shares redeemed
and the number of shares of
that class following
redemption.

26.  Any extension of time granted | To a Regulatory Information | UKLA Listing
for the currency of temporary | Service as soon as possible. Rules.
documents of title.

27.  The results of any new issue of | To a Regulatory Information | UKLA Listing
equity securities or preference | Service as soon as result is Rules.
shares or of a public offering | known (except where shares
of existing securities or other are subject to an underwriting
equity securities. arrangement).

28.  Block Listing Six Monthly To a Regulatory Information | UKLA Listing Rules
Return; the Company must Service every six months.
notify the market of the
number of securities covered
by a relevant Block Listing
which have been allotted in the
previous six months using the
Block Listing Six Monthly
Return in the form prescribed
by the FSA.

29.  Listing particulars or To the UKLA at least 10 clear | Financial Services

prospectus and supporting
documentation in respect of
admission of securities to the
Official List of the UKLA.

business days prior to the
intended publication date.

To the LSE by no later than
12:00 at least two business

and Markets Act
2000; UKLA
Prospectus Rules.

LSE Admission and
Disclosure
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Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of
Requirement

days prior to the date on
which the Company is
requesting the LSE to
consider the application for
listing to trading.

Standards.

30.  Prospectus (public offering of | Prior to offering shares to the | Companies Act

shares). public (unless exempied); a 1981.
copy of a prospectus must be
filed with the Registrar of
Companies.

If there is continuous offering
and material changes to the
terms of the offer,
supplementary particulars
must be published and filed
with the Registrar of
Companies and a copy must
be provided to every
shareholder as soon as
reasonably practicable.

31.  Notification of the acquisition | To the FSA and to a UKLA Disclosure
or disposal of major Regulatory Information and Transparency
shareholdings: Disseminate to | Service on receipt of a Rules.
the market notification from a | notification as scon as
shareholder or a person, who | possible and in any event by
is a direct and indirect holder | not later than the end of the
of shares, in respect of an seventh trading day following
acquisition or disposal of the relevant transaction.
shares resulting in voting
rights reaching, exceeding or
falling below 5%, 10%, 15%,

20%, 25%, 30%, 50% and

75%.

32.  Acquisition or disposal by To a Regulatory Information | UKLA Disclosure

issuer of shares: Make public
the percentage of voting rights
attributable to shares it holds
as a result of any transaction in
which the Company acquires

Service as soon as possible
but not later than four trading
days following such
acquisition or disposal.

and Transparency
Rules
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Type of Information or Report

Required Date of Release

Source of
Requirement

or disposes of its own shares
either itself or through a
person acting in its name
where that percentage reaches,
exceeds or falls below the
thresholds of 5% or 10% of
the voting rights in the
Company.

33.  Disclosures by issuers: at the
end of each calendar month
during which an increase or
decrease has occurred,
disclose to the public the total
number of voting rights and
capital in respect of each class
of share which the Company
issues; and the total number of
voting rights attaching to
shares which are held by the
Company in treasury.

To a Regulatory Information
Service as soon as possible.

UKLA Disclosure
and Transparency
Rules

34.  Details of transactions
conducted by persons
discharging managerial
responsibilities and their
connected persons in the
shares of the Company or
derivatives or any other
financial instruments relating
to the shares.

To a Regulatory Information
Service as soon as possible
and in any event by no later
than the end of the business
day following receipt of the
information.

UKLA Disclosure
and Transparency
Rules

35.  Certain documents relating to
winding-up of the Company.

Information Regquired (o be made Public
on an On-going Basis (Skadden update
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Must be made available to the
public with effect from the
date as required in connection
with the commencement of the
winding-up. The documents
required depends upon the
type of winding-up: (i)
Members’ voluntary -
notification to the Registrar;
(ii) Creditors voluntary -
advertise meetings, petitions

Companies Act
1981.




Type of Information or Report Required Date of Release Source of
Requirement
available upon request and at
the Registrar’ s office and
winding-up order should be
filed with the Registrar; and
(iii) Court ordered - petition
available upon request and at
the Registrar’ s office, and
winding-up order should be
filed with the Registrar.
Liquidators must advertise
their appointment and
advertise for claims.

36.  Annual Information Update: at | To the FSA and via a UKLA Prospectus
least annually prepare a Regulatory Information Rules
document (an annual Service at least annually.
information update) that refers
to or contains all information
that has been published or
made available to the public
over the previous 12 months in
one or more EEA States and in
third countries in compliance
with its obligations under
Community and national laws
and rules dealing with the
regulation of securities, issuers
of securities and securities
markets.

37.  General Shareholders are also entitled | Companies Act 1981

to receive whatever
documents are prescribed in
the Bye-laws for distribution
to shareholders, for example,
notices of general meetings
circulated within the period
stipulated in the Bye-laws.
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